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Forward - Looking Statement

In our report we have disclosed forward-looking information so that investors can comprehend the Company’s prospects and make informed investment

decisions.This annual report and other written and oral statements that we make periodically contain such forward-looking statements that set out anticipated

results based on the Management's plans and assumptions. We have tried, wherever possible, to qualify such statements by using words such as 'anticipates',

'estimates', 'expects', 'projects', 'intends', 'plans', 'believes' and words and terms of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future operating or

financial performance.We do not guarantee that any forward-looking statement will be realized, although we believe we have been diligent and prudent in our

plan and assumptions.The achievement of future results is subject to risk, uncertainties and validity of inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks

or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, our actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or

projected. Investors should bear this in mind as they consider forward- looking statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-

looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Note: Blue Star Infotech Ltd. is referred to as ''Blue Star Infotech'' or ''BSIL''

in this report.
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Sharpening Focus
The advent of new age technologies has brought a networks paradigm shift in the way organizations and

individuals interact and consume technology. Social and mobility have integrated large segments of the global

population which hitherto were tough to reach. Analytics help organizations develop actionable insights from raw

data, equipping them to get more from every dollar that they spend. The cloud helps organizations replace part of

their fixed cost investment by an operating cost model, considerably reducing their immediate cash outflows.

The shift in the technology environment alongside a weak macroeconomic environment has left most organizations in an

awkward quandary. Realizing the fact that early adopters stand to disproportionately while laggards can sink into

oblivion, global organizations are increasingly seeking capable technology partners who can help them transform without

unduly burdening their balance sheet.

It is against this backdrop that we at Blue Star Infotech Limited (BSIL) made a conscious decision three years ago not to spread

ourselves too thin, but to invest heavily in areas of our strengths and those that made good business sense to us. As a result, we

have fast evolved from a generic IT company into a focused IT solutions company today.

An increasing share of our revenues is getting invested in building new age solutions that can deliver higher levels of business

value to our clients. A solution brings to the fore the deep domain understanding we have learned from our multiple client

engagements, amalgamating it with new age technologies to make it a compelling sales proposition for the client.

We identified our key focus verticals, horizontals, geographies and even prioritized accounts, by spreading them across four key

buckets based on their current and potential revenue impact. An increasing share of our investments and resources, including

management bandwidth and attention is directed towards these areas. A focused approach positions us strongly in the Digital

Transformation space and strengthens our partner relationships. Significant changes have been incorporated to enhance the

level of employee engagement and work-related satisfaction level.

A few early indicators give us confidence that our strategy is on the right track. Our revenues during the last three year period

have more than doubled and profits have more than quadrupled and are at an all-time high. One of our solutions has helped us

win a multi-million dollar deal from a leading Switzerland-based high-end travel company against incumbents, most of which

were top notch global tier1 companies. Our $4 million + c and 1 million+ clients are on the rise and so is the profitability

per client.

We remain upbeat about our future prospects and continue to stay focused on developing innovative solutions that can readily

show our clients what they need to do and help them stay ahead. We shall persistently sharpen our focus towards upgrading our

current service offerings and tune it to client's expectations continuously.

benefit

lients $



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

AND  MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

Fiscal 2015 was a year in which we further consolidated our long term strategy of enhancing focus on the selected

growth of our addressed markets. We successfully reinforced the foundations towards becoming a solution-led,

niche service provider and building innovative solutions. We devoted our energy to winning business from our

existing strategic accounts that we believe can provide us with sufficient growth and profitability in the years

ahead.While revenue growth was flat, we witnessed a satisfying upswing in profitability.

Sunil Bhatia
Chief Executive Officer

& Managing Director

Suneel Advani
Chairman

& Managing Director

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS DURING THE YEAR

BLUE STAR INFOTECH LIMITED02

Our net profits grew 22%

We made significant inroads into existing large accounts, our $1 million+ accounts grew to 4 and $2 million+ grew to

5, including a $5 million+ account

Zinnov, the respected management consulting firm recognized us as a leader in the Outsourced Software

Development segment

We won our first IP based order for Mobile Vacation Planner (MVP) from one of the world's largest travel companies

We strengthened our relationship with one of our oldest customers, Hewlett-Packard (HP), by helping them launch a

cloud-based mobile security and mobile device management application worldwide in record time.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTSBOARD REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW

In last year's Annual Report we reported that we had consolidated our Application Development and Product

Engineering practices as OPD+ to help us cross-leverage our experience for enterprise and technology customers. We are

happy to report that OPD+ has achieved its highest-ever revenue, contributing 50% of the revenue and adding the

highest number of total new customers, at 8. In addition, 6 of its accounts crossed the million dollar mark.

Travel and Hospitality (T&H) continued to show strong growth and became the largest contributor to the overall revenues

amongst our verticals. Our solutions in theT&H space have enabled us to deliver real value to our clients. Impressed by our

capabilities in this area, one of the world's largest travel services providers chose to partner with us ahead of some leading

global technology brands.

To further strengthen the company's position, we are investing in new-age solutions. We have set up an Indoor

Tracking Technology Lab in the US. We are also launching a  new practice for the Travel & Hospitality technoloy

segment.

EMPHASIZING OUR LEADERSHIP IN OUTSOURCED PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT AND TRAVEL & HOSPITALITY

FAST EVOLVING GLOBAL DIGITAL LANDSCAPE

Despite a challenging macro-economic environment, we continue to witness strong demand for technology led

solutions, especially digital technology. In this fast changing global landscape, organizations today seek technology

partners who can help them stay relevant. Our strategy to become a solution focused player through investing in new age

technologies and building solutions is helping us in our growth path. Our in-house developed solutions, such as Mobile

Vacation Planner and Smart Retreat, gained considerable traction in the market.

The US continues to be our key market contributing 45% of the revenue, with Europe at 10%. Our revenues from Rest of

the World (RoW) continued to see strong growth, more than twice the industry average. RoW contributed 45% of the

revenue for FY2013-14.

During the year we continued to invest heavily in our people, processes and technology. We added fresh talent, re-skilled

existing talent through a mix of training and co-curricular activities and reinforced our client engagement process. At an

organizational level we further aligned our sales, delivery and operations to improve efficiency, and speed.

In line with our principle of providing high touch service to our clients, our project teams are now backed by a

management committee consisting of seven senior leaders. The members periodically engage in a high level interaction

with the business users and senior technology team members at the client organization to enhance customer satisfaction

with project progress and quality. Our strategic decision to create an OOO (Onsite, onshore, offshore) offering continued

to appeal our clients. In line with our expectation, we saw a few of our accounts doubling and tripling during the fiscal.

To differentiate ourselves in an increasingly competitive marketplace and to bring more value to our clients, we added a

critical position, Solution Architect, in each of our strategic accounts. A Solution Architect brings with him multifaceted

expertise that enables us to understand a client's IT infrastructure holistically. He helps our client identify and implement

appropriate transformational technologies to significantly enhance their competitive advantage and organizational

productivity. A Solution Architect also creates opportunities for the company through account mining for existing clients,

and by actively participating in presales activities in order to convert prospective clients.

INTEGRATED GROWTH WITH CUSTOMER CENTRIC APPROACH
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This year we took a small step towards building a better environment. We teamed up with an NGO and planted more than

2000 trees at the periphery of Kumbhalgarh Sanctuary near Udaipur, Rajasthan. The trees were planted in honor of our

clients, partners and well-wishers. This gesture was well appreciated by our clients and we received a huge positive

response.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CONCLUSION

We foresee traction in demand particularly in digital technologies, and are of the firm view that, going forward, the overall

outsourcing sentiment will remain positive, particularly in areas which are our primary focus, namely Travel and

Hospitality, Manufacturing, Healthcare and the Hi-tech segment. According to NASSCOM, the future of the global

technology industry will increasingly be shaped by digital forces. Your company is strongly positioned to partner with

clients in their digital transformation journey and enable their success in this digital era.

We would like to thank all of our employees whose dedication and focused approach has facilitated us in moving closer to

our strategic objectives. We would also like to thank all our clients who have supported us, shown confidence in our

capabilities and trusted us over and above other large service providers in the industry. Lastly, we thank our shareholders

for having confidence in the management's ability.

We have strengthened our base during the current fiscal year and will be growing towards becoming a leading service

provider.

Sincerely,

Sunil Bhatia

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

Suneel Advani

Chairman and Managing Director

Place: Mumbai

Date: 06 June 2015
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GLOBAL PRESENCE
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TEN YEARS FINANCIAL
(CONSOLIDATED)

(All figures in Crores except figures under Other Information and Performance Indicators)`

BLUE STAR INFOTECH LIMITED06

Total Income 270.64 276.57 195.16 129.12 136.17 156.74 145.69 120.83 93.35

Export Sales 235.44 231.95 150.40 89.93 90.55 105.61 130.40 113.03 96.57 73.65

Operating Profit (PBIDT) 29.87 26.69 10.26 9.81 15.35 17.35 19.12 7.57 13.41 8.44

Profits after Tax 18.16 14.87 4.99 3.57 8.40 13.78 15.55 4.91 9.07 4.16

Dividend  (incl. tax) 5.22 4.86 2.43 2.41 3.49 5.85 5.85 2.93 4.62 2.28

Retained Profit 12.94 10.01 2.56 1.16 4.91 7.93 9.70 1.98 4.45 1.88

Paid-Up Capital 10.80 10.39 10.39 10.39 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Reserves 104.63 90.25 78.85 71.87 74.45 69.72 57.32 50.29 48.31 43.87

Shareholders' Funds 115.43 100.64 89.24 82.26 84.45 79.72 67.32 60.29 58.31 53.87

Short-term Investments -

(Liquid)

Cash and Cash Equivalents 34.40 21.01 28.67 22.81 10.65 10.13 11.07 16.40 7.36 4.80

Market Capitalisation 215.46 121.82 58.73 74.98 100.85 112.90 47.95 60.65 93.65 107.00

Number of Shareholders 12,345 13,121 13,439 14,153 14,470 15,213 15,281 15,557 16,379 17,655

Number of Employees 1,036 1,036 900 818 821 795 858 901 828 583

Office Space (Sq. Ft.) 64,000 64,000 64,000 55,000 55,000 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000

Earnings per share (in ) 17.18 14.32 4.80 3.49 8.40 13.78 15.55 4.91 9.06 4.16

Dividend per share (in ) 4.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 5.00 5.00 2.50 4.00 2.00

Book Value per 106.88

Return on Shareholders' 15.73%

Funds

Return on Average 16.81%

Capital Employed

134.43

- 1.13 5.55 17.22 27.51 11.64 - - 2.51

4.00

96.91 85.93 79.21 84.45 79.72 67.32 60.29 58.31 53.87

14.78% 5.59% 4.34% 9.94% 17.29% 23.11% 8.14% 15.55% 7.73%

15.66% 5.82% 4.28% 10.23% 18.74% 24.39% 8.28% 16.17% 7.87%

(Global)

(Basic)`

`

share

2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06

OPERATING RESULTS

FINANCIAL POSITION

OTHER INFORMATION

PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Earnings Per Share ( in )`

129.1
134.4

195.2

No. of Employees

Dividend Per Share ( in )`

Operating Profit ( Crores )`

Total Income ( Crores )`

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

No. of Clients

No. of Clients (>1 Million) No. of Clients (>5 Million)

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

276.6

270.64 1,0361,036

900

818

821

29.9

15.4

9.8

10.3

26.7

17.2

14.3

4.8

3.5

8.4

44

22

3

2

7

1

5

6

8 8

1
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2014-2015 AT A GLANCE

DELIVERY EXCELLENCE

A Fortune Global 500 company (an existing client), chose your company to globally launch a cloud based mobile

security and mobile device management application. This was achieved in record time and your company also

facilitated the client to bring down software testing time from two weeks to two days through automation.

Sold an IP based solution (Mobile Vacation Planner - MVP), an innovative next-gen tablet computer based application,

to one of the world's largest travel providers. The highly interactive application helps travelers plan their itinerary for a

trip or vacation using photos, videos, maps and detailed descriptions of hotels, activities and sightseeing options.

STRATEGIC WINS

AWARDS & RECOGNITION

Blue Star Infotech is ranked among APAC's fastest growing companies in Deloitte's 2014Technology Fast 500

annual list.

The Company was recognized as the Leader in Outsourced Software Development Segment by Zinnov Management

Consulting. The Company has been positioned in the Leadership Zone in the Consumer Software segment and in

Execution Zone in the Enterprise Software segment.

BLUE STAR INFOTECH LIMITED08

PARTNERSHIP

Blue Star Infotech is recognised as a preferred SAS partner in Singapore

Strengthening its expertise in the area of Mobility, Blue Star Infotech entered into a partnership with SAP India, a

subsidiary of SAP AG as their official Mobility partner. This alliance will help Blue Star Infotech explore untapped

opportunities by offering advanced solutions to its existing and prospective customers

Deepening its engagement with one of its largest customers, a leading US based technology corporation, Blue Star

Infotech assisted in a major divestiture.This also led to doubling of its existing team engaged with the client.

Blue Star Infotech entered into a million dollar contract with an existing client, a leading payroll service provider in the

US.The service areas include Business Intelligence/Analytics, Product Development andTesting

An existing client, a US based leading global clinical trial management solutions provider, selected Blue Star Infotech to

provide Business Intelligence and Data Warehousing services. This engagement was an outcome of an earlier BI

strategy roadmap created by BSIL

Partnered with a multi-billion Fortune 500 company, an existing client, by providing travel domain consulting services.

Blue Star Infotech is also deploying projects across 24 of the client's global locations and we have opened up 13 new

service lines for them.
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BLUE STAR INFOTECH IN THE NEWS

BLUE STAR INFOTECH IS
A GOOD INVESTMENT

Blue Star Infotech Ltd was a small cap IT Company a few years back

with a market capitalisation of only Rs 107 crore. The turnaround

started in 2011 when Sunil Bhatia took over as the MD and CEO of the

Company, taking the market capitalisation to nearly Rs 200 crore at

present. With a series of acquisitions in the country and in US, Blue

Star Infotech is focusing on emerging technologies like SMAC (social,

mobility, analytics and cloud). For the financial year 2013-14, the

Company posted a total income of Rs 276 crore, registering 100%

growth over the last three years and a PBT of Rs 22 crore. On a small

equity base of only Rs 10 crore, the EPS is grossly discounted to fair

value. While the new government has announced its plans to build

future cities and empower small and medium enterprises, Blue Star

Infotech is moving fast to offer solutions by building up a base in the

domestic markets. The stock is currently quoting at an attractive

price of Rs 170 and can give handsome return for investors looking

for bargains over the next one year with a price target of Rs 245.

MR. ALOKE GHOSH’S INTERACTION

BUILDING OUR CAPABILITIES
IN DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION SPACE

In an interview withYashVed of IIFL, Sunil Bhatia, CEO & MD, Blue Star

Infotech says “We will continue to invest in building our capabilities

in digital transformation space. The focus would be on

strengthening our internal teams in the related technology space,

spending on R&D and IP based solutions”.

The Company has seen a good growth in our bottom line, though the

topline has remained flat. This is primarily due to our conscious

decision to slowly move from all unremunerative businesses, which

were adding only to the top line, however eroding the profitability.

The Company deal pipeline is good. As emphasized earlier, in

addition to new wins, we would like to focus on key existing

customers. Bringing in innovation and creating value for our diverse

set of clients would be on our top most agenda for the year.

TRANSFORMATION TIME - UNDER
SUNIL BHATIA'S LEADERSHIP,
BLUE STAR INFOTECH IS MOVING AHEAD

Started as a division of Blue Star Group, Blue Star Infotech (Market

Cap: Rs. 182 crore) has had a sedate track record over the last three

decades. However changes are happening in the software company,

triggered by a new team under the leadership of Sunil Bhatia, who

took over as MD & CEO, in mid- April 2011. The Company now figures

in the Global Services 100's list of IT outsourcing providers, for two

years in succession.

A veteran of the IT industry, with extensive stints with global names

like Accenture and IBM, Sunil Bhatia took over as MD and CEO of Blue

Star Infotech in mid-August 2011, after buying a strategic stake in the

Company.“I approached the Advanis and they were happy to let me

have a chance to run the Company”, Bhatia said about his

appointment.

BLUE STAR INFOTECH LTD POSTS 86
PERCENT JUMP IN NET PROFIT IN Q2

MUMBAI: Global software services and solutions provider Blue Star

Infotech Ltd today registered 86 per cent jump in net profit at Rs.5.69

crore in the second quarter ended September against Rs 3.06 crore in

the year-ago period.

The significant rise in PAT is due to improvement in quality of

accounts and revenue mix, a company statement said.

TECHNOLOGY NOW A NECESSITY

FOR T&H INDUSTRY

With advent of niche players in the Indian Travel market, the

ecosystem of Travel and Hospitality Industry in India will witness a

huge change in terms of emergence of new business models. Travel

and Hospitality is one of the biggest revenue generators of e-

commerce arena in India. The existing players face enormous

challenges in terms of changing behavior of existing consumers,

demands and expectations of millennial, advent of new business

models.

Travel and Hospitality players have undergone Digital

transformation in terms of the strategy, structure and culture. The

important enabler of Digital Transformation is technology that

1 2

3
4

5

6

GOT RECOGNIZED AS LEADER IN THE

CONSUMER SOFTWARE SEGMENT
7

Blue Star Infotech Ltd has informed BSE that Zinnov Management

Consulting, a leading Globalization and Market Expansion Advisory

firm has recognized Blue Star Infotech Limited as a leader in the

Consumer Software segment.

The Sunday Guardian , Tuesday June 02, 2014 CNBC Awaaz, September 11, 2014 India Infoline, February 05, 2015

The Hindu Business Line, October 13, 2014

The Economic Times, October 17, 2014

1 2 3

4 5 6

7

Business India, August 04, 2014 Asian Business, January 20, 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSBOARD REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW



CASE STUDIES

BLUE STAR INFOTECH LIMITED10

Blue Star Infotech helped the client to reduce cost of application support and increases revenues with cross browser

compatible Share Point solution

About the Client:

Challenges:

Outcome:

The client is a global provider of technology enhanced clinical trial solutions supporting more than 3300 clinical trials over the

last 29 years.

The client encountered cost escalation in supporting the existing customer facing application and its own internal applications.

The client's existing product was based on SharePoint platform and needed to be compatible with multiple browsers. Client's

internal team lacked the skill to make it cross-browser compatible.The client also faced challenges in scaling up data capture and

analysis process in ClinicalTrial System.

Blue Star Infotech's infrastructure and application support facilitated cost cutting in supporting its customer facing and internal

applications. SharePoint site deployment time was brought down from 2-3 days to a few minutes and the client was able to

enhance its revenue due to wider reach obtained through cross browser compatibility. In addition, Blue Star Infotech's scalable

model for testing application resulted in curtailing cost further by 30%.

Blue Star Infotech helped the client, a leading multinational information technology company to reduce testing

cost by 30% via automated testing

The client is a leading multinational information technology company based in the US, providing hardware and software services

to customers, Small and Medium Businesses (SMBs) and large enterprises including customers in the government, healthcare

and education sectors.

The client wanted to enhance its cloud based application that enables its customers to control and manage a broad range of

devices running on iOS, Android and Windows across different brands in a simple & secure way. The cloud based app addresses

the issue of central monitoring and security challenges particularly for small and medium business segments with limited IT

resources functioning across different devices, brands and operating systems. The client wanted to conduct rigorous testing of

the app before launching it in the global market.

Blue Star Infotech designed a comprehensive testing strategy catering to the client's unique needs that kept error rate to a bare

minimum level in the app. The process involved a combination of manual, performance, automation and security testing

techniques that covered a wide spectrum of OS/device configurations. Blue Star Infotech helped the client to reduce test cycle

time from 2 weeks to 2 days. Blue Star Infotech also set up a full-fledged offshore mobile testing lab that helps the client to save

cost.

About the Client:

Challenges :

Outcome:



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 -15 11

Blue Star Infotech helped one of the world's leading independent commodity trading and logistic company to

streamline business operations leveraging Microsoft Dynamics NAV

About the Client :

Challenges :

Outcome :

The client is one of the world's leading independent commodity trading and logistics company. The company directly employs

over 5,000 people through a network of 65 offices in 36 countries. The company is managed through a global network of group

companies with central hubs and regional offices.

With a heterogeneous setup of applications spread across the globe, the client was experiencing business processes turning

more complex and rendering inefficiencies in day to day business transactions.The client was not able to keep pace with growth,

both organic and inorganic. The client wanted to transform the setup with its installed base of Microsoft Dynamics NAV and was

looking for an expert partner to help them overcome varied challenges -

With standardization of business processes at global level, it became difficult for the client to meet target efficiencies while

facilitating local variations

To accommodate frequent acquisitions with complex change management processes.

In providing solutions accelerators for NAV ERP roll outs; in order to be responsive to business needs & timelines.

In providing exhaustive integration framework to connect peripheral systems with NAV and Centralized document

repository for Redesigned Processes / NAV component documents.

Blue Star Infotech redesigned processes with underlying IT components that were able to support business expectations,

leading to planned efficiencies.

Designed Global Process set with regional variations that enabled quick implementation of global NAV templates and

reduced implementation schedules and cost.

On-going Support was enabled by the BPM Process framework to maintain global and regional variants and scale upto new

changes in a responsive manner while ensuring standardization was maintained at a global level.

Blue Star Infotech's domain expertise in Travel Services enables the client to deploy a stable, defect free Travel &

Lifestyle Service Applications

About the Client

Challenges:

Outcome:

The client is an American multinational financial services corporation. The company is best known for its credit card and

traveler's cheque businesses.

The client wanted to migrate Travel & Lifestyle services product from old legacy platform to new web based application. This will

enable the client's travel agents to provide better customer services and bring in more efficiency by cutting down the servicing

time from 45 minutes to 15 minutes per customer. In addition, the client intended mobile testing of travel websites that were

made available to its customer on phone and also wanted automation solution to test major business workflows in every release.

The client chose Blue Star Infotech because of its extensive experience in travel business. Blue Star Infotech evaluated various

industry recognized tools and suggested the client the right-fit automation tool to automate critical business functions. Blue

Star Infotech helped client to achieve scalability in testing functions – 40% of the critical business functions were automated in

first phase. The client was able to save 30% of its efforts which would have gone in regression testing in moving the services to

new application. Critical business functions tested thoroughly in UAT phase minimized the risk of system failure for the company.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSBOARD REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW



ABOUT THE COMPANY

Part of the well-known Blue Star Group, Blue Star Infotech Ltd. is a stock market listed company with its global headquarters

in Mumbai, India, and with operations in USA, UK, Europe, Singapore, Malaysia, and India. The Company leverages its strong

industry understanding and digital transformation capabilities to develop solutions that can help its clients gain and endure

their competitive advantage. Teams comprising of domain experts, designers and consultants combines the best of

engineering, creativity and technology to deliver a best-in-class solutions.

The Company through its state of the art delivery global centers caters to the technology focused services, solutions and

R&D needs of enterprises globally. The Company also leverages its strong Digital Transformation focus including Analytics,

Mobility and Cloud to enhance the intelligence, reach, responsiveness and efficiency of client's IT infrastructure.

Blue Star Infotech Ltd. is a technology consulting and services company. The Company's
offerings include Outsourced Product Development (OPD+), Digital Transformation, Package
Implementation, Application Development, Maintenance and Testing.

BLUE STAR INFOTECH LTD.

Blue Star Infotech has successfully completed over 800 major IT projects on a wide range of hardware and software platforms.

The Company has delivered over1850product releases for its technology customers worldwide. Its technology labs for Mobility,

Cloud Computing, Analytics and Usability Engineering incubate and propagate new methodologies, standards, tools and

solutions. This along with the Company's SEI CMMi Level 5 and ISO 9001:2008 assessed Quality Assurance processes, assures

world-class standards across all its deliverables.

FOCUSED APPROACH

The Company focuses on a few chosen segments to deliver business-impacting solutions and develop a competitive edge. Over

the last three decades, it has gained extensive experience in delivering cutting edge solutions to customers in select verticals

such asTravel and Hospitality, Hi-tech, Manufacturing, Media and Entertainment and Healthcare.

Additionally, the Company has been actively using the inorganic route to expand reach, skills and scale. In early 2012, it formed a

joint venture with Trisept Technologies LLC and opened a delivery centre in Milwaukee, WI by the name Blue7 Solutions LLC. In

mid-2012, it acquired Infostack Solutions Pte Ltd., a Singapore-based IT professional services company. In 2013, it made a

strategic investment in Activecubes Solutions India Pvt. Ltd. a company specializing in the Decision Management space. Last

year, the Company has acquired the minority stake in Blue7 Solutions LLC which now is wholly owned subsidiary of Blue Star

Infotech (America) Inc.

At Blue Star Infotech, project delivery teams are backed by a strong repository of solutions, accelerators, frameworks and

reusable code bases that the Company has developed over the years. These are further complemented by the solution offerings

of its various partners. This enables the Company to adopt a solution-led approach for solving business issues of its clients. Such

an approach results in faster implementation, adoption of best practices and quicker realisation of business benefits.

SOLUTION-CENTRIC DELIVERY

BLUE STAR INFOTECH LIMITED12

Has more than 1300 professionals developing solutions and managing the IT assets for companies ranging from Fortune

100 organisations to start-ups

Has a Global Delivery Network spanning India, US and Singapore

Was ranked by Zinnov, a leading management consulting firm, as the leader in Outsourced Software Development

segment in 2014

Ranked among APAC's fastest growing companies in Deloitte's 2014 Technology Fast 500
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To gain insights and establish thought leadership in its focus areas, the Company has established labs and Communities of

Practice in areas such as Mobility, Cloud Computing, Analytics and Testing. These help the Company to keep track of both

present-day technologies and disruptive advancements, and examine the application of these to various business scenarios.

The Company has also set up a dedicated AdvancedTechnology Group for the creation of new software solutions and products.

Client comfort and satisfaction is one of the key strategic objectives at Blue Star Infotech. The Company positions its

seasoned industry and technology leaders closer to clients. Complete access to the senior most management is provided for

any escalation. The Company has created new positions like Solutions Architect to efficiently address clients need. A solutions

architect has deep domain knowledge and industry insights and actively engages with the client to understand their

current/potential challenges and future business needs.

The Company has developed strategic partnership with industry leaders, which allows it to expand its service offerings,

enhance distribution reach or gain deeper insights in its focus areas. The partnerships also help the Company to expose its

consultants to the global best practices, ensure that its employee remain abreast of contemporary tools and technologies,

and undergo the requisite certification processes in order to ensure top-quality services to its customers.

Blue Star Infotech backed by its state of art and seamlessly integrated delivery centres located in India, USA and Singapore,

provides high flexibility to its customers. The Company allow its clients to conceptualize a sourcing strategy in accordance with

their business requirement, ensure high quality standards and also accrue significant cost benefits. Through an optimal mix of

Onsite, Onshore and Offshore (OOO) model the Company curtails the turnaround time and also provide scalability options

based on the clients business needs.

Microsoft, Oracle, SAS, SAP, QlikTech, Hewlett-Packard, AmazonWeb Services, Cisco,Verifaya, HPVertica

STRONG R&D CAPABILITIES

CUSTOMER-FOCUSED ORGANISATION

STRONG PARTNERSHIPS WITH LEADING TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCT COMPANIES

GLOBAL DELIVERY MODEL

STRATEGIC PARTNERS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSBOARD REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW



Suneel Advani is a double graduate in Electrical Engineering and Economics from the Massachusetts Institute

ofTechnology, USA. He also holds a degree in Law from Mumbai University. Mr. Advani joined Blue Star Limited

in March 1969 as a Management Trainee. He held various responsible positions in Blue Star Limited before

joining its Board in 1983 as an Executive Director. He was then elevated to the position of President and Vice

Chairman of Blue Star Limited in 1984 and was re-designated as Vice Chairman and Managing Director in

2005. He was the Executive Vice Chairman from April 2012 to March 2014 whereupon he is the Non-executive

Vice Chairman of Blue Star Limited.

Mr. Advani set up the International Software Exports Division in Blue Star Limited in 1983 and oversaw its

operations from inception. This Division was later spun off and incorporated as Blue Star Infotech Limited

where he was appointed as the Chairman of the Company in 1998 and appointed as the Executive Chairman

and Managing Director in June 2005. He was re-appointed for a five year term in June 2012.

(Member of Stakeholders' Grievance Committee and Chairman of Compensation Committee and Corporate

Social Responsibility Committee)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SUNEEL  ADVANI
Chairman and Managing Director
(Promoter and Executive Director -DIN 00001709)

BLUE STAR INFOTECH LIMITED14

SUNIL BHATIA

(Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director - DIN 03424622)
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

Sunil Bhatia has over 26 years' experience in the InformationTechnology industry across the globe. He has held

leadership positions at global giants such as IBM, Accenture and Satyam, in the US and Asia, where he has

managed large businesses and led global teams. Prior to Blue Star Infotech, he served as a Partner with

Accenture in USA, and earlier in Accenture Consulting Practice in India, where he has advised several large

Indian corporations on globalization, expansion and strategic reviews. At IBM Singapore, he has spent over

seven years building the business and strategic relationships in the Financial Services and worked across 10

Asian countries. At Satyam, he led and managed global strategic accounts in the US.

He holds an MBA from Mumbai University. His professional qualifications include executive programs at

Wharton and INSEAD. He is a charter member ofTiE at SiliconValley.

Mr. Bhatia was appointed on the Board in April 2011.

(Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee)

Ashok Advani is an MBA from the Harvard Graduate School of Business Administration, an Electrical Engineer

from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA and B.Sc. Honours from Mumbai University. He joined

Blue Star Limited in 1969 after working for three years in the USA. He held a variety of senior positions in

manufacturing and finance in Blue Star Limited before becoming a Director in 1979. He was appointed

President and Vice Chairman in 1981 and took over as Chairman and Chief Executive of Blue Star Limited in

1984. He was re-designated as the Chairman and Managing Director of Blue Star Limited in 2005, the Executive

Chairman in 2009 and is currently the Non-Executive Chairman from April 2012.

He has been a member of the Local Advisory Board of The Chase Manhattan Bank and a past President of the

Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

Mr. Advani is theVice Chairman of Blue Star Infotech Limited since 1998.

(Chairman of Stakeholders' Grievance Committee)

ASHOK  ADVANI
Vice Chairman
Promoter and Non Independent Director - DIN 00001372)(



SURESH TALWAR

(Independent Director - DIN 00001456)

Director

Suresh Talwar is a Commerce and Law graduate and specializes in areas of corporate law and related fields. He

is a legal counsel to various Indian and multinational corporations and banks. He is the co-founder and former

partner of the law firm M/s. Talwar, Thakore and Associates. Prior to this, he was associated with M/s. Crawford

Bayley and Company as a Senior Partner.

Mr. Talwar has a rich experience of serving as an Independent Director on the Board of various listed / private

companies such as Larsen & Toubro Ltd., Greaves Cotton and Co Ltd., Blue Star Ltd., etc. He is currently on the

board of several leading companies such as Merck, Sandvik Asia, Philip Finance and Investment Services and

Biocon amongst others.

Mr. Talwar is a Board member of Blue Star Infotech Limited since the year 2000. He was re-appointed as an

Independent Director of the Company for a term of five years effective July 2014.

(Member of Audit Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Compensation Committee and

Nomination and Remuneration Committee)

23

SANJAY VASWANI

(Promoter and Non Independent Director - DIN 00369909)
Director

SanjayVaswani holds an MBA from theWharton School of Business at the University of Pennsylvania and a BBA

summa cum laude from the University of Texas in Austin. He has worked for Intel Corporation and as an

associate in McKinsey and Company, Inc. in Los Angeles. Mr. Vaswani is highly knowledgeable about the IT

industry and has set up his own consulting firm in 1990. The firm provides consultancy and advisory services

to hi-tech companies in the USA. He is also on the board of Brocade Communications Systems, Inc., USA.

Mr.Vaswani joined the Board of Blue Star Infotech Limited in the year 2000.
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DR. PRAKASH HEBALKAR

(Independent Director - DIN 00370499)
Director

Dr. Prakash Hebalkar is a Doctor of Science in Computer Science and Economics from the Massachusetts

Institute of Technology, USA. He has worked with IBM, USA and thereafter with Tata Burroughs / Unisys as

Senior Vice President. He was instrumental in forming and building up the joint venture ofTata and Unisys as a

successful software and consultancy services activity. He has been associated with several leading venture

finance organizations and financial institutions and is serving on the board of Mahindra Lifespace Developers

Limited as an Independent Director.

Dr. Hebalkar joined the Board of Blue Star Infotech Limited in the year 2000. He was re-appointed as an

Independent Director of the Company for a term of five years effective 23July 2014.

(Member of Stakeholders' Grievance Committee, Compensation Committee, Audit Committee, and Chairman

of Nomination and Remuneration Committee)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSBOARD REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW
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NARESH MALHOTRA

(Independent Director -DIN 00200322)
Director

Naresh Malhotra is a Commerce graduate from St. Xavier's College, University of Calcutta and a Chartered

Accountant. His functional expertise is in systems, corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, marketing

and facilitating start-ups. He started his career with Blue Star Limited in 1971 and thereafter worked overseas

for 15 years with ICI, Unilever Group, Colgate Palmolive and Bukhatir Investments.

Mr. Malhotra was the President and a member of the Supervisory Board of the U B Group during 1986 –1992. In

1993 Mr. Malhotra joined KPMG as one of their Founding Partners and was the Managing Director, Corporate

Finance and practice leader of the Real Estate, Hospitality and Retail businesses. He was also an advisor to GIV

Management Inc., a Washington based Venture Capital Company and was an Operating Partner with Sequoia

Capital India.

Mr. Malhotra is currently on the board of Onmobile Global Limited, Modern Family Doctor Private Limited,

DERIV IT Solutions Pte. Ltd. and several other companies.

Mr. Malhotra joined the Board of Blue Star Infotech Limited in the year 2003. He was re-appointed as an

Independent Director of the Company for a term of five years effective July 2014.

(Chairman of Audit Committee and member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee)

23

K P T KUTTY

(Independent Director - DIN 00494661)
Director

K P T Kutty is a Company Secretary by profession and has over three decades of experience in the

profession. He held various responsible positions in Blue Star Ltd.'s Legal & Secretarial Department since

1980 before taking over as the Company Secretary in 1994. Mr. Kutty has also worked with Forbes Forbes

Campbell & Co. Limited and Reserve Bank of India prior to joining Blue Star Limited.

He was a Director of Blue Star Infotech Limited from May 1998 to January 2000 and then from April 2011.

Mr. Kutty was re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of five years effective

July 2014.

(Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee)

23

KALPANA TRIVEDI

Additional Director
(Non-executive / Non-Promoter / Woman Director - DIN 07150502)

16

Kalpana Trivedi holds an MBA from Sydenham Institute of Management Studies and Research, and a

Master degree in Economics from University of Mumbai. She has more than 23 years' of experience in

several segments including sales, marketing, advertising and research. Starting her career in 1992 with

global advertising firms such as Lintas and Chaitra Leo Burnett, she managed prominent accounts like

Balsara, TCL, and Hindustan Lever. She was also engaged with a production house and hosted popular

women's issue-based talk shows on Star Plus. Ms. Trivedi has a strong penchant for entrepreneurship and

social activities and has launched several new lines of businesses.Currently, she is a Director in Social

Services Enterprise since November 2012. Her role involves consulting, facilitating and promoting the

services of a variety of NGOs in different areas.

She was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the Company on 27 March 2015.

She has offered her candidature as an Independent Director for the approval of the members at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Suneel Advani

Ashok Advani

Sunil Bhatia
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Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
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Director

Independent
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Keyuri Singh

RajeshVarrier

Chairman and Managing Director

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
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Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Global Delivery Head

Vice President - Human Resources
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Dear MeMbers,

Your directors present herewith the eighteenth annual report on the business and operations of the company together 
with the audited financial Statements for the year ended 31 march 2015. 

1. FINaNCIaL resULTs:

 the company’s operating performance during the year ended 31 march 2015 as compared to the previous year is 
indicated in brief below: (` in lacs)

Consolidated standalone

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
Total income 27,064 27,657 14,415 13,234
Profit before interest, depreciation and tax 2,987 2,669 1,959 1,844
depreciation and amortisation 438 380 349 339
Profit before tax 2,474 2,184 1,559 1,458
Provision for tax 627 592 390 420
Profit brought forward from previous year 1,817 1,487 1,169 1,038
Balance brought forward from previous year 6,449 5,552 6,207 5,759
Profits available for appropriation 8,266 7,038 7,376 6,797
Less: transfer to General reserve 117 104 117 104
 translation adjustment (net) 63 – 68 –
 dividend (Proposed) 432 415 432 415
 tax on Proposed dividend 90 71 90 71
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 7,564 6,449 6,669 6,207

 Publication of results of subsidiary companies

 Section 129 (3) of the companies act, 2013, requires the company to attach along with the financial statement, a 
separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of its subsidiaries. the performance 
and financial position of the subsidiaries and associate of the company, included in the consolidated financial 
statement, forms part of the annual report and is an integral part of the directors’ report. 

 the Balance Sheet, Profit and loss account, report of the Board of directors and the report of the auditors of the 
subsidiary companies have not been attached with the Balance Sheet of the company. If any member so desires, 
the company will make available these documents / details upon specific request by the member of the company. 

2. DIVIDeND

 Your directors are pleased to recommend payment of a dividend of ` 4/- per equity share of ` 10/- each during the 
year subject to the approval of the shareholders. (Previous year ` 4 per share of ` 10/- each).

3. OPeraTING resULTs aND bUsINess

 during the year under review, total income of the company was ` 144 crores as compared to ` 132 crores in the 
previous financial year, i.e. an increase of 9%. on a consolidated basis, total income decreased from ` 276 crores to 
` 271 crores, a decline of around 2%.

 the net profit after tax on a standalone basis for the year ended 31 march 2015 was ̀  11.69 crores as against ̀  10.38 
crores in the previous year, an increase of around 13%. on a consolidated basis, the net profit after tax for the year 
ended 31 march 2015 was ` 18.17 crores as compared to ` 14.87 crores for the previous financial year marking an 
increase of 22% on a year to year basis.

DIreCTOrs’ rePOrT
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4. DIreCTOrs aND KeY MaNaGerIaL PersONNeL

 the Board of directors had, on the recommendation of the nomination and remuneration committee appointed 
ms. Kalpana trivedi as an additional director of the company with effect from 30 march 2015. her appointment 
as an Independent director for a period of 5 years will be subject to the members’ approval at the annual General 
meeting.

 the erstwhile chief financial officer and company Secretary mr. v Sudarshan resigned from the services of the 
company effective 31 may 2014. mr. aloke Ghosh was appointed the chief financial officer and company Secretary 
of the company effective 2 June 2014.

5. a sTaTeMeNT ON DeCLaraTION bY INDePeNDeNT DIreCTOrs

 a statement on declaration of Independence required to be made under section 149 of the companies act, 2013 
has been obtained from each of the Independent directors confirming their independence.

6. bOarD eVaLUaTION

 Pursuant to the provisions of the companies act, 2013 and clause 49 of the listing agreement, the Board has 
carried out an annual performance evaluation of the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working 
of its audit, nomination and remuneration and other committees. the criteria on the basis of which the evaluation 
has been carried out has been explained in the corporate Governance report.

7. POLICY ON NOMINaTION aND reMUNeraTION

 the Board on the recommendation of the nomination and remuneration committee has framed a policy for 
selection and appointment of directors, Senior management and their remuneration. the highlights of the policy 
on nomination and remuneration is provided as a part of the directors’ report. the detailed policy is available on 
the website of the company.

8. MeeTINGs OF THe bOarD

 the Board of directors met four (4) times on 14 may 2014, 23 July 2014, 17 october 2014 and 19 January 2015 
during the financial year 2014-15.

9. sUbsIDIarY COMPaNIes aND CONsOLIDaTeD FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTs

 the company at present has the following subsidiary companies:

 a) blue star Infotech america, Inc. (bsIa)

  the wholly owned subsidiary of the company, Blue Star Infotech america, Inc. achieved a total income of 
uS$ 196,35,989 (equivalent of ` 120.07 crores) for the financial year ending 31 march 2015 as compared to 
uS$ 2,21,38,707 (equivalent of ` 134.19 crores) for the previous year. despite a lower turnover, essentially 
due to reduction in low and negative margin business, a concerted effort to keep costs under check, the 
company reported a net profit of uS$ 2,74,867 (equivalent of ` 1.68 crores) this year compared to a net loss 
of uS$ 2,49,867 (equivalent of ` 1.50 crores) for the previous year marking a turnaround in profits after four 
consecutive years. the performance of the subsidiary is satisfactory and expected to progress in the ensuing 
year as well.

  Your company made an additional investment of uS$ 5,00,000 (equivalent of ` 3.04 crores) at par in the 
equity of the subsidiary in order to further the growth, operations and business of the company. with this 
investment, the paid-up capital of the subsidiary as at year end is uS$ 23,50,000 (18,50,000 in the previous year).  
the investment is in shares of uS$ 1 each. 
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 b) blue star Infotech (UK) Ltd.

  the total income of this wholly owned subsidiary, Blue Star Infotech (uK) limited was £ 23,92,092 (equivalent 
of ` 23.59 crores) for the financial year ended 31 march 2015 as compared to £ 23,04,183 (equivalent of ` 23 
crores) for the previous year. the company registered a net profit of £ 207,016 (equivalent of ` 2.04 crores) for 
the financial year ending on 31 march 2015 compared to net profit of £ 2,15,409 (equivalent of ` 2.15 crores) 
for the previous year. the shrinkage in profits is due to addition of manpower in the sales team. the business is 
stable.

 c) blue star Infotech (singapore) Pte. Limited

  the total income of the wholly owned subsidiary, Blue Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte. limited was SGd 
30,75,977 (equivalent of ` 14.62 crores) for the financial year ended 31 march 2015 as compared to SGd 
21,67,203 (equivalent of ` 10.45 crores) for the previous year. the subsidiary registered a net profit of SGd 
476,804 (equivalent of ` 2.27 crores) for the financial year ending on 31 march 2015 compared to a net profit 
of SGd 3,46,802 (equivalent of ` 1.92 crores) for the previous year. 

  Blue Star Infotech Singapore Pte. ltd. has two wholly owned subsidiaries, one each, in Singapore and malaysia 
viz. Blue Star Infostack Solutions Pte. ltd. and Blue Star Infostack (malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. which caters to the 
Banking and Insurance sector. the performance of the subsidiary is satisfactory. Blue Star Infotech Singapore 
Pte. ltd. has made an additional investment of rm 500,000 in the equity of Blue Star Infostack (malaysia) Sdn. 
Bhd. in order to further the growth, operations and business of the company. with this investment, the paid-up 
capital of the subsidiary as at year end is rm 1,000,000.

10. DIreCTOrs’ resPONsIbILITY sTaTeMeNT

 the directors would like to inform the members that the audited accounts for the financial year ended 31 march 
2015 are in full conformity with the requirement of the companies act, 2013. the directors hereby confirm that:

 (a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

 (b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

 (c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 (d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

 (e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

 (f ) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; 

11. reserVaTIONs aND/Or QUaLIFICaTIONs IN THe sTaTUTOrY aUDITOrs’ rePOrT 

 the directors would like to inform that there were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the 
auditors of the company in their audit report.

12. reserVaTIONs aND/Or QUaLIFICaTIONs IN THe seCreTarIaL aUDITOrs’ rePOrT 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the companies act, 2013 and the companies (appointment and remuneration 
of managerial Personnel) rules, 2014, the company has appointed m/s. Jayshree dagli & associates, Practising company 
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Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial audit of the company. the report of the Secretarial audit report provided in the 
annual report forms part of the directors’ report. the directors would like to inform that there were no qualifications, 
reservations or adverse remarks made by the Secretarial auditors of the company in their audit report.

13. DeTaILs OF sIGNIFICaNT aND MaTerIaL OrDers PasseD bY THe reGULaTOrs Or COUrTs Or TrIbUNaLs

 there were no orders passed by any regulators or courts or tribunals which can impact the going concern status 
and the company’s operations in future. hence, the company has no information to furnish in this regard.

14. LOaNs aND GUaraNTees UNDer seCTION 186 OF THe COMPaNIes aCT, 2013

 Particulars of loans and Guarantees covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the companies act, 2013 forms 
part of the directors’ report and is provided in the annual report. 

15. ParTICULars OF CONTraCTs aND arraNGeMeNTs UNDer seCTION 188 OF THe COMPaNIes aCT, 2013

 the Particulars of the contracts and arrangements, provided in form aoc 2, forms part of the annual report and is 
an integral part of the directors’ report. 

16. ParTICULars OF eMPLOYees

 Information as per provisions of section 197(12) of the companies act 2013, read with rule 5(1) of the companies 
(appointment and remuneration of managerial Personnel) rules, 2014, and the names of every employee employed 
throughout the financial year and in receipt of ` 60 lakhs or more, or employed for part of the year and in receipt 
of ` 5 lakhs or more a month, under rule 5(2) of the companies (appointment and remuneration of managerial 
Personnel) rules, 2014, is a part of the Board’s report. however, this information is not being provided as part of the 
annual report but will be available to the shareholders on request to the company Secretary.

 It may be noted that particulars of employees posted and working in a country outside India, not being directors 
or their relatives, drawing more than ` 60 lakhs per financial year or ` 5 lakhs per month, are not circulated to the 
members in the Board’s report, but such particulars shall be filed with the registrar of companies while filing the 
financial statement and Board reports:

 Particulars shall be made available to any shareholder on a specific request made by them in writing before the 
date of such annual General meeting wherein financial statements for the relevant financial year are proposed 
to be adopted by shareholders and such particulars shall be made available by the company within three days 
from the date of receipt of such request from shareholders and in case of request received even after the date of 
completion of annual General meeting, such particulars shall be made available to the shareholders within seven 
days from the date of receipt of such request.

17. MaTerIaL CHaNGes aND COMMITMeNTs

 there are no material changes and commitments other than what is already stated in the financials which will affect 
the financial position of the company during the period 31 march 2015 till the date of the report.

18. CONserVaTION OF eNerGY, TeCHNOLOGY absOrPTION, FOreIGN eXCHaNGe earNINGs aND OUTGO

 Information as per Section 134(3)(m) of the companies act 2013 read with rule 8 of the companies (accounts) 
rules, 2014, relating to the conservation of energy, technology, absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgoings respectively, is annexed to and forms part of this report.

19. rIsK MaNaGeMeNT

 the company has adopted a risk management policy which is elaborated in the management discussion and 
analysis report which is part of the annual report and forms part of the directors’ report.
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20. COrPOraTe sOCIaL resPONsIbILITY INITIaTIVes

 the company was required to spend ` 24.83 lakhs by 31 march 2015 towards charitable and social causes, as part 
of its commitment to corporate Social responsibility. the Board decided to expend these funds in support of the 
hrd minister’s nationwide campaign of “Swachh Bharat/ Swachh vidyalaya” to build toilets in schools. Since the 
process of identifying nGos specialised in this field has taken more time than anticipated, these funds could not be 
expended in the financial year 2014-15.

 the report on cSr activities is provided in the annual report and forms part of the directors’ report.

21. INVesTMeNTs

 the company invests its surplus funds in debt based broad-based mutual funds or with reputed scheduled banks 
in liquid funds or short-term deposits, respectively, which are considered safe. 

22. DIreCTOrs

 mr. Sanjay vaswani, non-executive-Promoter director of the company is liable to retire by rotation. 

 In accordance with the provisions of sections 152 of the companies act, 2013, mr. Sanjay vaswani, director retires 
by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for reappointment at the ensuing annual General meeting. the profile 
of the director is stated in the explanatory statement to the notice of the annual General meeting.

23. eMPLOYees sTOCK OPTION PLaN (esOP)

 disclosures required to be made under SeBI (employee Stock option Scheme and employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 eSoP and companies act, 2013 are given in note 2.1 of the notes to the financial 
Statements, forming part of the accounts. the diluted ePS on considering unvested eSoPs is ` 9.24 per share as on 
31 march 2015.

 a brief summary of eSoPs is provided below:

sr. 
No.

Particulars esOP scheme 2003 (amended 2015)

1 options granted 15,18,000 (Including eSoP’s issued against lapsed 
options). outstanding eSoP’s at no point of time have 
exceeded 14,71,000 grants as against 15,00,000 grants 
approved by shareholders.

2 options vested 4,74,375

3 options exercised 4,15,075

4 vested and unexercised 49,400

5 options lapsed 1,17,525

6 the exercise price ` 60 – grants made on 31 august 2012

` 57 – grants made on 29 march 2013

` 52 – grants made on 29 may 2013

` 83 – grants made on 18 december 2013

` 188 – grants made on 18 december 2014 

7 variation of terms of options nil

8 money realised by exercise of options ` 2,53,74,025

9 total number of options in force 9,85,400
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sr. 
No.

Particulars esOP scheme 2003 (amended 2015)

10 employee wise details of options granted to
a. key managerial personnel; Sunil Bhatia-chief executive officer and managing 

director (982,000)

aloke Ghosh-chief financial officer and company 
Secretary (20,000)

b. any other employee who receives a grant in 
any one year of option amounting to 5% or 
more of options granted during that year.

nIl

c. identified employees who were granted 
option, during any one year, equal to or 
exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding 
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the 
company at the time of grant;

Sunil Bhatia-chief executive officer and managing 
director (982,000)

nishith mathur-chief operating officer (226,000)

24. aUDITOrs

 m/s walker, chandiok & co. llP, (formerly walker, chandiok & co) chartered accountants, (firm registration no.: 
001076n) mumbai, have been appointed as the Statutory auditors of the company in the annual General meeting 
held on 23 July 2014. the company has placed the matter relating to their appointment, for ratification of members in 
the ensuing annual General meeting, for the residual portion of their term. a written certificate from the auditors has 
been obtained by the company to the effect that the re-appointment, if made, would be in accordance with the limits 
specified under section 139 of the companies act, 2013 read with section 142 of the companies act, 2013. 

25. aUDIT COMMITTee

 the composition of the audit committee is covered in the corporate Governance report forming part of the 
Board’s report. the Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the audit committee to the Board.

26. INTerNaL CONTrOL sYsTeMs aND THeIr aDeQUaCY

 the company has an Internal control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. 
the scope and authority of the Internal audit (Ia) function is pre-defined. the internal auditor function is entrusted 
to an independent firm of chartered accountants of repute. to maintain its objectivity and independence, the 
Internal auditors report to the chairman of the audit committee of the Board.

 the Internal auditors monitor and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the company, 
its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the company and 
its subsidiaries. Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their 
respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon 
are presented to the audit committee of the Board.

27. WHIsTLe bLOWer POLICY

 the company has a vigil mechanism named the whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and 
mismanagement, if any.

 this Policy of the company allows for disclosure by employees, customers and/or third-party intermediaries of such 
matters internally, without fear of reprisal, discrimination or adverse employment consequences, and also permits 
the company to address such disclosures or complaints by taking appropriate action, including but not limited to, 
disciplining or terminating the employment and/or services of those responsible.
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 the whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the company.

 during the year, no instances of fraud on the company or by the company were reported. 

28. COrPOraTe GOVerNaNCe

 the company has complied with the recommendations of the corporate Governance code as provided in clause 
49 of the listing agreement with the stock exchanges. 

 a separate section on corporate Governance, together with a certificate from the company’s auditors confirming 
compliance, is set out separately, forming part of this report.

29. MaNaGeMeNT DIsCUssION aND aNaLYsIs rePOrT

 the management discussion and analysis report has been attached to the annual report and forms part of the 
directors’ report.

30. eXTraCT OF aNNUaL reTUrN

 the details forming part of the extract of the annual return is annexed to and forms part of the directors’ report.

31. GreeN INITIaTIVe IN COrPOraTe GOVerNaNCe 

 Pursuant to the “Green Initiative in corporate Governance” by the ministry of corporate affairs in allowing paperless 
compliances, the company has implemented the policy of sending the notice with Balance Sheet, Profit and loss 
account, auditor’s report, director’s report and explanatory Statement etc. through email to those shareholders 
whose email addresses are registered with the company’s registrar. out of 12,345 shareholders, 4,424 shareholders 
(around 36%) have opted for receiving documents in electronic mode as of 31 march 2015. 

32. aCKNOWLeDGeMeNT

 the Board places on record their sincere acknowledgement of the support from all the stakeholders of the company 
viz. clients, vendors, Bankers, employees and other Business associates etc. for the support received from them 
during the year.

For and on behalf of the board of Directors

 suneel advani
Mumbai Chairman and Managing Director
14 May 2015 blue star Infotech Limited
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date : 14 may 2015.

to,

The Members,
bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD
Mumbai.

our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. we have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. the verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. we believe that the processes and practices we followed, provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. we have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of accounts of the 
company.

4. wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. the compliance of provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility 
of management. our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. the Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

for JaYsHree DaGLI & assOCIaTes
company Secretaries

JaYsHree s. JOsHI
F.C.s.1451 C.P.487
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Form No. Mr-3

seCreTarIaL aUDIT rePOrT

for the fInancIal Year ended 31 march 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

to, 

The Members,  
bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD, Mumbai.

we have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD (hereinafter called “the company”). Secretarial audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, where by report that in our opinion, the company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 march 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, 
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

(a)  we have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD (“the company”) for the financial year ended on 31 march 2015 according to the 
provisions of: 

 1. the companies act, 2013 (the act) and the rules made thereunder and the companies act, 1956 to the extent 
applicable;

 2. the Securities contracts (regulation) act, 1956 (‘Scra’) and the rules made thereunder; 

 3. the depositories act, 1996 and the regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 4. foreign exchange management act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
overseas direct Investment; 

 5. the following regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and exchange Board of India act, 
1992 (‘SeBI act’):- 

  (a)  the Securities and exchange Board of India (Substantial acquisition of Shares and takeovers) regulations, 
2011; 

  (b) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider trading) regulations, 1992; 

  (c) the Securities and exchange Board of India (registrars to an Issue and Share transfer agents) regulations, 
1993 regarding the companies act and dealing with client; 

  (d)  the Securities and exchange Board of India (employee Stock option Scheme and employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; and the Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based employee 
Benefits) regulations, 2014;

 6. Information technology act, 2000.
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(B) we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the listing agreements entered into by the 
company with BSe limited and national Stock exchange of India limited.

 during the period under review the company has generally complied with the provisions of the acts, rules, 
regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

 during the period under review provisions of the following regulations (as enumerated in the prescribed format of 
form mr-3)were not applicable to the company:

 (i) the Securities and exchange Board of India (delisting of equity Shares) regulations, 2009;

 (ii) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) regulations, 1998.

 (iii) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue of capital and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2009;

 (iv) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of debt Securities) regulations, 2008;

 (v)  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of company Secretaries of India approved by the central Govt. to 
be effective from 1 July 2015, hence not to be considered / not required to be certified.

We further report that 

the Board of directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive directors, non-executive 
directors and Independent directors. however, to comply with the Provisions of Section 149 of the companies act, 2013, 
in respect of appointment of a woman director, ms. Kalpana trivedi, was appointed as an additional director through 
the Board’s circular resolution passed on 27 march 2015. Pending the approval of the members of the company for 
appointing her as an Independent director, in our opinion, the balancing of constitution of the Board as per clause 49 
of the listing agreement is disturbed. we are informed by the company’s management that she has declared herself 
to be eligible for being appointed as an Independent director by the company and that a resolution to appoint her as 
an Independent director is proposed to be placed for members’ approval at the ensuing annual General meeting. the 
changes in the composition of the Board of directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the relevant act.

adequate notice had been given to all directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance and that a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

unanimous decisions were carried through as there were no cases of dissent of any director in respect of any decision 
and was accordingly captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in place in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines as mentioned herein above. 

We further report that during the audit period the company hasissued and allotted 4,15,000 equity Shares of ` 10/- 
each at premium to BSIl-Key employee Stock option Scheme trust.

For JaYsHree DaGLI & assOCIaTes
company Secretaries

Place : mumbai JaYsHree s. JOsHI
date : 14 may 2015 F.C.s.1451 C.P.487
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DeTaILs OF LOaNs aND GUaraNTees UNDer seCTION 186 OF THe COMPaNIes aCT, 2013

Particulars of loans and Guarantees are given below:-

sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Guarantor

Guarantee 
availed by

Nature of facility remarks

1 Blue Star 
Infotech ltd

trisept 
technologies 
llc.

deferred payment guarantee 
of uS$ 1 mn (approx. ` 6 cr) 
for a period up to 24 months 
commencing 1 april 2014 to 
31 march 2016

this is a security for deferred payment consideration 
by Blue Star Infotech america Inc. (100% subsidiary 
of the company) to buy-out the interest in Blue7 
Solutions llc from trisept technologies llc, uSa. 
current obligation as on 31 march 2015 is uS$ 
576,620. (around ` 3.57 cr)

2 Blue Star 
Infotech ltd

Blue Star 
Infotech 
america Inc.

Standby letter of credit in 
favour of an overseas bank for 
an amount not exceeding $3 
million (approx. ` 18 cr) for a 
period of one year, subject to 
renewal. 

this guarantee is provided in order to fund the 
working capital needs of Blue Star Infotech 
america Inc. current obligation as on 31 march 
2015 is uS$ 3 million. (around ` 18 cr)

Particulars pursuant to Companies (accounts) rules, 2014

(a) Conservation of energy-

 the nature of the company’s operations entails a very low level of energy consumption. the company has therefore 
not initiated utilising any alternate source of energy. adequate measures have, however, been taken to conserve 
energy by using energy efficient computing devices, regulating the air conditioning and by use of energy saving 
lighting systems.

(B) Technology absorption-

 the company has an advanced technologies Group which is working on several products in the travel and 
hospitality domain. research and development activities are in progress to develop applications such as 
iroadGenie, imapGenie, mobile vacation Planner, Smarttravel etc. these software products are being developed 
by teams from our existing delivery setup. the company believes that it will be benefitted from developing unique 
product offerings. Your company has submitted an application to the Patent office, Government of India, for grant 
of patent under the title method and System for planning a vacation based on user preferences titled “mobile 
vacation Planner”. 

 mobile vacation Planner is an experiential travel planning solution that helps consumers plan a vacation using 
a combination of geographical, weather, location, attraction, and social information. mobile vacation Planner 
focuses on providing the ultimate travel experience to the consumer unlike the traditional model that focus on the 
reservation process. mobile vacation Planner’s innovative features include deployment on iPad using a dynamic 
and visually compelling graphical user interface, use of travel experience video and a variety of media to educate, 
enlighten, and excite travellers about the potential experiences at various destinations and interests available at 
those destinations. the company has allocated a sum of approximately `2.28 crores on development costs for its 
research and development activities.

 we are in the process of developing an invention code named “Smartretreat”, a Self-Service Personalized mobile 
concierge Solution which is a revolutionary tablet based mobile app that acts as a “Self Service” mobile concierge 
Solution for hotel Guests. Smartretreat improves guest experience by delivering personalized services at the swipe 
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of the tablet and allows guests to explore the hotel property and local attractions, no matter where the guest is 
located within the hotel. the filing of the application with the patent authorities is under process. 

(c) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-

 a.  activities relating to exports; initiatives taken to increase exports; development of new export markets 
for products and services and export plans

     over the years, we have established a direct marketing network around the world, including north america, 
Singapore, malaysia and europe. these offices are staffed with the company personnel, who sell the company’s 
Services to clients.

   we serve our global clientele through offices in Santa clara (ca), milwaukee (wI) and new Jersey (nJ) in 
uSa, london in europe and Singapore and malaysia in asia Pacific. we also have business associates in north 
america and continental europe. 

 b.  Total foreign exchange earned and used

   the details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo are disclosed in note number 2.24 of the notes to the 
financial Statements.

 c. Forex management Policy.

   to hedge against volatility on the forex market, your company has adopted a balanced hedging policy which 
combines forward exchange contracts with options up to certain levels. this policy is expected to minimise 
risks arising from foreign exchange fluctuations.
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ParTICULars OF CONTraCTs/ arraNGeMeNTs MaDe WITH reLaTeD ParTIes

“this form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the companies act, 2013 including certain arms length 
transactions under third proviso thereto “      

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis 

there were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31 march 2015 which were 
not in arm’s length.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

the details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended 31 march 2015 
are as follows:

` in Lakhs

sr. No. Name(s) of the related party Nature of  
relationship

Date of approval by 
board / audit  

Committee

Duration of the 
contracts

salient 
terms 

amount in  
` Lakhs

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

1 Investment in equity in subsidiary Company

1.1 Blue Star Infotech america Inc. Subsidiary company 17 october 2013 not applicable at face value  303.55 

2 rendering of Services

2.1 Blue Star Infostack Solutions Pte. 
ltd.

Second level 
Subsidiary company

14 may 2014 1 april 2012 onwards as per 
transfer 
pricing 
guidelines

 1.92 

2.2 Blue Star Infotech (uK) limited Subsidiary company 14 may 2014 1 april 2012 onwards  1,433.00 

2.3 Blue Star Infotech america Inc. Subsidiary company 14 may 2014 1 april 2012 onwards  4,853.33 

2.4 Blue Star Infotech Business 
Intelligence and analytics Pvt. ltd.

associate company 23 July 2014 1 october 2014 onwards  300.00 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  20.36 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  3.37 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  22.29 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  15.45 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  14.83 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  10.79 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  39.33 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  13.48 

19 January 2015 30 march 2015 onwards  12.36 

19 January 2015 31 march 2015 onwards  6.20 

2.5 Blue Star Infotech Singapore Pte. 
limited. 

Subsidiary company 14 may 2014 1 april 2012 onwards  1,101.65 

2.6 Blue Star limited common - Promoters 
/ directors / 
management / major 
shareholder

14 may 2014 22 July 2014 onwards  33.71 

14 may 2014 25 July 2014 onwards  3.70 

14 may 2014 23 June 2014 onwards  7.30 

14 may 2014 26 June 2014 onwards  61.08 

14 may 2014 27 June 2014 onwards  5.90 

23 July 2014 29 September 2014 
onwards

 14.05 

23 July 2014 1 october 2014 onwards  19.10 
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` in Lakhs

sr. No. Name(s) of the related party Nature of  
relationship

Date of approval by 
board / audit  

Committee

Duration of the 
contracts

salient 
terms 

amount in  
` Lakhs

23 July 2014 14 october 2014 
onwards

 39.89 

17 october 2014 4 november 2014 
onwards

 45.06 

17 october 2014 7 november 2014 
onwards

 6.74 

17 october 2014 21 november 2014 
onwards

 39.12 

17 october 2014 25 november 2014 
onwards

 16.18 

17 october 2014 30 december 2014 
onwards

 22.74 

17 october 2014 30 december 2014 
onwards

 28.09 

17 october 2014 30 december 2014 
onwards

 37.08 

17 october 2014 30 december 2014 
onwards

 13.48 

19 January 2015 26 february 2015 
onwards

 8.49 

19 January 2015 26 february 2015 
onwards

 3.93 

3 annual Maintenance Charges for air-conditioning systems

3.1 Blue Star limited common - 
Promoters / 
directors / 
management / 
major shareholder

14 may 2014 1 June 2014 onwards as per 
transfer 
pricing 
guidelines

 1.67 

4 receiving of services

4.1 modern family doctor Pvt. 
ltd.

common director 18 July 2013 13 June 2013 onwards as per 
transfer 
pricing 
guidelines

 1.74 

5 reimbursement of expenditure / Cross-charge of salary Costs
5.1 Blue Star Infostack Solutions 

Pte. limited
Second level 
Subsidiary 
company 

14 may 2014 1 april 2012 onwards as per 
transfer 
pricing 
guidelines

 3.94 

5.2 Blue Star Infotech (malaysia) 
Sdn. Bhd.

Second level 
Subsidiary 
company 

23 July 2014 1 august 2014 
onwards

 1.90 

5.3 Blue Star Infotech america 
Inc. 

Subsidiary 
company

14 may 2014 1 april 2012 onwards  40.20 

5.4 Blue Star Infotech Singapore 
Pte. limited. 

Subsidiary 
company

14 may 2014 1 april 2012 onwards  15.96 

5.5 Blue Star limited common - 
Promoters / 
directors / 
management / 
major shareholder

23 July 2014 5 august 2014 
onwards

 0.12 

6 Leave and License of Premises

6.1 vir advani relative of director 
/ Promoter

17 october 2014 31 october 2014 
onwards

as per 
transfer 
pricing 
guidelines

12.25

Note: contracts with related parties in existence prior to 1 april 2014 have been ratified on 14 may 2014 under provisions 
of the companies act, 2013
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DIsCLOsUre PerTaINING TO reMUNeraTION as Per COMPaNIes (aPPOINTMeNT aND reMUNeraTION OF 
MaNaGerIaL PersONNeL) rULes, 2014

a. remuneration Paid to Directors during the year

sr. 
No.

Directors Designation
amount Paid

 (` Lakhs) 
1 mr. Suneel advani chairman and managing director  43.55 
2 mr. Sunil Bhatia chief executive officer and managing director  320.29 
3 mr. ashok advani vice chairman  6.70 
4 mr. Suresh talwar Independent director  10.90 
5 dr. Prakash hebalkar Independent director  10.40 
6 mr. Sanjay vaswani director  5.50 
7 mr. naresh malhotra Independent director  9.90 
8 mr. K P t Kutty Independent director  7.70 
9 ms Kalpana trivedi additional director  - 

b.  ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for 
the financial year is as follows:

sr. 
No.

Directors Designation
ratio for FY 

14-15
1 mr. Suneel advani chairman and managing director  6.60 
2 mr. Sunil Bhatia chief executive officer and managing director  48.53 
3 mr. ashok advani vice chairman  1.02 
4 mr. Suresh talwar Independent director  1.65 
5 dr. Prakash hebalkar Independent director  1.58 
6 mr. Sanjay vaswani director  0.83 
7 mr. naresh malhotra Independent director  1.50 
8 mr. K P t Kutty Independent director  1.17 
9 ms Kalpana trivedi additional director  - 

 the medium remuneration of the employees in India has been considered as the base i.e. 1. the ratio is an indicator 
of the multiple of the compensation paid to the directors. 

c.  Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, CeO, CFO and Cs in the financial year is provided 
herewith:

sr. 
No.

Directors Increase %

1 mr. Suneel advani  - 
2 mr. Sunil Bhatia #  - 
3 mr. ashok advani  14 
4 mr. Suresh talwar  55 
5 dr. Prakash hebalkar  14 
6 mr. Sanjay vaswani  29 
7 mr. naresh malhotra  1
8 mr. K P t Kutty  62 
9 ms Kalpana trivedi not applicable

Note:   1. mr. Sunil Bhatia is also the ceo of the company
  2.    ms Kalpana trivedi was appointed on 30 march 2015 and there are no comparable figures.
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sr. 
No.

Chief Financial Officer and Company secretary Increase %

1 mr. aloke Ghosh  not applicable 

d. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:

 the median salary for the current year is ` 6.60 lakhs as against ` 6.35 lakhs in the previous year. the percentage 
increase in the median is thus 3.94%. the expression “median” means the numerical value separating the higher 
half of a population from the lower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by arranging all 
the observations from lower value to highest value and picking the middle one; and if there is an even number of 
observations, the median shall be average of the middle values.

e. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of company:

 as of 31 march 2015, the company had 801 permanent employees on its rolls. this number is only in relation the 
company in India and employees of the subsidiary companies and associate companies are not included in this 
figure.

f.  explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:

 the increase in remuneration is guided by the following factors:

 i) company performance in terms of profitability

 ii) Individual performance – achievement of targets / goals

 iii) Industry trends / pay-scales based on survey data

 iv) Salary rationalization and fitment based on role and relevance

 v) cost of living / location of work

 the compensation is expected to ensure availability and sustainability of suitable manpower. It is also expected to 
ensure retention and continued value which enables the company to perform better. the company performance 
in terms of revenue and profits assumes a larger significance at the Key functional levels and lesser at operating 
levels. the scope and responsibility of the function will determine the weightage to each of these components. the 
compensation is intended to ensure global competitiveness. the intent of the management is to use a combination 
of stock options to align senior employee compensation with shareholder value.

g.  Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
company;

sr. 
No.

Directors Designation amount 
Paid 

(` Lakhs) 

No. of stock 
Options 

granted in 
the year

ratio of 
remune-
ration to 

revenues

ratio of 
remune-

ration to Net 
Profit

1 mr. Sunil Bhatia chief executive officer 
and managing director

 320.29  - 2.32% 27.40%

2 mr. aloke 
Ghosh

chief financial officer 
and company Secretary

 36.50  20,000 0.26% 3.12%
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h.  Variations in the market capitalization of the company, price earning ratio as at the closing date of the 
current financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the 
company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out with the last public offer in case of listed 
companies.

Year ended Market 
Capital-
isation  

(In ` Crores)

earnings 
per share 
(Diluted) 

(`)

P/e ratio Closing 
Market 
Price on 

Nse
(`)

Last public 
offer 

price (On 
formation 

of the 
company) 
on 18 May 

2000  
(`)

% increase 
in market 
price over 
last public 

offer (18 
May 2000)

% increase 
in YoY 

Market 
price

31 march 
2015

215.46 10.47  19.05  199.50 10 1895% 70.08%

31 march 
2014

121.82 9.62  12.19  117.30 10 1073% 102.24%

i.  average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration 

 the average increase in salaries is 7% for non-managerial personnel.

 there is no increase in the percentile computation for executive directors. In case of non-executive directors the 
average increase is 24.94%. this is chiefly due to increase in the sitting fee for meetings during the year and also the 
increase in the number of meetings of the non-executive Board members during the year. 

 all board members taken together, the increase in managerial remuneration is 1.41% which is significantly lower 
that the increase in salaries for non-managerial persons.

j. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors;

 during the year under review, the executive director’s compensation did not witness any material change. 
the compensation for executive directors are term based. the chief executive officer and managing director’s 
compensation has an incentive plan based on achievement of target revenues and profits by the company. 

 In case of the other directors, the compensation comprises (i) Sitting fee for meetings attended and (ii) commission 
based on the net profits of the company. the increases in the current year are due to upward revision of the sitting 
fee from ` 20,000 to ` 50,000 per meeting from June 2014. the commission for the year is around 1.7% of profits as 
against 2% in the prior year. In absolute terms while the commission payment is lower for the year, due to increase 
in the sitting fee and the number of meetings held, the overall increases in respect of the other directors is higher 
than the prior year.

k. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but 
receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year. 

 the company has no employee who is not a director and receives remuneration in excess of the highest 
paid director during the year. hence, there is no statistical information to be provided in this regard by the 
company.
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l. affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

 the company has a policy on the appointment and remuneration of directors and key managerial personnel which 
is addressed by the nomination and remuneration committee of the company. the human resource management 
generally aligns the recruitment plans for the strategic growth of the company. the nomination and remuneration 
policy is provided pursuant to Section 178(4) of the companies act and clause 49(Iv)(B)(4) of the listing agreement 
with the Stock exchange on the website of the company.

 the company is committed to maintaining consistency with the remuneration policy framed by the company. the 
policy is reviewed at least once annually. In case of any conflict between the statute and the company policy due to 
any enactment, amendment to the law, the more liberal of the statute or the company policy shall prevail. 
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aNNUaL rePOrT ON Csr aCTIVITIes

 1.  the Blue Star group is a socially responsible business and has been running various programmes in the realm of 
education and assistance / welfare through a charitable trust. this includes combining business interests with the 
social challenges with a view towards making a meaningful difference out of socially responsible actions.

   the aim of the company is to actively contribute to the social and economic development of various communities 
in the country to address the needs to a sustainable way of life for the less privileged sections of society and help in 
raising the country’s human development parameters. 

  the company has a corporate Social responsibility Policy in place, which is available on the website of the company, 
www.bsil.com.

2.  the Board constituted a corporate Social responsibility committee amongst the board members on 23 July 2014, 
with the first members being: 

 1. mr. Suneel m. advani (chairman and managing director), chairman of the cSr committee 

 2. mr. Sunil Bhatia (chief executive officer and managing director)

 3. mr. Suresh talwar (Independent director) 

 4. mr. K. P. t. Kutty (Independent director)

3. average net Profit of the company for last 3 financial years (amount in ` lakhs):

Particulars FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15

net Profit before tax as per the Profit and loss account 706.41 1,458.50 1,559.03

add: loss of capital nature (Sale of fixed assets) - - -

total net Profit before tax as per the Profit and loss account 706.41 1,458.50 1,559.03

average net Profit of the company for the last 3 (three) 
financial years

1,241.32

4 Prescribed cSr expenditure (2% of this amount as in item 3 above): ` 24.83 lakhs 

5 details of cSr spent for the financial year: 

 a) total amount to be spent for the financial year : ` 24.83 lakhs 

 b) amount unspent, if any: ` 24.83 lakhs 

 c) manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: not applicable 

 6 In case the company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net Profit (Inr) of the last 3 financial years or any 
part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board’s report.

 as mentioned in the directors’ report, the company was required to spend ̀  24.83 lakhs by 31 march 2015 towards 
charitable and social causes, as part of its commitment to corporate Social responsibility. the Board decided to 
expend these funds in support of the hrd minister’s nationwide campaign of “Swachh Bharat/ Swachh vidyalaya” 
to build toilets in schools. Since the process of identifying nGo’s specialised in this field has taken more time than 
anticipated, no expenditure was possible during the year.

7 we hereby affirm that the cSr Policy as approved by the Board, has been implemented and the cSr committee 
monitors the implementation of the cSr activities in compliance with our cSr objectives.

suneel advani sunil bhatia 
chairman of cSr committee chief executive officer and managing director

Place: mumbai
date: 14 may 2015
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FOrM NO. MGT 9
eXTraCT OF aNNUaL reTUrN

as on financial year ended on 31 March 2015

Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 
administration) rules, 2014.

I. reGIsTraTION & OTHer DeTaILs:

sr. 
No.

Directors Designation

1 cIn l72200mh1997Plc110459
2 registration date 4 September 1997
3 name of the company Blue Star Infotech limited
4 category/Sub-category of the 

company
company limited by Shares

5 address of the registered office & 
contact details

8th floor, the Great oasis, Plot no d-13, mIdc, andheri (east), 
mumbai- 400093

6 whether listed company Yes
7 name, address and contact details 

of the registrar & transfer agent, if 
any.

link Intime India Pvt. ltd. 
unit: Blue Star Infotech limited
c-13 Pannalal Silk mills compound, lBS marg, Bhandup west, 
mumbai, maharashtra, Pin - 400078.
tel.: +91-22-25946970, fax: +91- 22-25946969
contact person: mrs. maheshwari Patil
e-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

II. PrINCIPaL bUsINess aCTIVITIes OF THe COMPaNY (all the business activities contributing 10 % or more of 
the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

sr. 
No.

Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the 
Product/service

% to total turnover of 
the company

1 computer programming, consultancy and related 
activities 

division 62  
Group 620

100

III. Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies

sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Company

Country CIN / GLN Holding / 
subsidiary 
/ associate

% 
holding 

as on  
31 March 

2015

applicable 
section of the 

Companies act, 
2013

1 Blue Star Infotech 
america Inc.

uSa - Subsidiary 100% Section 2(87)

2 Blue Star Infotech 
(uK) ltd

uK - Subsidiary 100% Section 2(87)

3 Blue Star Infotech 
(Singapore) Pte. ltd.

Singapore - Subsidiary 100% Section 2(87)
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sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Company

Country CIN / GLN Holding / 
subsidiary 
/ associate

% 
holding 

as on  
31 March 

2015

applicable 
section of the 

Companies act, 
2013

4 Blue Star Infotech 
Business Intelligence 
and analytics Pvt. 
ltd. (formerly 
activecubes 
Solutions India Pvt. 
ltd.)

India u72200Ka2006Ptc041312 associate 48.97% Section 2(6)

Note: 1. there are no holding companies.
 2. only the names of the first level subsidiaries and associate companies are stated here

IV. sHare HOLDING PaTTerN
 (equity share Capital breakup as percentage of Total equity)
 Category-wise share Holding

Category of shareholders

No. of shares held at the beginning of the year 
[as on 31 March 2014]

No. of shares held at the end of the year  
[as on 31 March 2015]

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
shares

Diffe-
rence

% 
Change 
during 

the year
a. Promoter s
(1) Indian           
a) Individual/ huf 16,62,742 - 16,62,742 16.01 16,62,742 - 16,62,742 15.40 - -
b) central Govt - - - -  -  - - -
c) State Govt(s) - - - -  -  - - -
d) Bodies corp.  31,48,213 - 31,48,213 30.32 31,48,213 - 31,48,213 29.15 - -
e) Banks / fI - - - -  -  - - -
f ) any other 7,78,519 - 7,78,519 7.50 7,78,519 - 7,78,519 7.21 - -
Total shareholding of Promoter (a) 55,89,474 - 55,89,474 53.82 55,89,474 - 55,89,474 51.75 - -
b. Public shareholding      -   - -
1. Institutions      -   - -
a) mutual funds 25 137 162 - 25 137 162 - - -
b) Banks / fI 1,217 587 1,804 0.02 2,957 587 3,544 0.03 1,740 0.02
c) central Govt - - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - - 
e) venture capital funds - - - - - - - - - - 
f ) Insurance companies 3,09,432 - 3,09,432 2.98 2,36,079 - 2,36,079 2.19 (73,353) (0.68) 
g) fIIs - 150 150 - - - - - (150) -
h) foreign venture capital funds - - - - - - - - - - 
i) others (specify) - - - - - - - - -  - 
sub-total (b)(1):- 3,10,674 874 3,11,548 3.00 2,39,061 724 2,39,785 2.22 (71,763) (0.66) 
2. non-Institutions         -  - 
a) Bodies corp. 2,72,033 3,962 2,75,995  2.66  4,08,870  3,962  4,12,832 3.82 1,36,837 1.27 
i) Indian          -  - 
ii) overseas          -  - 
b) Individuals         - -
i) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital upto ` 1 lakh

23,70,824 2,62,493 26,33,317 25.36 23,57,670 2,43,059 26,00,729 24.08 (32,588) (0.30) 

ii) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of 
` 1 lakh

13,66,115 - 13,66,115 13.15 13,72,676 - 13,72,676 12.71 6,561 0.06 

c) others (specify)         - -
non resident Indians (repat) 1,21,017 12,401 1,33,418 1.28 4,21,856 12,771 4,34,627 4.02  3,01,209  2.79 
non resident Indians (non repat) 24,638 - 24,638 0.24 62,523 - 62,523 0.58 37,885 0.35 
foreign companies -  25 - - 25 25 - - -
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Category of shareholders

No. of shares held at the beginning of the year 
[as on 31 March 2014]

No. of shares held at the end of the year  
[as on 31 March 2015]

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
shares

Diffe-
rence

% 
Change 
during 

the year
foreign Individuals 2,950 - 2,950 0.03 2,950 - 2,950 0.03 - -
market makers - - - - 79 - 79 - 79 -
clearing members 47,520 - 47,520 0.46 84,300 - 84,300 0.78 36,780 0.34 
sub-total (b)(2):- 42,05,097 2,78,881 44,83,978 43.18 47,10,924 2,59,817 49,70,741 46.03 4,86,763 4.51 
total Public Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+ (B)(2)

45,15,771  2,79,755 47,95,526 46.18 49,49,985 2,60,541 52,10,526 48.25 4,15,000  3.84 

c. Shares held by custodian for Gd 
` & adrs

- - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (a+b+C) 1,01,05,245  2,79,755 1,03,85,000 100.00 1,05,39,459 2,60,541 1,08,00,000 100.00  4,15,000 3.84 

b) shareholding of Promoters

sr. 
No.

shareholder’s Name No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

%of shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

%of shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares

% change in 
shareholding 

during the year

31 March 2014 31 March 2015

1 Blue Star ltd 30,98,025 29.83 - 30,98,025 28.69 - -

2 Suneel mohan advani (held 
in individual and beneficial 
capacity)

8,91,165 8.58 - 8,91,165 8.25 - -

3 ashok mohan advani (held 
in individual and beneficial 
capacity)

7,58,621 7.30 - 7,58,621 7.02 - -

4 Suneeta nanik vaswani 1,72,448 1.66 - 1,72,448 1.60 - -

5 nargis Suneel advani 1,66,059 1.60 - 1,66,059 1.54 - -

6 anissa rohina trust (ashok 
advani trustee)

1,38,446 1.33 -  1,38,446 1.28 - -

7 Suneeta Padmi trust (ashok 
advani trustee)

82,245 0.79 - 82,245 0.76 - -

8 rohina lulla 73,871 0.71 - 73,871 0.68 - -

9 anissa Khanna 71,654 0.69 - 71,654 0.66 - -

10 J.t. advani finance Private 
limited

50,188 0.48 - 50,188 0.46 - -

11 vir S advani 35,179 0.34 - 35,179 0.33 - -

12 Sunaina S advani 32,179 0.31 - 32,179 0.30 - -

13 Sanjay n vaswani 14,750 0.14 - 14,750 0.14 - -

14 nanik ramchand vaswani 7,581 0.07 - 7,581 0.07 - -

15 dinesh nanik vaswani 13 0.00 - 13 0.00 - -

 Total 55,92,424 53.85 - 55,92,424 51.78 - -

C) Change in Promoters’ shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

 there is no change in the holding of the Promoters during the year.
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D) shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders: 

 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDrs and aDrs):

sr. 
No.

For each Top 10 shareholders shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding 
during the Year

no. of  
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

no. of  
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
1 sMb Family Trust ( beneficiaries sunil bhatia and family)

at the beginning of the year 4,71,248 4.54 4,71,248 4.54 
date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

    

Sale in Secondary market – 21 october 2014 to 
8 december 2014

(137,065) (1.46) 3,34,183 3.09 

Purchase from Secondary market - 8 december 
2014

3,626 0.03 3,37,809 3.12 

Closing balance as on 31 March 2015   3,37,809 3.13 
2 bsIL – Key employees stock option Trust
 at the beginning of the year 1,09,563 1.06 1,09,563 1.06 
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

    

 vesting of eSoPs – 21 July 2014 (1,00,000)  (0.97) 9,563  0.09
 allotment of shares by the company – fresh 

issue of equity - 17 october 2014
4,15,000  3.84 4,24,563  3.93

 vesting of eSoPs - 23 december 2014 (217,000)  (1.01) 2,07,563  1.92
 vesting of eSoPs - 13 January 2015 (1,500)  (0.01) 2,06,063  1.91
 vesting of eSoPs - 21 January 2015 (15,000)  (0.14) 1,91,063  1.77
 vesting of eSoPs - 22 January 2015 (6,875)  (0.06) 1,84,188  1.71
 vesting of eSoPs - 18 february 2015 (6,600)  (0.07) 1,77,588  1.64
 vesting of eSoPs - 12 march 2015 (2,100)  (0.02) 1,75,488 1.62

vesting of eSoPs - 14 march 2015 (1,000)  - 1,74,488 1.62 
Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 1,74,488 1.62 

 3 atul G shetiya   
at the beginning of the year 69,976 0.67 69,976 0.67 

 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

    

 Sale in Secondary market - 22 august 2014 to 
31 march 2015

(12,135)  (0.13) 57,841 0.54 

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015  57,841 0.54 
 4 ashok Kumar Jain   

at the beginning of the year 58,921 0.57 58,921 0.57 
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 
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sr. 
No.

For each Top 10 shareholders shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding 
during the Year

 Purchased from Secondary market - 20 June 
2014

1,350  0.01 60,271 0.58 

 Sale in Secondary market - 4 July 2014 to  
13 march 2015

(20,160) (0.21) 40,111 0.37

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015  40,111 0.37 
 5 blue star – sahayata Foundation Trust   

at the beginning of the year 50,000 0.48 50,000 0.48 
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 50,000 0.46
 6 shobha Jagtiani   

at the beginning of the year 49,699 0.48 49,699 0.48 
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

    

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 49,699 0.46 
 7 Kamlesh Navinchandra shah   

at the beginning of the year 48,450 0.47 48,450 0.47 
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

  

 Sale in Secondary market - 23 may 2014 to 
13 June 2014

(8,887)  (0.09) 39,563 0.38 

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015  39,563 0.37 
 8 rekha Haresh Duhlani   

at the beginning of the year 31,767 0.31 31,767 0.31 
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

 Sale in Secondary market - 20 february 2015 (31,767)  (0.31)   
 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 - -
 9 sheila shamsher singh   - - 

at the beginning of the year 26,258 0.25 26,258 0.25 
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

  

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015   26,258 0.24 
 10 Kamal Tuljaram Jagtiani   

at the beginning of the year 24,000 0.23 24,000 0.23 
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015   24,000 0.22 
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sr. 
No.

For each Top 10 shareholders shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding 
during the Year

 11 suresh bhatia   
at the beginning of the year 21,008 0.19 21,008 0.19 

 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 
during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

  

 Purchase from Secondary market - 30 may 2014 
to 19 december 2014

70,868  0.69 91,876 0.88 

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015  91,876 0.88 
 12 Nisarg ajaykumar Vakharia ajaykumar 

ramanlal Vakharia
  

at the beginning of the year - - - -
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

- -  

 Purchased from Secondary market - 27 march 
2015

33,945  0.31 33,945 0.31

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015   33,945 0.31
 13 amit Haresh Duhlani   

at the beginning of the year - - - -
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

 -  -   

 Purchased from Secondary market - 27 march 
2015

31,767  0.29 31,767 0.29 

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 31,767 0.29 

e) shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

sr. 
No.

shareholding of each Directors and each 
Key Managerial Personnel

shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding 
during the Year

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company
1 ashok Mohan advani (Promoter Non-executive Director)
 at the beginning of the year 795,165 7.66 795,165 7.66
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

- -

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 795,165 7.36
2 suneel Mohan advani (Promoter executive Director)    

 at the beginning of the year 429,828 4.14 429,828 4.14
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

- -

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 429,828 4.14
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sr. 
No.

shareholding of each Directors and each 
Key Managerial Personnel

shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding 
during the Year

3  suresh Talwar (Independent Director)     
 at the beginning of the year 15,075 0.15 15,075 0.15
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

- -

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 15,075 0.15
4 Naresh Malhotra (Independent Director)     
 at the beginning of the year 7,175 0.07 7,175 0.07
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

    

 Sale in Secondary market – 22 January 2015 to 
26 february 2015

(3,442) 3,733

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 3,733 0.03
5 K. P. T. Kutty (Independent Director)     
 at the beginning of the year 2,650 0.03 2,650 0.03
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

- -

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 2,650 0.03
6 sanjay Vaswani (Promoter  

Non-executive Director)
    

 at the beginning of the year 14,750 0.14 14,750 0.14
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

- -   

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 14,750 0.14
7 sunil bhatia (executive Director ) through 

sMb Family Trust where he and his family 
are beneficiaries

    

 at the beginning of the year 471,248 4.54 471,248 4.54
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

    

 Sale in Secondary market - 21 october 2014 to 
8 december 2014

(137,065)   3,34,183  

 Purchase from Secondary market - 8th 
december 2014

 3,626   3,37,809  

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015    3,37,809  3.13 
 8 sunil bhatia (executive Director ) with rita 

bhatia (spouse)
    

 at the beginning of the year 69,740 0.67 69,740 0.67
 date wise Increase / (decrease) in Shareholding 

during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease 

    

 through exercise of eSoPs – 22 July 2014 100,000 169,740
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sr. 
No.

shareholding of each Directors and each 
Key Managerial Personnel

shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding 
during the Year

 through exercise of eSoPs – 23 december 
2014

217,000 386,740

 Closing balance as on 31 March 2015 386,740 3.58

Note:  directors and Key management personnel with no shareholding at the beginning, during and at the end of the 
year are excluded.

V) INDebTeDNess - Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(` In lakhs)

secured 
Loans 

excluding 
deposits

 Unsecured 
Loans

 Deposits Total 
Indebted-

ness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year - - - -
i) Principal amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year     
* addition 300.00 - - 300.00
* reduction (300.00) - - (300.00)
Net Change - - - -
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - - - -
i) Principal amount - - - -
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
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VI. reMUNeraTION OF DIreCTOrs aND KeY MaNaGerIaL PersONNeL-

 a. remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(` In lakhs)

 sr. 
No.

Particulars of remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
amountsuneel advani

Chairman and 
Managing 

Director

sunil bhatia
Chief executive 

Officer and 
Managing Director

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax act, 1961

 26.40 178.89* 346.69*

(b) value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax act, 
1961

17.15  - 17.15

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income- tax act, 1961

 -  -  -

2 Stock option *  - * *

3 Sweat equity  -  -  -

4 commission   

5 others, please specify – variable pay   141.40*  141.40*

 Total (a)  43.55  320.29* 363.84* 

 ceiling as per the act 91.18

Note: * Sunil Bhatia is paid his salary from an overseas subsidiary of the company. hence, the compensation paid to 
him is to be excluded for the purposes of the amount(s) worked out with reference to the ceiling on managerial 
remuneration under the act. there is no value of perquisite on the eSoPs granted / exercised by mr. Bhatia since 
he is not paid salary in India.

 b. remuneration to other directors

(` In lakhs)

sr.  
No.

Particulars of remuneration Name of Directors Total 
amount

1 Independent Directors suresh Talwar Dr. Prakash 
Hebalkar

Naresh 
Malhotra

K. P. T. Kutty  

fee for attending board commit-
tee meetings

 5.90  5.40 4.90  2.70  18.90

commission  5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00  20.00

others, please specify  - - - -  

Total (1)  10.90 10.40 9.90 7.70  38.90

2 Other Non-executive Directors  ashok advani sanjay
 Vaswani

   

fee for attending board commit-
tee meetings

 1.70 0.50    2.20

commission  5.00 5.00    10.00
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(` In lakhs)

sr.  
No.

Particulars of remuneration Name of Directors Total 
amount

others, please specify  -  -    

 Total (2)  6.70  5.50    12.20

 Total (b)=(1+2)  51.10

 total managerial remuneration ** 94.65

 overall ceiling as per the act  200.60

** - excludes salary paid to coo and md through an overseas subsidiary company

C. reMUNeraTION TO KeY MaNaGerIaL PersONNeL OTHer THaN MD/MaNaGer/WTD

(` In lakhs)

sr. 
No.

Particulars of remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Chief Financial Officer and Company secretary

Particulars V sudarshan
(till 31 May 

2014)

aloke Ghosh
(effective 2 June 

2014)

Total

1 Gross salary 4.64  36.17  40.81

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in sec-
tion 17(1) of the Income-tax act, 1961

   

(b) value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
act, 1961

0.05 0.33 0.38

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income-tax act, 1961

 -   

2 Stock option    

3 Sweat equity   

4 commission   

5 others, please specify: Statutory payments, 
terminal benefits, variable pay and leave 
encashment

7.37 - 7.37 

 Total 12.06 36.50 48.56

VII. PeNaLTIes / PUNIsHMeNT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFeNCes:

there are no instances of imposition of penalties, punishment or compounding of offences on the company / it’s 
directors or its KmP. hence, there is no information to be disclosed / furnished in this regard.
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Form aOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of companies (accounts) rules, 2014)

sTaTeMeNT CONTaINING saLIeNT FeaTUres OF THe FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNT OF sUbsIDIarIes/assOCIaTe 
COMPaNIes/JOINT VeNTUres

ParT “a”: sUbsIDIarIes

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in ` lakhs)

1. Name of the 

subsidiary

blue star 

Infotech 

america, Inc.

blue star 

Infotech (UK) 

Limited

blue star 

Infotech 

(singapore) 

Pte. Ltd.

blue star 

Infostack 

solutions Pte. 

Ltd.

blue star 

Infostack 

(Malaysia) sdn. 

bhd.

blue7 

solutions LLC

2. level of Subsidiary first level first level first level Second level Second level Second level
3. reporting period 

for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different 
from the holding 
company’s reporting 
period

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

4. reporting currency 
and exchange rate as 
on the last date of the 
relevant financial year 
in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries

average rate Inr 
per uS$ – 61.15
closing rate Inr 
per uS$ – 62.59

average rate 
Inr per GBP – 
98.62
closing rate 
Inr per GBP – 
92.46

average rate Inr 
per SGd – 47.52
closing rate Inr 
per SGd – 45.63

average rate Inr 
per SGd – 47.52
closing rate Inr 
per SGd – 45.63

average rate Inr 
per mYr – 18.29
closing rate Inr 
per mYr – 16.90

average rate 
Inr per uS$ – 
61.15
closing rate Inr 
per uS$ – 62.59

5. Share capital 1,470.87 277.38 684.45 27.38 169.00 312.95
6. reserves & surplus (810.93) 702.45 482.16 18.01 14.74 425.20
7. total assets 4,970.61 1,247.68 1,675.44 1,091.47 266.93 1,361.14
8. total liabilities 4,310.67 267.70 508.82 1,046.08 83.19 622.99
9. Investments (at cost) 1,521.98 - 477.47 - - -

10. turnover 12,007.41 2,359.08 1,461.70 3,528.59 563.47 3,259.86
11. Profit before taxation 181.53 262.80 250.72 69.25 58.86 68.72
12. Provision for taxation 13.45 58.64 24.14 - 23.70 32.83
13. Profit after taxation 168.08 204.16 226.58 69.25 35.16 35.89
14. Proposed dividend - - - - - -
15 % of shareholding 100%

(Subsidiary of 
Blue Star Infotech 

ltd.)

100%
(Subsidiary 
of Blue Star 

Infotech ltd.)

100% 
(Subsidiary 
of Blue Star 

Infotech ltd.)

100% 
(Subsidiary 
of Blue Star 

Infotech 
(Singapore) Pte. 

ltd.)

100%
(Subsidiary 
of Blue Star 

Infotech 
(Singapore) Pte. 

ltd.)

100%
(Subsidiary 
of Blue Star 

Infotech 
america, Inc.)
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ParT “b”: assOCIaTes aND JOINT VeNTUres

 (Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in `)

sr. 
No.

Name of the associate blue star Infotech business Intelligence & 
analytics Private Limited  

(formerly activecubes solutions India Pvt. Ltd.)
1 latest audited Balance Sheet date 31 march 2015
2 Shares of associate held by the company on the year end

no. 24,84,909 equity shares of ` 10 each
3 amount of Investment in the associate 701.86

extend of holding% 48.97%
4 description of how there is significant influence a) management is common 

b) two of the Board members out of three directors 
are common.

5 reason why the associate is not consolidated not applicable
6 net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet
472.68

7 Profit/ (loss) for the year 61.27
i considered in consolidation Yes. 100%
ii not considered in consolidation not applicable
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MaNaGeMeNT DIsCUssION & aNaLYsIs
INDUsTrY sCeNarIO

as per naSScom, during the current fiscal, overall global sourcing grew by 9-10% over 2013; nearly twice the global 
technologies spend growth. worldwide It-BPm spends in 2014 was uS$ 2.3 trillion, 4.6% higher than 2013, of which It 
services accounted for uS$ 657 billion and grew by 3.5%, while software products grew the fastest by 6.3% to uS$ 420 
billion. worldwide BPm accounted for uS$ 177 billion and grew by 6.0%. region wise aPac recorded highest growth of 
5.1%, driven by faster growth in BPm services.

India is witnessing a gradual revival in the business confidence with a firm government at the center and technology 
enabled economic growth campaigns such as digital India and make in India. 

Global sourcing services grew by 10%. India maintained its leadership position in the sourcing arena with a share of 
55%. Indian It Industry export is estimated to grow at 12.3% to reach uS$ 98 billion. Geography wise uSa at 62% 
absorbed the bulk of our exports, followed by uK at 17%, continental europe at 11%, aPac at 8% and rest of the world 
(row) at 2%. Industry wise, BfSI is estimated to contribute 41%, hI-tech/ telecom 18%, manufacturing 16%, retail 10% 
and healthcare 5% in 2013.

at Blue Star Infotech, we continue to see strong traction in uS demand and a greater increase in outsourcing demand. 
technology teams now have a bigger say in business decisions. while technology led revolutionary changes have 
happened earlier as well, it has taken a considerable time for them to be adopted and create any widespread impact on 
businesses and economy. today, helped by high penetration and reach of technology enabled devices, conventional 
business models are getting rescinded in a matter of years, what earlier used to be a generational shift. 

the great shift is simultaneously creating challenges and opportunities for existing businesses in general and technology 
companies in particular. on one hand, the pace of innovation in technology has made its adoption a key differentiator 
of organizational success, while on the other the cycle time from innovation to commoditization has also considerably 
reduced. 

we embarked upon a series of transformational changes four years back and realigned our business model. these steps 
have noticeably raised the quality, level and intensity of our engagement with our clients and prospects. we further 
reinforced our strategies particularly in the following key areas – 

• Being customer centric - focusing on key account and customer

• focusing on key sectors, implementing domain focused strategy

• Investing in building own solutions

• Strengthening our offerings in new age digital technologies 

• enhancing the level of business operations

CUsTOMer- CeNTrIC sTraTeGY

two years ago, we made a conscious decision to withdraw ourselves from all non-focus areas and instead concentrate 
on areas we plan to be engaged in. today we are focused on select verticals, technologies and geographies. while we 
have four key focus verticals – t&h, hi-tech, healthcare and manufacturing, we have sharpened our focus on select 
micro-verticals, such as online travel agencies (otas), hotels and casinos within it.

from a client engagement perspective too, we have prioritized our accounts across four segments based on their 
current and potential impact.

Geographically, we are concentrating primarily in uS, uK, Singapore, malaysia and India. over the last three years we 
have positioned most of our senior leaders closer to the client that has significantly enhanced the quality and level of 
engagement, developed flexible models, added domain experts and Solution architects.
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at a horizontal level, the focus is on outsourced Product engineering which constitutes 55-60% of our business; and on 
Strategic accounts which forms 24% of our business. 

sustaining Profit Propelled Growth

the last few years we witnessed significant volatility in our profit margins, despite stable or improving revenue 
numbers. we have comprehensively analyzed various factors that have impacted our margins and have developed 
a long-term strategic plan to increase the resiliency of our margins to external factors such as business and currency 
volatility. 

Instead of chasing a large volume of clients, we have now developed an action plan to focus on quality customers and 
quality accounts. as a part of the plan, we are gradually weaning ourselves away from the long tail of less profitable 
clients. Instead, our new mantra is to optimally utilize our energy, resources and management bandwidth into few 
selected prospects, do them very well and then grow from there. this helped us to significantly expand our engagement 
level with our high potential clients. the strategy displayed positive response since our clients preferred us over other 
leading global It players and entrusted us with their strategic work. 

Managing Value accounts

at BSIl, despite our relatively smaller size, we have been maintaining a large list of clients. many of these accounts, 
while they do not contribute much to our revenues, take a considerable amount of management and administrative 
bandwidth. during the fiscal, after undertaking a detailed study, we have classified our accounts in four buckets, in order 
of their priority. 

now, our high priority accounts enjoy a greater share of management bandwidth and take precedence on company 
resources. Going ahead, we plan to gradually reduce our client base by another 30-40%, with an aim to significantly 
enhance our service quality to the remaining ones. during the fiscal, in line with our expectations, we did see a 
considerable expansion in some of our strategic accounts.

Introducing solution architects 

over the last three decades, BSIl has actively absorbed a substantial amount of industry understanding and knowledge. 
to channelize this knowledge into our key accounts, each of our strategic accounts in addition to an account manager 
and delivery manager, will also have a Solution architect. the Solution architect not only brings deep domain and 
technology insights but also actively engages with clients to understand their current /potential challenges and future 
business needs. with these learnings, the Solution architect plays a very active role in cross-selling and in presales 
activities.

enhancing Management Focus

over the last three years we have positioned most of our senior leaders closer to the client that has significantly enhanced 
the quality and level of engagement, developed flexible models, added domain experts/architects. a management 
committee, consisting of the 7 senior members, has been established to meet up with each of the strategic accounts at 
least once a quarter with a formal notice and once a quarter impromptu. this will help us to get direct insights from the 
clients on the progress of the engagement. 

bUILDING OWN sOLUTIONs

over the last three years, our motto has been to imbibe the spirit of innovation and development across the 
organization to help BSIl move towards being a more solution oriented company. an increasing share of our revenues 
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is getting invested in building new age solutions that can deliver higher levels of business value to our clients. over 
this period, we have developed a number of solutions such as mobile vacation Planner, Smart retreat and Smart 
travel in our focus areas. 

Solutions brings to fore the deep domain understanding we have learned from our multiple client engagements and 
coalesce it with new age befitting technologies. coupled with accelerators, these solutions help clients to not only get 
more for the same amount of dollar that they spend, but also start the project at a considerable advanced stage and 
hence make a compelling unique selling proposition to the client. these solutions favorably position us and help us 
capture contemporary opportunities. 

 having said that during this fiscal, we acquired a prominent multi-million project from a leading Swiss-based hi-end 
travel company. the travel company, highly impressed by one of our t&h solutions, awarded us the project against 
incumbencies which were all top notch tier I companies.

additionally, the advanced technologies Group and Innovations and technology labs help us centralize and fast track 
our organization’s- wide learning, impact of new technologies and innovative solutions.

DIGITaL TeCHNOLOGIes

the Internet usage has brought in digital marketing to the forefront. the emergence and adoption of digital technologies 
have rapidly transformed not just the way businesses and industries function around the globe but also how people 
interact and the way work gets done. organizations today adopt digital technologies to create new channels of 
interaction with their existing and prospective clients and to boost their visibility and revenues. aided by a mix of 
intelligence, comfort, cost competitiveness and networking, these technologies have in a short time span transformed 
user experience and engagement level.

our decision to invest early in building capabilities and tools in the digital technological domain not only differentiates 
us but also adds non-linearity to our erstwhile linear business model.

Mobility

mobile technologies have been especially impactful, as they have enabled companies to not only streamline their 
operations but also engage more effectively with customers. BSIl delivers mobility solutions for enterprises globally. It 
possesses strong capabilities on leading mobile platforms, such as ioS and android, windows and rIm, and has extensive 
experience on enterprise middleware and server technologies. BSIl has a strong partner ecosystem and partner-led 
solutions approach. this when combined with frameworks, such as webapp.net, jwebkit, jQuery, iuI, PhoneGap and 
J2me Polish enables them to rapidly build and deploy mobility solutions that deliver business value and competitive 
edge to its clients.

Leaving a Footprint Wherever you go (analytics and business Intelligence)

technology led innovation has dramatically increased connectivity across every walk of life, creating new sources of 
data that has led to an exponential increase in data available. organization that can accurately capture this quagmire of 
data, successfully develop meaningful insights by processing it.

our analytics solutions help our clients develop insights from raw data that facilitate and enhance the accuracy 
of their decision making. It enables our clients to stay ahead by helping them differentiate in increasingly 
competitive marketplace and helps them to deliver greater value to even their clients. BSIl today provides 
end-to-end BI/analytics solutions to customers starting from business consulting, blueprint and roadmap for 
solution development, solution implementation and support post deployment. BSIl has partnered with globally 
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recognized BI platform, namely SaS and Qlikview and other platforms, namely SaP Bo, oBIee and Sfdc. BSIl 
solutions allow customer data source to connect with SaS data seamlessly, update data automatically and 
customize view as per requirement. 

eNHaNCeD bUsINess OPeraTIONs

over the last three years at organizational level, we have taken several initiatives to streamline our internal operations, 
optimize operating costs and structurally enhance revenue structure.

re-structuring Pyramid

historically, our hierarchy structure had a higher share of the middle management, with average employee experience 
being higher than the industry average. higher experienced personnel did bring competitive advantage for the 
organization; however it was at a cost that impacted our bottom-line. now, with some of our accounts growing larger, 
we systematically plan to increase the share of resources with less experience, including fresh graduates in our projects. 
this in turn will aid in enhancing our operating margins. In order to support growth, we have scaled up our recruitment 
strategy as well. from just in time hiring for all skills to planned recruitment for standard skills and talent recruitment in 
advance, we are planning meticulously thereby balancing the talent pool in a planned manner.

Technology Driven 

to internalize and spread key learnings across the organization, the management has been driving the employees to 
use our enterprise-wide collaborative platform, ozone. this platform helps to share key happenings, blogs, views and 
updates. ozone also brings along other organization-wide collaborative features such as communication dashboard, 
departmental workspaces, leave management, Performance appraisal management, Skills repository, It Incident 
management and more.

strategizing sales

while our sales team has always been assiduous while bidding for new projects, during the year we further implemented 
steps to strengthen our price control, right price our bids and help our legacy sales team to relearn the new pricing 
methodology. many new tools, that guide us to right price through extensive pricing and margin calculation, have also 
been put into practice.

the sales team has broadly been classified on the basis of two broad market segments – north america (na) and the rest 
of the world (row). In the na market, we made considerable inroads in some of our strategic accounts, which helped us 
to increase our revenues from the region. also, by leveraging our goodwill with clients and partners, we acquired many 
new logos during the year. our row market continued to witness a strong growth and new client wins, especially in the 
asia Pacific region. our revenues from europe were impacted in dollar terms due to the sharp surge in uS$.

at BSIl, Selling, General and administration (SG&a) has been one of the prominent cost components. to maintain 
sharper focus, during the year, we segregated our new logo and account management teams. Several steps were taken 
to increase transparency, accountability and conversions for the organization as a whole and the uS market in particular. 
Initiatives were taken to enhance collaboration between various sales teams including periodic conference call, offsite 
meetings and workshops. Prominent amongst them is strengthening a matrix driven performance model. we rolled 
out crm software for managing our own sales pipeline and back ending this with a robust Sales & operations Planning 
process.

Given our strong history, BSIl enjoys a strong brand strength and recall in our focus markets. Several initiatives have 
been undertaken over the last few years to further strengthen our brand. 
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HUMaN resOUrCe DeVeLOPMeNT

In the technology industry, talent is primarily involved in engineering It structure, writing software, designing solutions, 
or designing products in a virtual environment. In this scenario, the quality of output is directly proportional to the 
innovative solutions for the market. 

as a result, product development and the innovation associated with finding out new solutions for existing and future 
markets happen only when talent is stable and engaged. from the people perspective, our objective is to build a high 
performance organization emphasizing on better two way communication advocating transparency. we have executed 
several performance based procedures by introducing the matrix model. our intention is to have a collaborative 
environment, where several teams under the guidance of experienced professionals shall be working as a unit on 
projects towards providing quality deliverables.

enhancing employee engagement Levels

with the addition of many senior leaders having significant and proven industry track record; our top management team 
today is completely reinvigorated and full of energy. with, highly skilled and experienced coo, cfo, head of Sales, head of 
Global delivery Systems and human resource head, we now are far better equipped to cater to changing client demands.

our middle management has traditionally been delivering commendable work. to further hone their skills and to groom 
them further and shape them to take larger responsibilities, we organized new leadership development programs, 
focusing on improving their general management skills. this was done through a combination of classroom training in 
areas like Strategy, finance, marketing, etc. by industry experts, combined with coaching and company strategy related 
action learning projects. 

during the year, we conceptualized and initiated a four-year employee development road map with an aim to optimize 
the skills of precious human capital. Several steps were taken to enhance employee engagement level, productivity, 
interpersonal skills and overall cohesiveness at both project and organization levels. a couple of such initiatives 
included bringing transparency, facilitating two-way communications through greater management interaction, online 
and offline discussion forums and through creating collaborative environment.

Unifying Motto: One Company One Team

our senior members, during their visit to client offices meet-up with all the onsite employees, actively interact with 
them to update them with all recent developments and to understand their concerns. also, to familiarize our onsite 
employees with the strength of the back-end team supporting them, we carry out their initial induction and training 
program in India.

OUTLOOK

we are optimistic about our future growth and confident that we will continue with the growth momentum that started 
four years back. the market looks quite promising where both the uS and europe markets are reviving. we foresee good 
business opportunities from these markets and are positive about our growth in the domestic market as well. 

the current fiscal year was important for us since we gathered big deals during the year. we will continue to invest 
2-4% of our annual revenue in research and development towards making new solutions and build our own Intellectual 
Property.

a major trend that we have observed is that enterprises equipped with new age technology are growing much faster 
than the traditional It service companies. this provides a tremendous opportunity for BSIl to scale its growth trajectory 
going forward.
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DIsCUssION ON FINaNCIaL PerFOrMaNCe (CONsOLIDaTeD)

the financial statements are prepared in compliance with the requirements of the companies act, 2013 and Generally 
accepted accounting Principles (GaaP) in India. the management of the company assumes responsibility for the 
integrity and objectivity of these financial statements, as well as for various estimates and judgments used in preparing 
the financials. the estimates and judgments relating to the financial statements have been made on a prudent and 
reasonable basis, in accordance with conventions and practices prevailing in the industry, in order that the financial 
statements reflect, in a true and fair manner, the form and substance of transactions and reasonably present the 
company’s state of affairs and profits for the year.

1. Financial Condition

 a. share Capital

  the company has an authorised capital of 2 crore equity shares of ` 10 each (previous year 2 crore equity 
shares). as of year-end, the issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the company is ` 10.80 crore (previous 
year 10.385 crores). during the year the company has issued 415,000 fresh equity shares to the “BSIl-Key 
employees Stock option Scheme trust”. these shares are to be subsequently issued by the trust to eligible 
employees under the company’s employee Stock option Scheme. the company has received a total 
consideration of ` 2.54 crore (including share premium of ` 2.12 crores) from issue of such shares.

  the build – up of equity share capital since inception till date is as follows:

sr. 
No.

Particulars allotment  
Date

No. of 
 shares

1 de – merger of International Software division of Blue Star 
limited into Blue Star Infotech limited

18 may 2000 1 ,00,00,000

2 fresh issue of shares on a preferential basis 25 august 2011 3,85,000

3 fresh issue of shares to the “BSIl – Key employees Stock 
option Scheme trust”

17 october 2014 4,15,000

Issued and paid-up equity Capital 31 March 2015 1,08,00,000

  the company has unutilised listing approval from stock exchanges (nSe and BSe) for 185,000 equity shares and 
intends to apply for listing approval for a further 900,000 equity shares. these equity shares are intended to be 
utilised entirely for meeting the requirement of the employee Stock options Scheme over the next three years. 
with the issue of these equity shares, there is potential expansion in the equity capital up to ` 118.85 cr over 
the next three years. 

 b. reserves and surplus

  the reserves and surplus of the company increased from ` 90.25 crores to ` 104.63 crore in the financial 
year 2014-15. the addition of ` 14.39 crore to the reserves is constituted by ` 11.14 crore mainly by transfer 
from Profit and loss account to the General reserve, which includes profits after tax (pre adjusted) for the 
year amounting to ` 18.17 crores. during the year the company entered into forward contracts covering 
receivables of uS$5.15 million outstanding (equivalent of around ` 32 crores) expiring within one year. the 
company follows accounting Standard 30, financial Instruments: recognition and measurement, prescribed 
by the Institute of chartered accountants of India. the net loss arising on ‘mark to market’ of such open forward 
contracts transferred to hedging reserve account during the year amounts to ` 0.05 crore.

 c. Debt status

  at the year ended 31 march 2015, the company’s uS subsidiary had an outstanding secured debt with a bank 
in the uS equivalent to ` 4.69 crore (previous year ` 4.52 crore). this amount is generally used for meeting the 
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temporary working capital needs of the business. the facility is secured by the parent company in India vide a 
Standby letter of credit issued by the bankers in India. the company also has an overdraft facility for the parent 
company in India with drawing power of ` 5 crore. the drawn down against this limit as at 31 march 2015 is 
nil. the facilities total to ` 25 crore and are interchangeable between fund and non-fund based credit facilities 
at any point in time. the bank facilities of the company have been rated by care. the rating assigned to the 
long / Short term Bank facilities is care a-/care a2+ (Single a minus / a two Plus) which is an indicator of 
low-risk and high credit safety.

 d.  Fixed assets

  the Gross block of fixed assets at financial year end 31 march 2015 was ` 48.92 crore and the cumulative 
depreciation amounted to ` 28.59 crore. during the year, the company realigned its depreciation policy to 
meet with the requirements of the companies act, 2013. details are provided in this regard in the notes to the 
financial statement. 

  additions to fixed assets made during the year were of the order of ̀  3.75 crore mainly comprising of computers 
(` 2.07 crore), furniture and fixtures (` 0.22 crore), office equipment (` 0.05 crore), computer Software (` 0.33 
crore) and Plant and equipment (` 0.05 crore). during the year company has capitalised two of its Intellectual 
Property rights under development (IPr) amounting to ` 1.03 crore where the development was completed 
during the year. on the capex front, the expenditure was chiefly in relation to the company’s old unit in SeePZ-
SeZ, mumbai which is being completely refurbished. the company also invested in technology enhancement 
of existing infrastructure and replacement of obsolete assets primarily computers as part of its normal asset / 
technology upgradation process.

 e. sundry Debtors

  the financial year-end, witnessed an increase in year-end debtors from ` 61.02 crore to ` 66.13 crore. the 
increase is essentially on account of a higher revenue volume during the latter part of the year. the debtors are 
considered good and realisable and due provision has been made for all the doubtful debts. a synopsis of the 
ageing is provided below

Days
2014-15 2013-14

` Crore % ` Crore %
0-30 36.27 55 46.33 76
31-60 18.16 28 3.37 6
61-90 4.54 7 0.99 2
more than 90 7.16 10 10.33 16
Total 66.13 100 61.02 100

  the company offers a credit period of 30 to 45 days post issue of invoice. typically the average credit period 
turns out to be around 65 days from delivery to the completion of the invoicing and credit cycle as almost 
the entire billing is towards month-end. the day’s sales outstanding (dSo) is currently around 89 days of 
sale (previous year 83 days). considering the size of the company, the growth and billing pattern, the dSo is 
considered comparable to similarly sized companies in industry.

 f. Cash and bank balance

  the cash and bank balances at the year-end have increased to ` 34.40 crore from ` 21.01 crore in the previous 
year. cash balances are either held in rupee fixed deposits, current accounts or export earners foreign currency 
(eefc) current accounts in India. the bank balances in eefc accounts are generally used for (i) meeting 
operational expenses, (ii) meeting the remittance requirements of subsidiaries, (iii) Strategic investments and 
(iv) Import of technology assets.
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  the balances include balances in unclaimed dividend accounts which are ` 0.21 crore in the current 
year (previous year ` 0.20 crore). these amount are maintained and accounted separately in trust for the 
shareholders. 

  the remaining cash and bank balances mainly represent bank balances in current accounts with banks in India 
and overseas i.e. in uSa, uK, Singapore and malaysia.

 g. Loans and advances

  loans and advance represent the amount paid by the company in advance for value and services to be 
received in future.

  long-term ` 26.13 crore (previous year ` 25.28 crore): the major items being ` 3.78 crore in deposits for rent 
and to utility companies, ` 2.47 crore as mat credit entitlement and ` 19.62 crore as advance tax net of 
Provisions.

  Short-term ` 3.63 crore (previous year ` 2.46 crore) : these chiefly comprise of prepaid expenses ` 1.51 crore, 
` 0.57 crore as advances recoverable in cash and ` 1.55 crore advance given to the eSoP trust

 h. Other assets

  non-current: the company has ` 0.08 crore (previous year ` 0.06 crore) in deposits with maturity exceeding 
twelve months.

  current: the company has ` 2.37 crore unbilled services which are related to services provided to customers 
where provision for revenue is made in the books. however, such amounts have not been invoiced to the 
customer pending achievement of billing milestones or client confirmation. a further sum of 0.11 crore is the 
Interest accrued on bank deposits but not due / received by the company.

 i. Current Liabilities

  Sundry creditors represent amounts payable to vendors for supply of goods and services (including fixed asset 
purchases). there are no amounts due to small scale units. unclaimed dividends represent dividends paid 
but not realised by shareholders (this is contra-indicated in the bank balances by a similar amount). other 
liabilities include accrued liabilities and benefits payable to the staff (including leave encashment) and amounts 
accrued for various operational expenses. unearned revenue represents payments received in advance from 
customers for services to be provided in future such as fees received against annual maintenance contracts. 
hedging reserve on open forward contracts are potential liabilities (derived on methodology consistent with 
accounting Standard 30 issued by IcaI / aScII) on foreign exchange forward contracts which are primarily in 
the nature of cash flow hedges for future business, arising from contracted rates being lower than the current 
spot rate.

 j. Provisions

  long-term Provision for leave encashment based on actuarial valuation (compensated absences) was ` 1.84 
crore at the end of the year whereas short-term provision for leave encashment also based on actuarial 
valuation (compensated absences) was ` 0.87 crore. Provision for Gratuity at the end of the year based on 
actuarial valuation is ` 0.35 crore. In the absence of an actuarial valuation, estimates are made in accordance 
with prescribed accounting standards.

  during the tear the company made a tax provision of ` 4.77 crore. additionally a provision for deferred 
tax liability on account of timing difference in depreciation has resulted in a provision of ` 0.98 crore 
for the year. the company made a tax provision for ` 0.51 crore in respect of earlier years based on  
re-computation of tax benefits available for the SeZ unit of the company. Based on the recommendation 
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of the Board, the company made provisions for ` 4.32 crore and ` 0.90 crore respectively, for Proposed 
dividend and corporate dividend tax.

 k. Goodwill on Consolidation

  the goodwill in the books has arisen based on the difference in the book value of the investment vis-à-vis the 
consideration paid for the following:

  i) In June 2012 – acquisition of the entire company Blue Star Infostack Solutions Pte. ltd., Singapore (formerly 
Infostack Solutions Pte. ltd.) by Blue Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte. ltd., the wholly owned Singapore 
subsidiary of the company.

  ii) In July 2013 – Investment by Blue Star Infotech ltd. (India) 48.97% of the share capital of Blue Star Business 
Intelligence and analytics Pvt. ltd. (formerly activecubes Solutions India Pvt. ltd.) at a premium.

  iii) In march 2014 - acquiring the 40% minority interest from its Jv partner trisept technologies llc In Blue7 
Solutions llc by the uS subsidiary of the company, Blue Star Infotech america Inc. , the wholly owned uS 
subsidiary of the company. 

  the total amount of goodwill is ` 17.91 crore as of the Balance Sheet date. the management has performed a 
valuation of the intrinsic value of the business of these entities in february 2015. It is observed that the intrinsic 
worth of the companies is higher than the consideration paid for these entities. accordingly, no impairment of 
the goodwill is considered necessary at this stage in the books of accounts.

 l. Intangibles and Intangible assets under development

  for its conduct of business the company acquires software products and licences from the open market. the 
value as of end march 2015 is ` 1.33 crore. the company amortises the cost of such software products and 
licences over its life or three years, whichever is earlier.

  the company has setup a research and development team (advanced technologies Group) which has been 
since the year 2012, identifying emerging and new technologies and related frameworks. 

  effective end 2012, the company has started working on developing software frameworks which are code 
named as “mobile vacation planner”, “iroadGenie”, “imapGenie”, “Smartretreat”, etc. 

  the company has also access to two products from activecubes Solutions India Pvt. ltd. (now Blue Star Business 
Intelligence and analytics Pvt. ltd.) named “Shopcircle” and “authenticity” which has been completed and 
subsequently capitalised during the year amounting to ` 1.04 crore. the products are intended to be show-
cased as solution frameworks to clients in due course. 

  the total development / acquisition cost till date in financial terms is to the order of ` 2.32 crore.

2. results of Operations

 a. Income

  the total income of the company comprises income from operations and other income. In the financial year 
2014-15, Income from operations (Sales and Software Services) was ` 264.88 crore as compared to ` 270.21 
crore for the previous year. the decrease in revenue is primarily on account or significant reduction in non-
recurring license sales made last year for ` 13.77 crores. the decrease is largely compensated by addition of 
significant services business which are quality accounts with healthy margins. 

  the income from other sources decreased from ` 6.35 crore last year to ` 5.76 crore. other income was 
primarily from license fee received for leased office property, dividend and interest income from investments. 
while the license fee income stayed unchanged at ` 4.89 crore compared to last year, the remaining income 
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decreased from ` 1.46 crore last year to ` 0.87 crore this year. the reduction was chiefly due to the last year’s 
gain on exchange translation of ` 0.8 crore whereas there was none this year. further, the dividend income on 
investments declined due to change in the investment timing during the year.

 b. employee / Cost of Technical Manpower

  during the year employee benefits expense declined from ` 155. 33 crore to ` 149.02 crores. 

  the company also engages outside personnel for projects and, the cost of such technical manpower has 
increased from ` 35.85 crores to ` 42.38 crores during the year. this helped the company optimise the 
utilisation metrics during the year.

 c. Other expenses

  In absolute terms the total other operating and general expenses increased from ` 75.00 crore to ` 84.22 
crore in the year under review (including cost of technical manpower referred to in point b. above). the net 
increase after adjusting for the increase in the cost of technical manpower i.e. ̀  6.53 crores for the year, loss on 
exchange translation ̀  0.87 crore incurred in the current year, Bad debt write off ̀  1 crore and certain one-time 
costs amounting to ` 1.27 crores results in a like for like net expenditure of ` 74.54 crores for the year. 

` in cr.

Operating and General expenses FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14

cost of technical and other manpower (contract) # / Professional charges 49.23 44.57

travelling and conveyance 9.35 7.66

loss on exchange translation 0.87 -

rent, rates and taxes 6.57 7.27

communication expenses 3.70 3.18

Power 2.43 2.46

repairs and maintenance 1.66 1.79

Payment to auditors 0.79 0.78

recruitment charges 0.74 0.96

Bad debt written off / Provision for bad and doubtful debts 1.34 0.56

cost of Software license and tools 1.96 1.62

Security charges 0.44 0.42

various other expenses 5.14 3.73

Total 84.22 75.00

  # - also see note on employee / cost of technical manpower

  i) cost of travel increased by 22% over the previous year due to increase in overseas travel for the purposes 
of business.

  ii) cost of rent, rates and taxes decreased on account of change in the overseas offices in the uS, uK and 
Singapore to more economic locations.

  iii) Bad debts written off of ` 1 crore during the year constitutes amounts not likely to be collected and 
provided for in the books of accounts over the last 3 years. 
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  iv) Provision for doubtful debts of ` 0.34 crores was made on a prudent basis as per company policy during 
the year.

  v) various other non-recurring expenses during the year include fees for attending events and 
membership costs, recruitment costs and advertisement ` 0.58 crores. 

KeY rIsKs aND CONCerNs

Blue Star Infotech has identified its business risks and constantly evaluates its risk mitigation process and strategy across 
the geographies and entities that it operates. 

Preventable risks:

these are internal risks, arising from within the organization, that are controllable and ought to be eliminated or avoided. 
this risk category is best managed through active prevention: monitoring operational processes and guiding people’s 
behaviours and decisions toward desired norms. 

strategy risks:

In its business, the company voluntarily accepts some risk in order to generate superior returns from its strategy. 
Strategy risks cannot be managed through a rules-based control model. the company needs a risk-management system 
designed to reduce the probability that the assumed risks actually materialize and to improve the company’s ability 
to manage or contain the risk events should they occur. Such a system is not supposed to prevent companies from 
undertaking risky ventures; to the contrary, it would enable companies to take on higher-risk, higher-reward ventures 
than competition with less effective risk management. 

external risks: 

risks arise from events outside the company and are beyond its sphere of influence or control. Sources of these risks 
include natural and political disasters and major macroeconomic shifts. Because companies cannot prevent such events 
from occurring, the management would focus on identification and mitigation of their impact. 

the company has identified the following key business risks and constantly evaluates its risk mitigation process and 
strategy. 

sr. 
No.

risk summary Type of risk

1 Political, Business and economic environment external

2 Pricing Pressures external

3 concentration of revenues external

4 Inflation and cost Structure external

5 Immigration regulations external

6 technology obsolescence financial

7  exchange rate fluctuations financial

8 liquidity and leverage financial

9 Interest rate risk financial/operational

10 credit risk financial

11 ability to fund growth financial

12 Investment risk (non-trade) operational

13 contractual compliance operational
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sr. 
No.

risk summary Type of risk

14 Project related risk operational

15 compliance with local laws operational/external

16 Security and Business continuity operational

17 Business Partner risk operational

18 hr management operational/external

19 loss/damage to physical assets Information/operational

20 data Protection operational/external

sr. 
No.

risk Description

1. POLITICaL, bUsINess aND eCONOMIC eNVIrONMeNT

severity : medium Probability : medium

over half of our revenue is derived from uSa. while there has been some posturing in terms of jobs being taken 
away to India, the competitiveness of the off shoring model has not changed materially. Some uS States have 
enacted legislation restricting government agencies from outsourcing work to entities outside uSa; however, 
we do not have any significant work with any federal or state entities. restrictions on uS companies outsourcing 
work to India have increased in line with the current government stand.

closer home, there is more stability at present. Global economic turmoil and recession, which might result in loss 
of revenue and business. Impact greater when read with point 2 (below).

Political instability, project execution risks, country policy risks, withdrawal of incentives, consistency in managing 
change, capability and consistency in top management to take timely remedial measures, change in tax rates, 
inconsistent or retrograde government action, terror risks, cybercrimes, data piracy and theft, loss of fiscal / tax 
incentives and reduced margins due to competitive pricing are some of the other risks which affect our business.

2. PrICING PressUres

severity : high Probability : high

3. CONCeNTraTION OF reVeNUes

severity : medium Probability : medium

Geographic concentration: uS (+45%), uK (+10%), Singapore and malaysia (+19%), India (+26%)

Industry concentration: travel sector and Product Services Practice 

client concentration: reliance on a few large customers, which might hurt in the event of mid-way project 
cancellations or the client getting an upper hand in negotiating lower billing rates.

Business segment concentration brings with it inherent risk potentials. the company has continuously tried to 
diversify its offerings in product engineering services, travel and hospitality, business intelligence and analytics, 
enterprise application business segments to mitigate significant erosion concerns.
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sr. 
No.

risk Description

4. INFLaTION aND COsT sTrUCTUre

severity : low Probability : low

Inflation and competitive pressures, including pressures from global players entering the Indian market result in 
ever increasing wage costs.

Significant and continued inflationary pressures in India lead to constant cost increases predominantly in 
employee cost and fixed overheads, which acts as a serious impediment to growth and poses uncertainty to 
the entire Indian industry. the company tries to address this risk by optimising the use of its infrastructure and 
to sustain a high level of productivity. maintaining an optimal mix of resources on its projects and a robust 
recruitment plan that systematically inducts and grooms fresh engineers into its delivery organisation is also 
meant to address part of the risk. the company is continuously evaluating cost optimisation and control measures 
to ensure that expenditure is need based and commensurate with growth and profitability.

5. IMMIGraTION reGULaTIONs

severity : medium Probability : high

availability of visas and work permits for onsite work

6. TeCHNOLOGY ObsOLesCeNCe

severity : medium Probability : low

7. eXCHaNGe raTe FLUCTUaTIONs

severity : medium Probability : medium

our functional currency (capital and operating expenses) is the Indian rupee although a major portion of the 
business is done in uS$.

volatility in currency exchange rates resulting from steep upward or downward variation of exchange rates in 
international currencies is a major challenge for the company, predominantly due to its exports and billing in 
foreign currency and the various geographies that it operates. the company addresses this issue by hedging part 
of its foreign exchange exposures suitably from time to time, reducing the cycle time for international exposures 
and also by having a diversified billing currency basket.

8. LIQUIDITY aND LeVeraGe

severity : low Probability : medium to high

9. INTeresT raTe rIsK

severity : low Probability : low

10. CreDIT rIsK 

severity : medium Probability : high

customer defaults in payment, delays in collection, client concentration
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sr. 
No.

risk Description

accounts receivable that are overdue or all posing collection difficulties are risks that have to be avoided by 
any business. the company has addressed this by having a process of establishing credit limits, periodic review 
of the account and of the receivables, coupled with direct customer connect to ensure that collections are not 
jeopardised or pose a collection risk resulting in a financial loss.

11. abILITY TO raIse resOUrCes TO FUND GrOWTH, esPeCIaLLY INOrGaNIC GrOWTH 
(aCQUIsITIONs, etc.)

severity : medium Probability : low

12. INVesTMeNT rIsK (NON-TraDe)

severity : low Probability : low

Investment risk, involves the risk of sub-optimal returns on the money invested as also loss of capital. the 
company has implemented a balanced investment policy for investing its surplus cash funds where safety of 
principal is supreme and competitive returns being the principal objective. for strategic business investments, a 
committee comprising of distinguished members of the Board and industry specialists conduct reviews before 
determining an investment opportunity.

13. CONTraCTUaL COMPLIaNCe

severity : high Probability : high

Inadequacy in contract terms will heighten the risk of the customer defaulting and can compromise the recovery 
means.

14. PrOJeCT reLaTeD rIsK

severity : high Probability : high

risk of cost escalation is mainly in fixed Price contracts and time and material contracts with a cap; and where 
deliverables are implemented in phases resulting in extended warranty and error correction service periods. the 
technical risk lies in the complexity of projects and the consequent degree of skill and sophistication required; 
and demanding response times in Service level agreements (Slas).

15. COMPLIaNCe WITH LOCaL LaWs

severity : medium Probability : medium

we mainly do overseas business in uSa, uK, Singapore and malaysia. we are required to conform to all statutory 
requirements. there could be alleged non-conformity with rules due to misinterpretation of provisions.

16. seCUrITY aND bUsINess CONTINUITY

severity : high Probability : medium

natural calamities like floods are not uncommon any longer, nor are man-made calamities like terrorist strikes.
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sr. 
No.

risk Description

17. bUsINess ParTNer rIsK

severity : low Probability : low

18. HUMaN resOUrCe MaNaGeMeNT / eMPLOYee aTTrITION

severity : low  Probability : low

ability of the company to attract and retain high quality talent in a highly competitive market. retention of 
existing talent, scouting for talent meeting set standards.

19. LOss/DaMaGe TO PHYsICaL asseTs

severity : low Probability : low

20. DaTa PrOTeCTION

severity : high Probability : high

there is imminent risk of data loss or data theft in the virtual scenario. 

INTerNaL CONTrOL sYsTeMs aND THeIr aDeQUaCY

Internal control systems are extremely significant to the company’s business. the company has well defined operational 
and other Budgets for its Business units and empowered personnel appropriately based on their scope of work and job 
specifications to take decisions. 

with the introduction of Internal financial controls (Ifc) in the companies act, 2013, the company needs to ensure that 
the policies and procedures adopted by the company ensure orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 
completeness of accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

the notable introduction in the companies act, 2013 now require:

i. under Section 134 which is applicable to a listed company such as Blue Star Infotech ltd, the directors’ responsibility 
states that directors, have laid down Ifc to be followed by the company and that such controls are adequate and 
operating effectively. 

ii. under Section 177 the audit committee may call for comments of auditors about internal control systems before 
their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors 
and the management of the company. the audit committee should act in accordance with the terms of reference 
specified in writing by the board, which should, inter alia, include evaluation of Ifc and risk management systems 

iii. further, under Section 143 the auditor’s report should also state whether the company has adequate Ifc system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

iv. according to Schedule Iv of the act, the independent directors should satisfy themselves on the integrity of 
financial information and ensure that financial controls and systems of risk management are robust and defensible.

the audit committee of Independent directors comprising mr. naresh malhotra (chairman), mr. Suresh talwar and  
dr. Prakash hebalkar meet several times during the year and engage with senior management and auditors at least 
four times or more, as required, in a year to review the internal control systems, policies and financial disclosures by the 
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company. the audit committee suggests industry best practices and methods for enhancing the level of internal control 
systems in the company.

the senior management continuously reviews the controls, procedures and systems within the organisation for 
consistency. Periodic changes or improvements are pro-actively carried out. the management makes assurances and 
also evaluates areas for risk mitigation with a plan thereof to the audit committee on an ongoing basis.

the company is constantly testing and improving its internal controls, efficiency of operations and security which meets 
or exceeds industry standards. the current systems and procedures provide reasonable assurance in the maintenance of 
appropriate accounting records, reliability of financial information, protection of resources and safeguarding of assets 
against unauthorised use. compliance with well-established systems, policies and procedures are regularly monitored 
by your company’s internal audit process both at the unit as well as the corporate level, both internally and by a team 
of external auditors.
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rePOrT ON COrPOraTe GOVerNaNCe
corporate Governance is the system of well-established rules, practices and processes by which a company is managed 
and business is conducted. corporate Governance fundamentally involves balancing the interests of numerous 
stakeholders in a company which includes the shareholders, management, clients, suppliers and the community at 
large. corporate governance practices are subject to alignment with the interests of stakeholders which results in 
carrying the business as per the stakeholder’s desires. corporate Governance is the application of best management 
practices, compliance with law in both letter and spirit and adherence to ethical standards for effective management and 
distribution of wealth and discharge of social responsibility for sustainable development of the stakeholders. corporate 
governance guidelines and best practices are progressive in nature and tend to improve and evolve with efflux of time. 
It also relates to how the organization is managed, including its corporate and other structures, its culture, policies 
and the manner in which it deals with various stakeholders. timely, accurate, adequate and appropriate disclosure of 
information regarding the financial situation, performance, ownership and governance of the company is an important 
part of corporate governance. effective corporate governance maintains investor’s confidence, as a result of which, 
company can raise capital efficiently and effectively. Good corporate Governance practices are valued and appreciated 
by all stakeholders and enhances the reputation of the company.

our company’s philosophy on corporate Governance principles has always been value driven and aimed at setting the 
right example by our conduct in business and therefore it is more than a mere set of binding obligations and more of a 
framework to be followed in spirit by everyone associated with the organisation. 

I. COMPaNY’s PHILOsOPHY ON CODe OF GOVerNaNCe

 the company believes that its philosophy on corporate Governance is to remain a trusted corporate citizen in the 
local and international society through open and fair business practices that honour the spirit of the law of every 
nation. In order to put that philosophy into practice, the company builds favourable relationships and emphasises 
the need for full transparency and accountability in all its transactions, in order to protect the interest of all of its 
stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, local communities, business associates and employees.

 the company is committed to provide various services that completely cater to client needs which is important 
in accomplishing stable, long-term growth. the company is working to enhance corporate governance through a 
variety of measures designed to further increase its competitiveness as a global company. the company believes in 
adopting the ‘best practices’ that are followed in the area of corporate governance across various geographies.

 the company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. the company has set itself a 
goal for attaining the highest standard of good governance, to meticulously pursue it and thereby maximize value 
for its stakeholders, clients, employees and public at large. In this course, the company is dedicated to ensuring that 
the Board of directors of the company is constituted as per the prescribed norms, members meet regularly as per 
the prescribed frequency, provide effective leadership, exercise control over the management, review and monitor 
executive performance and ensure appropriate disclosure.

 the company is in compliance with the requirements of corporate Governance as laid down under clause 49 of the 
listing agreement entered with the Stock exchanges.

II. bOarD OF DIreCTOrs aND KeY MaNaGerIaL PersONNeL

 a) The board

  the Board critically evaluates strategic direction of the company, management policies and their effectiveness. 
the day-to-day management of the company is entrusted to its key personnel led by mr. Sunil Bhatia, the 
chief executive officer and managing director, who operates under the superintendence, direction and 
control of the Board. the Board members possess requisite skills, experience and expertise required to take 
decisions, which are in the best interest of the company. while appointing the directors, the Board considers 
the members educational qualifications, skills, diversity and freedom in thought and action, experience and 
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commitment, in the context of the requirements of the Board at that point in time.

  Ø Board training and Induction

   while appointing a director, a formal letter of appointment is issued which also includes description on 
role, function, duties and responsibilities assigned to the director of the company. the director is also 
explained in appropriate details the compliances required under the companies act, 2013, clause 49 of 
the listing agreement and other relevant regulations. the affirmation on above matter is also obtained 
from directors.

  Ø directors’ Profile

   a brief resume of directors, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas is provided in the annual 
report. number of companies in which they hold directorship, and their shareholding in the company are 
provided in this report.

 b) Composition of the board of Directors

  the Board has an appropriate mix of executive and Independent directors to maintain the independence of 
the Board. as at 31 march 2015, the Board consists of nine directors with an executive chairman and managing 
director, a non-executive vice chairman and a chief executive officer and managing director. of the nine 
directors, seven are non-executive directors. Since the chairman of the Board is also an executive director, five 
out of nine directors are independent directors. there is one woman director on the Board.

  three of the directors are Promoters of the company.

  as per the companies act, 2013 every company shall have at least one director who has stayed in India for a 
total period of 182 days in the previous calendar year. the company has met with this requirement.

  as per the revised clause 49 of the listing agreement and as per section 149(2) of the companies act, 2013 
every listed company was required to appoint a woman director. the Board of directors on recommendation 
of nomination and remuneration committee appointed ms. Kalpana trivedi as an additional director of the 
company with effect from 30 march 2015 till the ensuing annual General meeting. ms. trivedi has indicated 
her independence and intends to be appointed as an Independent director for a period of 5 years, subject to 
the approval of the members at the ensuing annual General meeting. 

  as per the companies act, 2013 every listed company is required to have at least one-third of the total number 
of directors as independent directors. of the nine directors the company has a total of five Independent 
directors on the Board. a statement on declaration of Independence required to be made under section 149 
of the companies act, 2013 has been obtained from each of the Independent directors confirming their 
independence. the composition is in conformity with the Board composition requirements of clause 49 of the 
listing agreement entered between the company and the Stock exchanges.

 c) Key Managerial Personnel

  during the year under review the erstwhile chief financial officer and company Secretary of the company, mr. 
v. Sudarshan resigned from his position effective 31 may 2014. the casual vacancy was filled-up by mr. aloke 
Ghosh who was appointed as the chief financial officer and company Secretary of the company effective 2 
June 2014.

 d) board Meetings

  during the financial year 2014-15, the Board met four times on 14 may 2014, 23 July 2014, 17 october 2014 and 
19 January 2015. the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. the necessary 
quorum was present for all the meetings. during the year 2014-15, information as mentioned in annexure 1a 
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to clause 49 of the listing agreement has been placed before the Board for consideration.

  the details of Board of directors and their attendance in Board meetings during the year and the last aGm 
along with number of other directorships is given below:

  Details of Directors and other particulars:

Name Category Designation
Suneel advani
(dIn: 00001709)

Promoter - executive director chairman and managing director 
(“cmd”)

Sunil Bhatia#

(dIn: 03424622)
executive director chief executive officer(“ceo”) and 

managing director
ashok advani
(dIn: 00001372)

Promoter – non executive director vice chairman

Sanjay vaswani##

(dIn: 00369909)
Promoter – non executive director director

Suresh talwar
(dIn: 00001456)

Independent director director

dr. Prakash hebalkar
(dIn: 00370499)

Independent director director

naresh malhotra
(dIn: 00200322)

Independent director director

K.P.t Kutty
(dIn: 00494661)

Independent director director

Kalpana trivedi
(dIn: 07150502)

additional director/ Independent 
director/ woman director

director

  # mr. Sunil Bhatia, a Singapore national, spends considerable time between Singapore, united States of 
america and India in the course of his official duties to the company and group entities.

  ## mr. Sanjay vaswani resides in and is a citizen of the united States of america.

  Details of Directors’ attendance and other particulars:

  four Board meetings were held during the financial year 2014-15:

Director Number 
of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Last AGM 
Attendance 

(Yes/No)

Number of 
Directorships 
on the Board 

of other Public 
Companies

Number of committee 
positions in all Public 

Companies

Chairman Member

Suneel Advani 4 Yes 2 - 2

Sunil Bhatia 4 Yes - - -

Ashok Advani 4 Yes 1 - 2

Sanjay Vaswani 1 No - - -

Suresh Talwar 4 Yes 7 3 4

Dr. Prakash Hebalkar 4 Yes 1 - 3

Naresh Malhotra 4 Yes 1 2 1

K.P.T. Kutty 4 Yes - - -

Kalpana Trivedi - - - - -
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  • leave of absence sought prior to the meeting was approved / granted to all the directors who could not 
attend meetings.

  • alternate directorships, directorships in private companies, foreign companies, companies under section 
8 of the companies act, 2013 and memberships in governing councils, chambers and other bodies are 
excluded. memberships in public companies, listed and unlisted, alone have been considered.

  • none of the directors hold directorships in more than 20 companies. 

  • none of the directors is a member of more than 10 committees, or is chairman of more than 5 committees 
across all companies in which he/she is a director. for the purpose of reckoning the aforesaid limit, 
chairmanships/memberships of the audit committee and the Stakeholders’ Grievances committee alone 
are considered. 

  scheduling of board Meetings and selection of agenda items 

  the meetings are generally held at c/o Blue Star ltd, 4th floor, Band Box house, dr. annie Besant road, worli, 
mumbai – 400030 or at 4th floor, Kasturi Buildings, mohan t advani chowk, Jamshedji tata road, mumbai - 
400 020 

  the items/matters required to be placed before the Board, inter alia include: 

  Ø annual operating plans of businesses and budgets including capital budgets and any updates.

  Ø Quarterly results of the company and its operating divisions or business segments.

  Ø company’s financial results, annual financial Statements, auditors’ report and Board’s report.

  Ø minutes of meetings of the audit committee and other committees of the Board.

  Ø Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important.

  Ø transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual property.

  Ø Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries, assets, which is not in normal course of business.

  Ø Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures, and steps taken by management to limit risks of adverse 
exchange rate movement, if material.

  Ø non - compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements, and shareholders’ service, such as 
dividend non-payment, share transfer delay (if any), among others.

  Ø appointment, remuneration and resignation of directors.

  Ø formation/reconstitution of Board committees.

  Ø terms of reference of Board committees.

  Ø declaration of Independent directors at the time of appointment/annually.

  Ø disclosure of directors’ interest and their shareholding.

  Ø appointment or removal of the Key managerial Personnel.

  Ø appointment of Internal auditors and Secretarial auditors.

  Ø Quarterly / annual Secretarial audit reports submitted by Secretarial auditors.

  Ø declaration of dividend.
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  Ø Quarterly summary of all long-term borrowings made, bank guarantees issued and loans and investments 
made. 

  Ø Significant changes in accounting policies and internal controls.

  Ø takeover of a company or acquisition of a controlling or substantial stake in another company.

  Ø recommending appointment of and fixing of remuneration of the Statutory auditors as recommended 
by the audit committee.

  Ø Internal audit findings and external audit reports (through the audit committee).

  Ø Status of business risk exposures, its management and related action plans.

  Ø Investment of surplus funds.

  Ø diversification of the business of the company.

  Ø Brief on statutory developments, changes in government policies, among others with impact thereof, 
directors’ responsibilities arising out of any such developments.

  Ø certificate of compliance with all laws as applicable to the company.

  Ø reconciliation of Share capital audit report under SeBI (depositories and Participants) regulations, 1996.

  Ø Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the board level, including 
appointment or removal of chief financial officer and the company Secretary. 

  Ø any material default in financial obligations to and by the company, or substantial non-payment for 
goods sold by the company. 

  Ø any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including any 
judgement or order which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the company or taken an adverse 
view regarding another enterprise that can have negative implications on the company.

  the chairman of the Board and company Secretary, in consultation with other concerned members of the 
senior management, finalise the agenda for Board meetings.

  board material distributed in advance

  the agenda and notes on agenda are circulated to directors in advance, and in the defined agenda format. 
all material information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful and focused discussions at 
the meeting. where it is not practicable to attach any document to the agenda, it is tabled before the meeting 
with specific reference to this effect in the agenda. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or 
supplementary items on the agenda are permitted.

  recording minutes of proceedings at board and Committee meetings

  the company Secretary records minutes of proceedings of each Board and committee meeting. draft minutes 
are circulated to Board/ Board committee members for their comments. 

  Post meeting follow-up mechanism

  the Board and Board committee performs post meeting follow-up, review and reporting process for decisions 
taken by the Board and other Board committees. Important decisions taken at Board/Board committee 
meetings are communicated promptly to the concerned departments/divisions. action-taken report on 
decisions and minutes of the previous meetings are placed at the succeeding meeting of the Board and other 
Board committee. 
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  Compliance

  the company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meetings, is 
responsible for and is required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations and the Secretarial 
Standards recommended by the Institute of company Secretaries of India.

III. aUDIT COMMITTee

 the audit committee of the company is constituted in line with the provisions of clause 49 of the listing agreement 
entered into with the Stock exchanges read with Section 177 of the companies act, 2013 (“act”).

 the company has a qualified and Independent audit committee comprising three non–executive Independent 
directors, having ample financial and accounting knowledge.

 the audit committee always invites representatives of the statutory auditors and representatives of the internal 
auditors to be present at its meetings. 

 the company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the audit committee.

 the previous annual General meeting of the company was held on 23 July 2014 and was attended by mr. naresh 
malhotra, chairman of the audit committee.

 the audit committee specifically reviews and recommends the un-audited quarterly financial results before they 
are submitted to the Board for approval. minutes of each audit committee meeting are placed before the Board for 
information.

 the detailed scope of the activities of the audit committee is as set out in clause 49 of the listing agreements with 
the Stock exchanges in India read with Section 177 of the companies act, 2013.

 Terms of reference

 the audit committee has inter-alia the following mandate:

 • review of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial statements reflect a true and fair position and that sufficient and credible information are 
disclosed.

 • recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also approval for 
payment for any other services.

 • reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report, including quarterly / half yearly financial information.

 • review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process.

 • reviewing with management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board.

 • reviewing the company’s financial and risk management policies.

 • reviewing with the management, external and internal auditors the adequacy of internal control systems.

 • reviewing management discussion and analysis of financial condition, statement of significant related party 
transactions, management letter / letters of internal control weaknesses and appointment, removal and terms 
of remuneration of the Internal auditor.

 • approval of any subsequent modification to terms of transactions of the company with related parties.

 • valuation of undertaking or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.
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 • reviewing the internal audit reports relating to internal control weakness.

 • carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee

 Composition

 the composition of the audit committee is given below:

 Naresh Malhotra : Chairman

 suresh Talwar : Member

 Dr. Prakash Hebalkar : Member

 secretary

 aloke Ghosh  : Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

 Meetings and attendance during the year

 during the financial year 2014-15, four audit committee meetings were held – on 14 may 2014, 22 July 2014, 17 
october 2014 and 19 January 2015. the necessary quorum was present at the meetings.

Members Meetings attended
naresh malhotra 4
Suresh talwar 4
dr. Prakash hebalkar 4

 the representatives of statutory and internal auditors are permanent invitees to the audit committee meetings. 
they have attended all the audit committee meetings held during the year.

IV. NOMINaTION aND reMUNeraTION COMMITTee

 the scope of the committee has been defined by the Board of directors in accordance with clause 49 of the listing 
agreement, which among others, includes key issues referred by the Board, aspects relating to the remuneration of 
directors; bonuses, promotions, benefits and performance targets of top management executives.

 the company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the senior management and the 
company. through its compensation programme, the company endeavours to attract, retain, develop and motivate 
a high performance workforce. the company follows a compensation mix of fixed pay, benefits and performance 
based variable pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance and the performance of 
the individuals measured through the annual appraisal process.

 Terms of reference

 the nomination and remuneration committee is responsible to identify potential candidates who are qualified to 
serve as directors and also who may be appointed as senior management personnel in accordance with the laid 
down and approved criteria. 

 the nomination and remuneration committee is also responsible to recommend the composition of the Board 
members from time to time. the committee is also required to carry out evaluation of each and every director’s 
performance.

 the nomination and remuneration committee is responsible to review and discuss all matters pertaining to 
candidates and will evaluate the candidates in accordance with a process that it sees fit and thereafter pass on the 
recommendations to the Board. the committee co-ordinates and oversees the annual evaluation of the Board and 
of Individual directors. It also reviews the performance of all the executive directors on a yearly basis or on such 
intervals as may be necessary. It is also responsible to formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent directors 
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and the Board and also to devise a policy on board diversity. the committee regularly appraises the parameters on 
which the individual is evaluated and makes necessary amendments periodically.

 the nomination and remuneration committee is also responsible to formulate detailed terms and conditions of 
the employees’ Stock option Scheme for directors and employees of the company;

 Ø the quantum of options to be granted under employees’ Stock option Scheme per employee and in aggregate;

 Ø the conditions under which option vested in employees may lapse in case of termination of employment for 
misconduct;

 Ø the exercise period within which the employee should exercise the option; 

 Ø the specified time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event of 
termination or resignation of an employee;

 Ø the procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the number of options and to the exercise price 
in case of corporate actions, such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger, sale of division and others;

 Ø to carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory 
notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable;

 Ø to perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

 the nomination and remuneration committee has formulated a policy for selection and appointment of directors, 
Key managerial Personnel and senior management employees. the committee shall annually review and approve 
for the chief executive officer and managing director, the executive directors and officers: a) the annual base 
salary; b) the annual incentive bonus; c) employee stock options; d) employment agreements and e) any other 
benefits, compensation or arrangements.

 the nomination and remuneration committee policy, the Board diversity and terms and conditions of appointment 
of directors are displayed on the company website www.bsil.com. 

 Composition

 only independent directors are a part of the nomination and remuneration committee.

 Dr. Prakash Hebalkar : Chairman

 suresh Talwar : Member

 Naresh Malhotra : Member

 secretary

 aloke Ghosh  : Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

 Meetings and attendance during the year 

 during the financial year 2014 - 15, the committee meetings were held on 28 april 2014, 16 december 2014 and 26 
march 2015. all the members were present at each and every meeting. there was adequate quorum for the meeting.

Members Meetings attended
dr. Prakash hebalkar 3
Suresh talwar 3
naresh malhotra 3

 In the april 2014 meeting, the committee reviewed the terms of appointment of mr. nishith mathur, the chief 
operating officer of the company.
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 In the december 2014 meeting, the committee reviewed the terms of the leave and license agreement for the 
residential premises taken on lease by the company for its chairman and managing director. there is no change in 
the cost to the company. however, the ownership of the said premises had changed resulting in a fresh leave and 
licence agreement requiring the committee’s consideration.

 In their meeting held in march 2015, the nomination and remuneration committee recommended the appointment 
of ms. Kalpana trivedi to the Board. 

 the important terms and conditions of appointment of ms. Kalpana trivedi as determined by the committee are:

 1. She shall hold office as an additional director until the ensuing General meeting of the company. her 
subsequent confirmation as a director and further appointment as an Independent director shall be 
considered by the shareholders for approval at the said General meeting, as per the provisions of the 
companies act, 2013.

 2. It is noted that ms. trivedi qualifies as a person independent of the company, its Board of directors and other 
Key managerial persons.

 3. In consideration of ms. trivedi agreeing to act as an additional director of the company as defined in the 
companies act, 2013 (the “act”), she will be entitled to remuneration as stated below :-

  (i) a sitting fee of ` 50,000 per meeting of the Board and committees of the Board attended by her.

  (ii) non- executive director’s commission of an amount that will be determined by the nomination and 
remuneration committee and duly approved by the Board at the time of adoption of audited financial 
statements of the company for each financial year. 

  (iii) ms. trivedi shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred by her in connection with her 
attendance at Board and committee meetings.

  (iv) the company shall cover ms. trivedi under the terms of the directors and officers liability Insurance 
policy at all times.

 ms. trivedi shall comply with the relevant provisions of the code for Independent directors as set out in Schedule 
Iv of the companies act 2013, and any modifications/ revisions from time to time.

 the appointment letter is placed on the website of the company.

V. COMPeNsaTION COMMITTee

 the compensation committee considers and recommends the compensation of selected senior management 
employees of the company as also the allotment/devolution of employee Stock options (eSoP’s) under approved 
eSoP Scheme 2003 (revised 2015).

 during the financial year 2014 - 15, the meeting of this committee was held on 16 december 2014 and 18 
december 2014 (reconvening of adjourned meeting) for the purpose of further grant of eSoP to the employees 
of the company and its subsidiaries. due to paucity of time there was an adjournment of the meeting held on 16 
december 2014 which was subsequently concluded on 18 december 2014.

 Composition

 suneel advani : Chairman

 suresh Talwar : Member

 Dr. Prakash Hebalkar : Member
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 secretary

 aloke Ghosh  : Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

 Meetings and attendance during the year

Members Meetings attended*
Suneel advani 1
Suresh talwar 1
dr. Prakash hebalkar 1

 * inclusive of an adjourned meeting

 there was adequate quorum for the meeting.

VI. sTaKeHOLDers’ GrIeVaNCe COMMITTee

 the company had a Shareholder’s Grievance committee till 31 march 2014 which looked into the interests 
of shareholders of the company. the scope of this committee has been enhanced to cover all stakeholder 
considerations. thereby the committee is re-christened as the “Stakeholders Grievance committee”

 the Stakeholders’ Grievance committee of directors looks into the effective redressal of complaints of investors 
such as transfer or credit of shares, non-receipt of dividend / notices / annual reports, etc. 

 the committee meets once a year or more if required to review all investor grievances and to ensure that these are 
redressed by the compliance officer and / or the registrar and transfer agents of the company, within a period of 
7-10 days from the date of receipt of complaint, except those that are constrained by legal impediments/procedural 
issues. 

 Terms of reference

 Ø oversee and review all matters connected with the transfer of the company’s securities.

 Ø approve issue of the company’s duplicate share /debenture certificates.

 Ø consider, resolve and monitor redressal of investors’/ shareholders’ / security holders’ grievances related to 
transfer of securities, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividend etc.

 Ø oversee the performance of the company’s registrars and transfer agents.

 Ø recommend methods to upgrade the standard of services to investors.

 Ø monitor implementation and compliance with the company’s code of conduct for Prohibition of Insider 
trading.

 Ø carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory 
notification / amendment or modification as may be applicable.

 Ø Perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

 the company Secretary is the secretary for this committee. the composition of the Stakeholders’ Grievance 
committee is given below:

 Composition

 ashok advani : Chairman

 suneel advani : Member

 Dr. Prakash Hebalkar : Member
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 secretary

 aloke Ghosh  : Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

 Meetings and attendance during the year

 during the financial year 2014-15, the committee met on 19 January 2015.

Members Meetings attended
ashok advani 1
Suneel advani 1
dr. Prakash hebalkar 1

 the constitution, duties and responsibilities of the Stakeholder’s Grievance committee are in line with clause 49 of 
the listing agreement with the stock exchanges. 

 the total number of shareholders’ complaints received and responded to by the registrar to the satisfaction of 
shareholders during the year under review was 32. all complaints of shareholders were satisfactorily resolved. no 
requests were pending as at 31 march 2015. 

 Financial Year ended 31 March

Nature of Complaints 2015 2014
received attended received attended

non-receipt of dividend 20 20 10 10
Issues with share certificates / demat account / 
share transfers

4 4 6 6

non-receipt of annual report 7 7 3 3
others 1 1 0 0
Total for the year 32 32 19 19

 Quarter-wise Comparative break-up of Investor Grievances:

 Financial Year ended 31 March

Quarter ending 2015 2014
received attended received attended

30 June 2 2 3 3
30 September 20 20 7 7
31 december 3 3 4 4
31 march 7 7 5 5
Total for the year 32 32 19 19

 Investor awareness

 the company has provided a synopsis of some of the rights and responsibilities as a shareholder on our website 
www.bsil.com in the investors section. the shareholders are requested to visit our website and read the document. 
It is the company’s earnest effort to provide guidance to the shareholders and answer questions regarding their 
rights and responsibilities.

VII. COrPOraTe sOCIaL resPONsIbILITY

 the corporate Social responsibility (cSr) committee will determine based on its priorities from time to time the 
actions envisaged under its cSr objectives. Prior to the commencement of any cSr activity, a formal baseline study 
of the proposed actions will be performed. 
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 the objective of the committee is to focus on nutrition and poverty alleviation, education and skill development, 
women welfare and empowerment, health, sanitation and child welfare, environmental protection and contribution 
to various government sponsored relief and development programs.

 Terms of reference 

 as per the provisions of the companies act, 2013 and the rules made there under, the responsibilities of the cSr 
committee includes.

 - formulating and recommending to the Board of directors of the company the cSr policy and the activities to 
be undertaken

 - recommending the amount to be spent for cSr activities

 - monitoring cSr activities from time to time / on a regular basis

 - to determine the locations for cSr activity

 Composition

 suneel advani : Chairman
 sunil bhatia  : Member
 suresh Talwar : Member
 K. P. T. Kutty  : Member

 Meetings and attendance during the year

 during the financial year 2014 -15, the committee met on 19 January 2015. the necessary quorum was present for 
the meeting.

Members Meetings attended
Suneel advani 1
Sunil Bhatia 1
Suresh talwar 1
K. P. t. Kutty 1

VIII. bUsINess OPeraTIONs aPPrOVaL COMMITTee

 In order to reduce the time taken for processing of various bank related transactions, which become subject to the 
Board approval, it was considered necessary to constitute the committee.

 Terms of reference

 Ø approve all matters relating to opening and closure of bank account of the company

 Ø to issue letter of authority or power of attorney on behalf of the company

 Ø to include or revoke authorised signatories to bank accounts for various operational matters from time to time 
and define such limits of operation as may be considered necessary.

 Composition

 suneel advani : Chairman

 sunil bhatia  : Member

 Meetings and attendance during the year

 during the financial year 2014-15, the committee met on 14 may 2014, 19 may 2014, 25 September 2014, 30 
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october 2014 and 16 december 2014. the necessary quorum was present for the meeting.

Members Meetings attended
Suneel advani 5
Sunil Bhatia 5

IX. INDePeNDeNT DIreCTOrs

 a. INDePeNDeNT DIreCTOrs MeeTINGs

  Terms of reference

  during the financial year 2014-15, the Independent directors met on 16 december 2014, inter alia to discuss 
and carry out certain actions:

  • evaluation of the performance of non Independent directors and the Board of directors as a whole.

  • evaluation of the performance of the chairman of the company, taking into account the views of the 
executive and non-executive directors.

  • assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management 
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

  Composition

  Naresh Malhotra : Chairman

  suresh Talwar : Member

  Dr. Prakash Hebalkar : Member

  K. P. T. Kutty : Member

  Meetings and attendance during the year

  during the financial year 2014-15, the committee meeting was held on 16 december 2014. the necessary 
quorum was present for the meeting.

Members Meetings attended
naresh malhotra 1
Suresh talwar 1
dr. Prakash hebalkar 1
K. P. t. Kutty 1

 B. PrOCeDUre aT COMMITTee MeeTINGs

  the company’s guidelines relating to Board meetings are applicable to committee meetings as far as 
practicable. each committee has the authority to engage outside experts, advisors and counsels to the extent 
it considers appropriate to assist in its function. minutes of proceedings of committee meetings are circulated 
to the directors and placed before Board meetings.

 c. FaMILIarIsaTION PrOGraMMe FOr INDePeNDeNT DIreCTOrs

  In terms of clause 49(II)(B)(7) of the listing agreement, the company is expected to conduct familiarisation 
Programs for Independent directors about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the 
industry in which the company operates, business model of the company etc. through various initiatives.

  the Board members are provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies to enable them 
to familiarise with the company’s procedures and practices. Periodic presentations are made at the Board 
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and Board committee meetings, on business and performance updates of the company, global business 
environment, business strategy and risk involved.

  the details of the familiarisation programme are disclosed from time to time on the company’s website and 
can be accessed at www.bsil.com/policies/Id. 

X. reMUNeraTION TO DIreCTOrs 

 non-executive directors are paid commission, based on the net profit of the company, partly by way of fixed 
amount and partly based on the number of Board and audit committee meetings attended by them. the non 
– executive directors were paid sitting fees of ` 20,000 each per meeting till 31 may 2014. effective 1 June 2014, 
the sitting fee for various meetings of the Board and its committees is revised to ` 50,000 per meeting. details of 
remuneration paid/payable to directors for financial year 2014-15 is as follows:  

 (` in Lakhs)

Name of the Director salary, 
Incentives and 

Perquisites (Net 
of recoveries,  

if any)

reimbursement 
of CeO and MD’s 
remuneration

Commission sitting fees Total

Suneel advani 43.55 43.55
(44.40) (44.40)

Sunil Bhatia  141.40 178.89 320.29
(137.51) (186.37) (323.88)

ashok advani 5.00 1.70 6.70
(5.10) (0.80) (5.90)

Sanjay vaswani 5.00 0.50 5.50
(4.05) (0.20) (4.25)

Suresh talwar 5.00 5.90 10.90
(5.85) (1.20) (7.05)

dr. Prakash hebalkar 5.00 5.40 10.40
(7.50) (1.60) (9.10)

naresh malhotra 5.00 4.90 9.90
 (8.25) (1.60) (9.85)

K.P.t. Kutty 5.00 2.70 7.70
(4.35) (0.40) (4.75)

Total 184.95 178.89 30.00 21.10 414.94 
(181.91) (186.37) (35.10)  (5.80) (409.18)

 (a) Previous year’s figures are indicated in brackets in italics.

 (b) commission to the non-executive directors is proposed at 1.65% of the profits for the year 2014-15. this 
amount would be held in trust by the non-executive directors and is subject to the approval by the members at 
the ensuing annual General meeting. In the previous year, commission was paid at 2% of the profits computed 
for the purpose of managerial remuneration.

 (c) the executive directors, namely the cmd and the ceo and md are not paid sitting fees and commission.

 (d) effective 1 november 2008 (` lakhs) 2.20 per month is paid as salary to the cmd. the cost of the accommodation 
provided by the company to the cmd amounts to (` lakhs) 1.50 per month (net) till 30 october 2014. from 
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1 november 2014 the cost has reduced to (` In lakhs) 1.35 per month (net). he was re-appointed as the cmd 
w.e.f. 7 June 2011 as per the same terms for a further period of five years at the aGm of the company held on 
22 July 2011.

 (e) the ceo and md is paid salary by the Singapore subsidiary of the company viz., Blue Star Infotech Singapore 
Pte. ltd. a sum of (` lakhs) 178.89 is reimbursed to the subsidiary company towards value of the services 
rendered by the chief executive officer and managing director to the company.

 (f ) the ceo and md has exercised 3, 17,000 stock options at ` 60 per share during the year.

XI. DeTaILs OF sHareHOLDING OF NON-eXeCUTIVe DIreCTOrs 

sr. 
No.

Name of the Director shareholding 
as at  

31 March 2015
(No. of shares)

shareholding 
as at  

31 March 2014
(No. of shares)

1 ashok advani 7,95,165 7,95,165
2 Suresh talwar 15,075 15,075
3 Sanjay vaswani 14,750 14,750
4 naresh malhotra 3,733 7,175
5 K.P.t. Kutty 2,650 2,650
6 dr. Prakash hebalkar nIl nIl
7 Kalpana trivedi nIl nIl

XII. PerFOrMaNCe eVaLUaTION OF DIreCTOrs

 Pursuant to the provisions of the companies act, 2013 and clause 49 of the listing agreement, the Board has 
carried out the annual performance evaluation for the following:

 - the directors individually

 - the audit committee 

 - the nomination and remuneration committee

 a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the directors, 
covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its 
committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, operational results etc. 

 a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual directors including the chairman 
of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence 
of judgement, safeguarding the interest of the company and its majority shareholders etc. the performance 
evaluation of the Independent directors was carried out by the entire Board. the performance evaluation of the 
chairman, the non Independent directors and Board as a whole was carried out by the Independent directors. the 
directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

XIII. reLaTeD ParTY TraNsaCTIONs

 all transactions entered into with related Parties as defined under the companies act, 2013 and clause 49 of the 
listing agreement during the financial year were in ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis 
and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the companies act, 2013. there were no materially significant 
transactions with related parties during the financial year which were in conflict with the interest of the company. 
there have been no materially significant related party transactions or relationships between the company and 



Blue Star Infotech lImIted80

directors, the management, subsidiaries or relatives, except for those disclosed in the Board’s report. Suitable 
disclosure as required by the accounting Standard -18 “related Party disclosures” has been made in the notes to 
the financial Statements. a statement of related party transactions is separately provided as an annexure to the 
directors report.

 the company policy for related party transactions is available on the company’s website at http://www.bsil.com/
about-us.

XIV. seCreTarIaL aUDIT rePOrT

 as per section 204 of the companies act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder, every listed company is required to 
get its records verified under Secretarial audit. the Board of directors of the company appointed m/s. Jayshree 
dagli and associates, Practising company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial audit of records and documents of 
the company. the Secretarial audit report confirms that the company has complied with the laws and provisions 
applicable to the company.

 the Secretarial audit report forms a part of the directors’ report. there are no qualifications in the said report.

XV. DIsCLOsUres

 a. no penalties/strictures were imposed on the company by the stock exchanges or SeBI or any statutory 
authority in any matters related to the capital markets during the last three years.

 B. the company remains committed to the cause of maintaining fair dealing in all its transactions. In furtherance of 
this philosophy, the company has constantly ensured that any immoral or unethical activity could be reported 
by any of its employees directly to the members of the senior management or to the audit committee, with 
adequate safeguards against victimising the whistle-blower. the company affirms that no employee has been 
denied direct access to the audit committee.

 c. Your company recognises the role of prompt reporting of crimes – technological or otherwise – for moving 
towards transparent governance. any suspicion of criminal activity should be reported promptly no matter 
how remote or minimal the damage. towards this end, the company declares that it is constantly upgrading 
its technological fraud detection safeguards imbibed within its system, which are a combination of process 
controls and technological controls. the company also declares that there have not been any known instances 
of technological frauds detected within the company or on the company during the year.

 d. risks are an imminent part of business and the industry in which the company operates. the company operates 
in multiple geographies and in the technology industry and is constantly prone to new kinds of technological 
risks. Your company has in place a dynamic risk management Policy to deal with the uncertainties of the times, 
where risks have been categorised based on the following criteria:

  ü nature of risk: external, operational and financial 

  ü Severity of risk: low, medium and high

  ü Probability of risk: low, medium and high

  the Policy describes each risk in detail and analyses the risk mitigation strategy to counter every risk. the Policy 
is periodically reviewed by the risk management committee comprising of senior management personnel of 
the company. 

  to cover risks and to compensate for the losses which can occur due to the risks involved in the business, the 
company acquires appropriate insurance policies, some of the major ones are described below:

  ü directors and officers Policy
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  ü commercial crime Policy

  ü Professional Indemnity Policy

  ü commercial General liability Policy

  ü employment Practices liability Insurance Policy

 e. the company has a Policy of prohibition of Insider trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by the 
directors and designated employees of the company. the code requires pre – clearance for dealing in the 
company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of company shares by the directors and the designated 
employees, while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the company and 
during the period when the trading window is closed. Your company also has several other policies in place, 
the scope and content of which is reviewed by the Board and audit committee at regular intervals. the key 
policies are indicated below:

  ü employees code of conduct

  ü Policy on electronic communication and asset usage

  ü Policy on prevention of sexual harassment 

  ü whistle Blower’s policy

  ü Policy on verification of fixed assets

  ü related Party transactions Policy

  ü corporate Social responsibility Policy

  ü risk management Policy

  every policy has a defined implementation mechanism.

 f. Your company has consistently maintained a regime of unqualified financial statements since inception.

 G. the audit committee reviews the consolidated financial statements of your company and the investments 
made by its unlisted subsidiary companies. the minutes of the board meetings along with a report on 
significant developments of the unlisted subsidiary companies are periodically placed before the Board of 
directors of the company.

 h. the chief executive officer and managing director and the chief financial officer have certified to the Board 
with regard to the financial statements and other matters as required by clause 49 of the listing agreement. 
the certificate is contained in this annual report.

 I. reconciliation of Share capital audit: a qualified practicing company Secretary carried out a Share capital 
audit to reconcile the total admitted equity share capital with the national Securities depository limited 
(nSdl) and the central depository Services (India) limited (cdSl) and the total issued and listed equity share 
capital. the audit report confirms that the total paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares 
in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with nSdl and cdSl.

XVI. CODe OF CONDUCT

 the company has in place a comprehensive code of conduct (the code) applicable to all the employees and 
non-executive directors including Independent directors. the extent of applicability of code to non – executive 
directors and Independent directors depends on their roles and responsibilities. the code gives guidance and 
support needed for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. the code reflects the values of the company 
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viz. customer value, ownership mind-set, respect, Integrity, one team and excellence. 

 a copy of the code has been put on the company’s website (www.bsil.com). the code has been circulated to 
directors and management Personnel, and its compliance is affirmed by them annually. 

 a declaration signed by the company’s chairman and managing director is published in this report.

XVII. MeaNs OF COMMUNICaTION

 Quarterly results: the company publishes its quarterly results in the prescribed form, within the prescribed time. 
the results are sent to the stock exchanges where the company’s shares are listed and the same was published 
in economic times and maharashtra times for the quarters ending 30 June 2014 (Q1), 30 September 2014 (Q2), 
31 december 2014 (Q3) and 31 march 2015 (Q4). the financial results are also displayed on corporate filing and 
dissemination System (cfdS) on SeBI’s website www.corpfiling.co.in and also on the company’s website, www.bsil.
com. the financial results are available on the websites of the Bombay Stock exchange ltd. (BSe) and national Stock 
exchange of India ltd. (nSe).

 annual report: the annual report containing, inter alia, audited Standalone and consolidated financial 
Statements, directors’ report, auditors’ report and other important information is circulated to members and 
others entitled thereto. the management’s discussion and analysis (md&a) report forms part of the annual report 
and is also displayed on the company’s website (www.bsil.com).

 Chairman’s Communiqué: the printed copy of the chairman’s speech is distributed to shareholders at annual 
General meetings. the document is also placed on the company’s website (www.bsil.com) and sent to Stock 
exchanges.

 sebI Complaints redress system (sCOres): the investor complaints are processed in a centralised web-based 
complaints redress system. the salient features of this system are: centralised database of all complaints, upload of 
action taken reports (atrs) by concerned companies and online viewing by investors of complaint status and its 
disposal. 

XVIII. GreeN INITIaTIVes IN COrPOraTe GOVerNaNCe

 the ministry of corporate affairs has permitted companies to send electronic copies of annual report, notices, 
quarterly results, intimation about dividend etc., to the e-mail Ids of shareholders. Your company had accordingly 
arranged to send e-COMMUNICaTION reGIsTraTION FOrM which can be filled in by you and submitted to the 
registrars m/s link Intime India Pvt. ltd to subscribe to receive soft copies of these documents on your e-mail ids. 

 as at 31 march 2015, 35.84% of shareholders (Previous Year 29.79%) have opted for electronic mode of 
communication for receiving of permitted documents. 

XIX. COMPaNY INFOrMaTION

 General Information about the Company:

sr. 
No.

Particulars Information

1 corporate identity number (cIn) of the company: l72200mh1997Plc110459
2 registered address: 8th floor, the Great oasis, Plot no d-13, mIdc, andheri 

(east), mumbai- 400093
3 website: www.bsil.com
4 e-mail id for contact: Ir@bsil.com
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sr. 
No.

Particulars Information

5 financial Year reported 1 april 2014 to 31 march 2015.
6 Income tax Permanent account number aaacB6385J
7 Sectors that the company is engaged in 

(industrial activity code-wise):
computer software development services and software 
distribution
Itc code: 99831311 – It consulting Services

8 Key services provided by the company a) Software development, 
b) erP implementation / consulting, 
c) testing

9 total number of locations where business 
activity is undertaken by the company: 

national (India): 7 (Seven) - mumbai (6) / Bangalore (1)
International: 6 (Six) - uSa-3, uK-1, Singapore -1, malaysia 
-1

10 markets served by the company: India, united States of america, western europe, Singapore 
and malaysia

XX. GeNeraL bODY MeeTINGs

 a) details of the last three annual general meetings (aGms) of the company are given below:

Financial 
Year ended

Date and 
Time

Venue special resolution passed

31 march 
2014

23 July 2014 
at 3.00 p.m.

Jai hind college hall, 
23-24, Back bay 
reclamation, 
‘a’ road, churchgate, 
mumbai –400 020.

1. appointment of dr. Prakash hebalkar (holding 
dIn : 00370499), as an Independent director of 
the company for a period of five consecutive 
years from 23 July 2014 to 22 July 2019

2. appointment of mr. naresh malhotra (holding 
dIn : 00200322), as an Independent director of 
the company for a period of five consecutive 
years from 23 July 2014 to 22 July 2019

3. appointment of mr. Suresh talwar (holding dIn 
: 00001456), as an Independent director of the 
company for a period of five consecutive years 
from 23 July 2014 to 22 July 2019

4. appointment of mr. K. P. t. Kutty (holding dIn 
: 00494661), as an Independent director of the 
company for a period of five consecutive years 
from 23 July 2014 to 22 July 2019

31 march 
2013

18 July 2013 
at 2.30 p.m.

Jai hind college hall,  
23-24, Back bay 
reclamation,  
‘a’ road, churchgate,  
mumbai - 400 020.

1. extension of the term of office of mr. Sunil 
Bhatia, the chief executive officer and managing 
director of the company and revision of his 
compensation

2. amendment to the Blue Star Infotech employees 
Stock option Scheme, 2003 (amended 2011) of 
the company with SeBI notifications/ guidelines.
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Financial 
Year ended

Date and 
Time

Venue special resolution passed

31 march 
2012

19 July 2012 
at 2.30 p.m.

Jai hind college hall,  
23-24, Back bay 
reclamation,  
‘a’ road, churchgate, 
mumbai - 400 020.

none

 b) no extraordinary General meeting of the members was held during the year 2014-15.

XXI. OTHer INFOrMaTION FOr sHareHOLDers

 a) annual General Meeting

  the 17th annual General meeting for fY 2013-14 was held on 23 July 2014.

  for the financial Year 2014-15, the annual General meeting is scheduled as follows:

  date : 21 July 2015

  time : 03.00 p.m.

  venue:  Jai hind college hall, 23-24, Backbay reclamation, Sitaram deora marg (‘a’ road), churchgate, 
mumbai – 400 020.

  as required under clause 49(Iv) (G) (i) of the listing agreements entered into with the Stock exchanges, 
particulars of directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming aGm are given in the 
annexure to the notice of the aGm to be held on 21 July 2015.

 b) Financial Calendar for the year 2015–16

Declaration of results for the quarter ending on Tentative date
30 June 2015 fourth week of July 2015
30 September 2015 fourth week of october 2015
31 december 2015 fourth week of January 2016
31 march 2016 Second week of may 2016
19th annual General meeting third week of July 2016

 c) Dates of book Closure: wednesday, 1 July 2015 to tuesday, 7 July 2015 (both days inclusive)

 d) Proposed Dividend: ` 4/- per share of face value, `10/- each (Previous year ` 4/- per share of face value `10/- 
each).

 e) Dividend Payment Date: If approved, dividend shall be paid / credited on or after 24 July 2015.

 f) Listing on stock exchanges 

  • BSe limited (BSe)
   25th floor, P. J. towers, dalal Street
   mumbai 400 001, mumbai.

  • the national Stock exchange of India limited (nSe). 
   exchange Plaza, c-1, Block G
   Bandra Kurla complex
   Bandra (east), mumbai 400 051
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 g) stock Code/symbol :

  • bse: 532346

  • Nse: BlueStInfo

  listing fees as applicable have been paid.

  ISIn no. for nSdl/cdSl: Ine 504B01011

 h) Dividend Payment History

Financial Year Dividend (`) per share of  
face value ` 10

Dividend as a % of the face 
value of each equity share

2001-02 6.00 60%
2002-03 7.50 75%
2003-04 9.00 90%
2004-05 5.00 50%
2005-06 2.00 20%

 2006-07* 4.00 40%
2007-08 2.50 25%
2008-09 5.00 50%
2009-10 5.00 50%
2010-11 3.00 30%
2011-12 2.00 20%
2012-13 2.00 20%
2013-14 4.00 40%
2014-15

(Proposed – subject to  
members approval)

4.00 40%

  * represents Interim and final dividend of ` 2 each per share

 i) Unclaimed Dividend

  Shareholders who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants or in cases where the accounts could not be 
credited have been individually informed about the money due to them and the procedure to claim the same 
from the company.

  i. unclaimed/unpaid dividend till the financial year 2006-07 has been transferred to the Investors education 
and Protection fund (IePf) on 4 october 2014 on the completion of the mandatory 7 (seven) year period. 
Shareholders are advised that no claims will lie against the company or the IePf in respect of the unclaimed 
amounts so transferred.

  ii. the unclaimed/unpaid dividend declared in the financial year 2007-08 is due for transfer to the Investors 
education and Protection fund (IePf) 30 days after the due date i.e. 29 September 2015 on the completion 
of the mandatory 7 (seven) year period. Shareholders are advised that no claims will lie against the company 
after 30 august 2015 in respect of the unclaimed amounts proposed to be transferred. Shareholders who 
have not yet encashed their dividend warrants are requested to forward their claims to the company or 
Share transfer agents.

 j) Nomination Facility

  Shareholders who hold shares in the physical form and wish to make/change a nomination in respect of their 
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shares in the company, as permitted under Section 72 of the companies act, 2013, may submit the necessary 
forms/details to the company’s registrar and transfer agents, link Intime India Pvt. ltd., in the prescribed form 
Sh-13. a soft copy of the form can be downloaded from the company’s website www.bsil.com under the 
investors section. Shareholders with holdings in demat accounts should contact their respective depository 
participants directly for this purpose.

 k) Payment of Dividend by National electronic Clearing service (NeCs)

  In order to facilitate the shareholders, who wish to avail of the facility of direct credit of dividend amounts to 
their bank accounts, your company, through its registrars link Intime India Pvt. ltd has sent out necS mandate 
letters which can be filled in and submitted to the registrars or you can also avail the necS mandate form from 
the company’s website www.bsil.com under the investors section and follow the instructions mentioned in 
the form.

 l) e-voting facility:

  under the provisions of Section 108 of the companies act, 2013 read with rule 20 of the companies 
(management and administration) rules, 2014, the company is providing shareholders the facility to exercise 
their right to vote at the 18th annual General meeting (aGm) by electronic means on the resolutions which can 
be transacted through e-voting facility provided by national Securities depository limited (nSdl).

  further, in respect of the amendments made in clause 35B of the listing agreement by SeBI, the company is 
sending in advance of the annual General meeting, assent / dissent forms to the members to enable those 
who do not have access to e-voting facility to cast their vote on the shareholders resolution(s) to be passed at 
the ensuing annual General meeting, by sending their assent or dissent in writing.

 m) right to Dividend:

  any person becoming the shareholder of the company on or after the record date i.e. 1 July 2015 will not be 
eligible to receive dividends for the financial year 2014-15. 

 n) annual High-Low price History

  Market Price Data

Financial Year bse Nse
High  

(`/share)
Low  

(`/share)
High  

(`/share)
Low  

(`/share)
2001-02 151.00 29.00 154.65 28.15
2002-03 220.00 102.10 220.00 103.00
2003-04 254.80 103.20 257.00 100.50
2004-05 209.00 128.00 220.90 123.00
2005-06 188.80 98.60 189.40 98.10
2006-07 144.50 59.00 145.00 57.00
2007-08 128.20 54.00 136.10 50.60
2008-09 86.60 32.60 88.60 31.95
2009-10 155.80 47.10 156.40 47.15
2010-11 139.90 90.15 139.00 92.60
2011-12 111.40 53.50 116.75 57.40
2012-13 78.90 55.00 74.70 54.55
2013-14 144.00 48.15 144.60 48.10
2014-15 252.00 116.05 251.00 115.75



annual rePort 2014-15 87

fInancIal StatementSbOarD rePOrTscorPorate overvIew

 o) Month–wise price History during Financial year 2014-2015

  Market Price Data

Month bse Nse

High  
(`/share)

Low  
(`/share)

High  
(`/share)

Low  
(`/share)

april 2014 143.00 116.50 143.95 116.65

may 2014 161.95 116.05 162.00 115.75

June 2014 171.90 144.00 171.00 129.00

July 2014 193.00 151.55 192.00 152.20

august 2014 229.55 167.50 229.90 165.00

September 2014 252.00 211.00 251.00 211.10

october 2014 245.00 205.15 244.00 206.75

november 2014 242.00 209.00 242.00 188.00

december 2014 234.00 181.00 235.00 181.00

January 2015 245.00 200.10 244.00 201.10

february 2015 225.00 194.00 224.00 193.05

march 2015 227.00 185.00 227.50 183.00

  the performance comparison of Blue Star Infotech limited’s closing share prices in each month with S & P BSe 
Sensex are presented as follows:
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  the performance comparison of Blue Star Infotech limited’s closing share prices at the end of each month with 
nSe –cnX nifty is presented below:

 p) share Transfer system

  97.59% of the equity shares of the company are in electronic form. transfer of these shares is done through 
the depositories with no involvement of the company. as regards transfer of shares held in physical form, 
the transfer documents can be lodged with link Intime India Private limited, the registrar and share transfer 
agents of the company.

  the transfer of shares in physical form is processed and approved on a weekly basis and the certificates are 
returned to the shareholders within 15 days from the date of receipt (subject to the documents being valid and 
complete in all respects).

 q) Distribution of shareholding as at 31 March 2015

No. of equity shares held No. of 
shareholders

% of 
shareholders

Total No. of 
shares held

Total % of 
shares held

1 - 250 10,126
(10,841)

82.03
(82.62)

6,84,237
(7,56,902)

6.34
(7.29)

251 - 500 1,134
(1,232)

9.19
(9.39)

4,34,643
(4,68,822)

4.03
(4.51)

501 - 1,000 525
(553)

4.25
(4.22)

4,02,241
(4,18,953)

3.72
(4.03)

1,001 - 2,000 262
(222)

2.12
(1.69)

3,80,079
(3,22,275)

3.52
(3.10)

2,001 - 3,000 84
(70)

0.68
(0.53)

2,11,880
(1,79,528)

1.96
(1.73)

3,001 - 4,000 40
(38)

0.32
(0.29)

1,40,365
(1,31,570)

1.30
(1.27)

4,001 - 5,000 37
(40)

0.30
(0.30)

1,75,302
(1,90,805)

1.62
(1.84)
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No. of equity shares held No. of 
shareholders

% of 
shareholders

Total No. of 
shares held

Total % of 
shares held

5,001 - 10,000 61
(60)

0.49
(0.46)

4,35,657
(4,42,901)

4.03
(4.26)

10,001 and above 76
(65)

0.62
(0.50)

79,35,596
(74,73,244)

73.48
(71.97)

Total 12,345
(13,121)

100.00
(100.00)

1,08,00,000
(1,03,85,000)

100.00
(100.00)

  Previous year’s figures are indicated in brackets in italics.

r) Categories of shareholders

Particulars of shareholding as at 31 March 2015 as at 31 March 2014
No. of 
shares

% No. of 
shares

%

Indian Public 35,27,735 32.66 34,42,987 33.15
corporate Bodies (Promoter) 31,48,213 29.15 31,48,213 30.31
directors and their relatives (Promoters) 24,44,211 22.63 24,44,211 23.54
directors and their relatives (non- Promoters) 7,46,007 6.91 5,65,888  5.45
Insurance companies (GIc and Subsidiaries) 2,36,079 2.19 3,09,432 2.98
BSIl – Key employees Stock options trust 1,74,488 1.62 1,09,563 1.06
other corporate 4,12,832 3.82 2,75,995 2.66
foreign holdings 1,10,435 1.02 88,711 0.85
Total 1,08,00,000 100 1,03,85,000 100
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XXII. sHareHOLDer sTreNGTH

 as at 31 march 2015, the company had 12,345 (previous year 13,121) registered shareholders. 32.66% (previous 
year 33.15%) of the company’s shares were held by the public. the promoters, including Blue Star limited, hold 
51.78% (previous year 53.85%) of shares; the eSoP trust holds 1.62% (previous year 1.06%) and 2.19% (previous 
year 2.98%), 3.82% (previous year 2.66%) and 1.02% (previous year 0.85%) are held by insurance companies, other 
corporate and foreign parties respectively. 

XXIII. DeMaTerIaLIsaTION OF sHares aND LIQUIDITY 

 97.59 %( previous year 97.31 %) of the company’s equity shares were dematerialised as at 31 march 2015. 32.66% 
(previous year 33.15%) of the equity shares are held by the public and the shares are traded daily on the BSe and 
nSe.

XXIV.  OFFICe LOCaTIONs

 registered Office: 

 the Great oasis, 8th floor, Plot no. d -13,
 mIdc, andheri (east), mumbai 400 093.

 Development Centres (In India):

 § the Great oasis,
  3rd and 8th floor, Plot no. d -13,
  mIdc, andheri (east),
  mumbai 400 093.

 § mIdc, SeePZ, andheri (east), mumbai 400 096

  i. unit 74 at Sdf III

  ii. unit 150 at Sdf v

  iii. unit 181 at Sdf vI

  iv. unit 188 at Sdf vI

 § #7, 18th main road, 
  7th Block Koramangala,
  Bengaluru 560 095.

XXV. sHareHOLDer INQUIrIes

 Questions concerning folio, share certificates, dividend, address changes, consolidation of certificates and related 
matters should be addressed to Blue Star Infotech limited, at its registered office or its share transfer agents at the 
below mentioned addresses:

 blue star Infotech Limited 
 (attn: the Investor relations department)

 8th floor, the Great oasis,
 Plot no.d-13, mIdc, andheri (east),
 mumbai 400 093.
 tel: +91-22-66956969
 fax: +91-22-66973866
 www.bsil.com
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 e-mail:

 Investor relations: Ir@bsil.com
 company Secretary: cs@bsil.com
 registrar and Transfer agents 
 Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
 Unit: blue star Infotech Limited
 c-13 Pannalal Silk mills compound,
 lBS marg, Bhandup west,
 mumbai 400078.
 tel.: +91-22-25946970
 fax: +91- 22-25946969
 e-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 
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CODe OF CONDUCT DeCLaraTION
DeCLaraTION reGarDING COMPLIaNCe bY 
bOarD MeMbers aND seNIOr MaNaGeMeNT 
PersONNeL WITH THe COMPaNY’s CODe OF 
CONDUCT

To 

The Members of blue star Infotech Limited

Pursuant to clause 49 I (d) of the listing agreement entered into with the Stock exchanges, I hereby declare that the 
company has obtained affirmative compliance with the code of conduct from all the Board members and Senior 
management personnel of the company for the financial year ended 31 march 2015.

suneel advani

chairman and managing director

Place : mumbai

date : 14 may 2015
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auditor’s Certificate on Compliance of  
Conditions of Corporate Governance

to

The Members of blue star Infotech Limited

we have examined the compliance of the conditions of corporate Governance by Blue Star Infotech limited (the 
‘company’) for the year ended 31 march 2015, as stipulated in clause 49 of the listing agreements of the said company 
with stock exchanges in India.

the compliance of the conditions of corporate Governance is the responsibility of the company’s management. our 
examination was carried out in accordance with Guidance note on certification of corporate Governance (as stipulated 
in clause 49 of the listing agreement), issued by the Institute of chartered accountants of India and was limited to 
review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial statements 
of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 
company has complied with the conditions of corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned listing 
agreements.

we further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

for Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
chartered accountants
firm’s registration no.: 001076n/n500013

per amyn Jassani 
Partner
membership no.: 46447

Place: mumbai
date: 14 may 2015
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Certificate of Chief executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer on Corporate Governance 
to,

The board of Directors

blue star Infotech Limited
8th floor, the Great oasis
Plot no d-13, mIdc, andheri (east)
mumbai 400 093

dear Sirs,
sub: CeO / CFO CerTIFICaTe

we, Sunil Bhatia, chief executive officer and managing director and aloke Ghosh, chief financial officer and company 
Secretary hereby certify that :

(a) we have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief :

 i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

 ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violates the company’s code of conduct. 

(c) we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we 
have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, 
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

(d) there have been no significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting or the accounting policies. 
there were no instances of significant fraud on/by the company of which we have become aware.

this certificate is given by the undersigned with full knowledge that, on its faith and strength, reliance is placed by the 
Board of directors of the company.

sunil bhatia aloke Ghosh
chief executive officer chief financial officer
and managing director and company Secretary

Place: mumbai
date: 14 may 2015
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INDePeNDeNT aUDITOrs’ rePOrT
To the Members of blue star Infotech Limited

report on the standalone Financial statements

1. we have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Blue Star Infotech limited, (“the 
company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 march 2015, the Statement of Profit and loss and the 
cash flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the standalone Financial statements

2. the company’s Board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the companies act, 
2013 (“the act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements, that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 
133 of the act, read with rule 7 of the companies (accounts) rules, 2014 (as amended). this responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the act; safeguarding 
the assets of the company; preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

auditor’s responsibility

3. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

4. we have taken into account the provisions of the act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the act and the rules made 
thereunder. 

5. we conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the 
act. those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures 
in the financial statements. the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the company’s 
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company 
has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the company’s directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

7. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the act in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the company as at 31 march 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

report on Other Legal and regulatory requirements

9. as required by the companies (auditor’s report) order, 2015 (“the order”) issued by the central Government 
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the act, we give in the annexure a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

10. as required by Section 143(3) of the act, we report that:

 a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

 c. the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

 d. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the act, read with rule 7 of the companies (accounts) rules, 2014 (as amended); 

 e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 march 2015 and taken 
on record by the Board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 march 2015 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the act;

 f. with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with rule 11 of the 
companies (audit and auditors) rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

  i. as detailed in note 2.23 to the standalone financial statements, the company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position; 

  ii. the company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses; 

  iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor education and 
Protection fund by the company.

for Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)  
chartered accountants 
firm registration no.: 001076n/n500013

per amyn Jassani 
Partner  
membership no.: 46447 

Place : mumbai 
date : 14 may 2015
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annexure to the Independent auditors’ report of even date  
to the members of Blue Star Infotech limited, on the  
financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2015

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial statements 

of the company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account 

and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i) (a) the company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 

and situation of fixed assets.

 (b) the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the 

fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets.

(ii) the company does not have any tangible inventory. accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the order 

are not applicable

(iii) the company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered 

in the register maintained under Section 189 of the act. accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) and 

3(iii)(b) of the order are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the company and the 

nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. during 

the course of our audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal control system in respect of these 

areas. 

(v) the company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the act and the 

companies (acceptance of deposits) rules, 2014 (as amended). accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) 

of the order are not applicable.

(vi) to the best of our knowledge and belief, the central Government has not specified maintenance of cost 

records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the act, in respect of company’s products/ services. 

accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the order are not applicable.

(vii) (a) the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ 

state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 

added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a 

period of more than six months from the date they become payable.



Blue Star Infotech lImIted98

 (b) the dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty 

of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of dues amount  
(` in Lakhs)

amount Paid
Under Protest  

(` in Lakhs)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates
(Financial year)

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending

Income tax act, 
1961

tax deducted at Source 
in foreign country

53.48 53.48 2006-07 Income tax 
appellate 
tribunal

Penalty u/s 271(1)(c) 50.77 - 2006-07 commissioner 
of Income tax 
(appeals)

tax deducted at Source 
in foreign country

193.32 193.32 2005-06 Income tax 
appellate 
tribunal

Income tax demand 327.47 - 2005-06 commissioner 
of Income tax 
(appeals)

Penalty u/s 271(1)(c) 63.61 - 2005-06 commissioner 
of Income tax 
(appeals)

Income tax demand 276.83 - 2004-05 deputy 
commissioner of 
Income tax

 (c) the company has transferred the amount required to be transferred to the investor education and 

protection fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the companies act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and 

rules made thereunder within the specified time.

(viii) In our opinion, the company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not 

incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding financial year.

(ix)  the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank or financial institution during the year. 

the company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

(x) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the company has given guarantee for loans taken by 

others from banks or financial institutions are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the company.
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(xi)  the company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. accordingly, the provisions of 

clause 3(xi) of the order are not applicable.

(xii) no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

for Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 

(formerly walker, chandiok & co)

chartered accountants 

firm’s registration no.: 001076n/n500013

per amyn Jassani 

Partner

membership no.: 46447 

Place: mumbai

date: 14 may 2015
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 ` in lakhs

Notes  as at 
 31 March 2015 

 as at 
 31 March 2014 

equity and liabilities
shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2.1  1,080.00  1,038.50 
reserves and surplus 2.2  9,526.52  8,740.79 

 10,606.52  9,779.29 
Non-current liabilities
deferred tax liabilities (net) 2.3  155.49  178.64 
other long-term liabilities 2.4  -  331.58 
long-term provisions 2.5  184.42  170.23 

 339.91  680.45 
Current liabilities
trade payables 2.6  355.16  445.15 
other current liabilities 2.7  1,861.00  1,411.59 
Short-term provisions 2.8  554.29  489.01 

 2,770.45  2,345.75 
Total  13,716.88  12,805.49 

assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
 tangible assets 2.9  1,804.86  1,965.69 
 Intangible assets 2.9  132.32  196.38 
 Intangible assets under development  231.76  114.50 
non-current investments 2.11  2,865.37  2,561.82 
long-term loans and advances 2.12  2,459.70  2,336.78 
other non-current assets 2.13  8.34  6.37 

 7,502.35  7,181.54 
Current assets
trade receivables 2.14  4,532.43  4,492.14 
cash and bank balances 2.15  1,362.86  926.86 
Short-term loans and advances 2.16  275.90  117.00 
other current assets 2.17  43.34  87.95 

 6,214.53  5,623.95 
Total  13,716.88  12,805.49 
significant accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial statements 1 to 2.34

this is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

for WaLKer CHaNDIOK & CO LLP for bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants

per aMYN JassaNI sUNeeL aDVaNI sUNIL bHaTIa aLOKe GHOsH
Partner chairman & chief executive officer & chief financial officer & 
   managing director managing director company Secretary

Place : mumbai  
date : 14 may 2015 

baLaNCe sHeeT  
as at 31 March 2015
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sTaTeMeNT OF PrOFIT aND LOss  
For the year ended 31 March 2015  ` in lakhs

Notes  Year ended 
 31 March 2015 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2014 

revenue

Sales and software services 2.18

 exports  10,956.75  8,859.52 

 domestic  2,863.85  3,811.63 

 13,820.60  12,671.15 

other income 2.19  594.66  562.47 

Total  14,415.26  13,233.62 

expenses

Purchase of traded software licenses  271.03  439.67 

Purchase of traded hardware  234.80  73.09 

employee benefits expenses 2.20  7,264.06  6,534.44 

finance costs 2.21  50.83  46.68 

depreciation and amortisation expense 2.9  348.66  338.98 

other expenses 2.22  4,686.85  4,342.28 

Total expenses  12,856.23  11,775.14 

Profit before tax  1,559.03  1,458.48 

tax expense

– current tax  357.94  397.90 

– deferred tax  11.89  22.40 

– mat credit entitlement  (31.03)  - 

– tax pertaining to earlier years  51.20  - 

 390.00  420.30 

Net Profit  1,169.03  1,038.18 

earning per equity share (Basic) - (`) 2.31  11.06  10.00 

earning per equity share (diluted) - (`) 2.31  10.47  9.62 

face value per share - (`)  10.00  10.00 

significant accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial statements 1 to 2.34

this is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

for WaLKer CHaNDIOK & CO LLP for bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants

per aMYN JassaNI sUNeeL aDVaNI sUNIL bHaTIa aLOKe GHOsH
Partner chairman & chief executive officer & chief financial officer & 
   managing director managing director company Secretary

Place : mumbai  
date : 14 may 2015 
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` in lakhs

Year ended  
31 March 2015

Year ended  
31 March 2014

[a] Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax  1,559.03  1,458.48 

depreciation and amortisation expense  348.66  338.98 

unrealised foreign exchange loss (net)  (67.50)  134.03 

loss / (gain) on sale of fixed assets (net)  (3.49)  (2.51)

Bad debt written off  30.54  - 

excess provision for doubtful debts written back  -  (6.11)

dividend income  (0.58)  (6.36)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts  15.56  13.13 

finance costs  50.83  46.68 

Interest income  (14.34)  (16.17)

 359.68  501.67 

operating profit before working capital changes  1,918.71  1,960.15 

adjustment for:

trade and other receivables  (156.39)  (516.96)

trade payables and other liabilities  65.66  543.50 

 (90.73)  26.54 

cash generated from operations  1,827.98  1,986.69 

direct taxes (paid)/ refund received  (704.13)  (685.29)

Net cash from operating activities  1,123.85  1,301.40 

[b] Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets  
(Including capital advances)

 (138.76) (595.07) 

Sale of fixed assets  5.13  8.43 

Purchase of investments  (100.00)  (1,790.00)

Sale of investments 100.58 1909.30

Investment in subsidiary company  (303.55)  (1,006.61)

dividend received  0.58  6.36 

dividend reinvested in mutual funds  (0.58)  (6.36)

Interest received  14.02  38.38 

fixed deposit encashed from bank  9.51  552.24 

Net cash (used in) investing activities  (413.07)  (883.33) 

CasH FLOW sTaTeMeNT  
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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` in lakhs

Year ended  
31 March 2015

Year ended  
31 March 2014

[C] Cash flows from financing activities

Interest and processing fees paid  (50.83)  (46.68)

Issue of share capital  253.91  - 

dividend and tax thereon paid  (486.00)  (243.00)

Net cash (used in) financing activities  (282.92)  (289.68)

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

 427.86 128.39 

cash and cash equivalents - opening balance  859.81  731.42 

Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance  1,287.67  859.81 

cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

Balances with banks in:

– current accounts (including eefc accounts)  1,030.40  783.68 

– deposit accounts  262.97  62.61 

cash and cash equivalents as per books  1,293.37  846.29 

exchange difference on translation of foreign 
currency accounts

 (5.70)  13.52 

 1,287.67  859.81 

this is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date

for WaLKer CHaNDIOK & CO LLP for bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants

per aMYN JassaNI sUNeeL aDVaNI sUNIL bHaTIa aLOKe GHOsH
Partner chairman & chief executive officer & chief financial officer & 
   managing director managing director company Secretary

Place : mumbai 
date : 14 may 2015 
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sIGNIFICaNT aCCOUNTING POLICIes aND NOTes TO THe FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTs

COMPaNY OVerVIeW

Blue Star Infotech limited (‘Blue Star’, ‘BSIl’ or the ‘company’) along with its wholly owned direct and controlled 
subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) is an Information technology and software services organisation. the company provides 
technology, consultancy and outsourcing services. 

as of 31 march 2015, Blue Star limited and other promoters owned 51.78% of the company’s equity share capital and 
have the ability to control its operating and financial policies. the company’s registered office is in mumbai and it has 
three subsidiaries, one company under common management and control and three step-down subsidiaries across the 
globe.

1. sIGNIFICaNT aCCOUNTING POLICIes

 (a) basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

  the financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in India (Indian GaaP) to comply in all material aspects with the accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the companies act, 2013 (the ‘act’), read with rule 7 of the companies (accounts) rules, 
2014 (as amended). these financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on 
accrual basis of accounting. the accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company and are 
consistent with those used in the previous year except as stated in note 1(b) below.

 (b) Change in accounting policy

  effective 1 april 2014, the company has retrospectively changed its method of providing depreciation on 
furniture & fixtures from the ‘written down value’ method to the ‘Straight line’ method, at the rates prescribed 
in Schedule II to the companies act, 2013. management believes that this change will result in more appropriate 
presentation of the financial statements of the company. accordingly, the company has recorded reversal of 
accumulated depreciation charge of ` 70.70 lakhs in current year.

 (c) Use of estimates

  the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Key estimates include estimate of useful life of fixed 
assets, unbilled revenue, income taxes, provision for bad and doubtful debts, estimated gain/loss on foreign 
exchange contracts and future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans. actual results could differ 
from those estimates. any revision to accounting estimates will be recognised prospectively in the current and 
future periods.

 (d) Fixed assets, Capital work-in-progress and Depreciation

  (i) fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. cost includes inward freight, taxes and 
expenses incidental to acquisition and installation, up to the point the asset is ready for its intended use. 

  (ii) depreciation is provided on Building, Plant and equipment, furniture & fixtures and office equipment 
under the Straight-line method and on other fixed assets, other than leasehold Building improvements, 
under the written down value method. depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis using the useful lives 
and in the manner prescribed under Schedule II of the companies act, 2013, which also represent the 
useful life of fixed assets.

  (iii) leasehold building improvements are written off over the period of lease or their estimated useful life, 
whichever is lower, on a straight-line basis.

  (iv) assets acquired but not ready for use or assets under construction are classified under capital work in 
Progress.

NOTes aNNeXeD TO aND FOrMING ParT 
OF THe FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTs 
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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  (v) management evaluates at regular intervals, using external and internal sources, the need for impairment 
of any asset. Impairment occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present value of future cash flows 
expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its net realisable value on its eventual disposal. 
any loss on account of impairment is expensed as the excess of the carrying amount over the higher of 
the asset’s net sales price or present value as determined.

   after impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining 
useful life.

   a previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. 
however, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have 
prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment. 

 (e) Intangible assets

  costs relating to acquisition of computer software are capitalised as ‘Intangible assets’ and amortised on a 
straight line basis over a period of three years, which is the management’s estimate of the useful life of such 
software.

 (f) Intangible assets under development

  the company recognizes the cost of developing intellectual property rights as an intangible asset, which in its 
opinion would result in commercial benefits over several financial years.

  the initial investment towards development or the cost of creation of the intellectual property rights is treated 
as capital expenditure. the same would be amortized over the commercial life of intellectual property rights 
so created.

 (g) borrowing Cost

  Borrowing cost attributable to the acquisition or setting-up of qualifying assets is capitalised as part of the cost 
of such assets. a qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale. all other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

 (h) Investments

  Investments are classified into long-term investments and current investments. long-term investments 
are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investments is not made unless it is 
considered other than temporary. current investments are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

 (i) Foreign currency transactions

  (i) Initial recognition - transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange 
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

  (ii) conversion - monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are converted at the rate of 
exchange prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet.

  (iii) exchange differences - all exchange differences arising on settlement/conversion of foreign currency 
transactions are included in the Statement of Profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

  (iv) forward cover - the company uses foreign exchange forward contracts and option contracts to hedge its 
exposure on foreign currency fluctuations. any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of foreign 
exchange forward contracts/ option contracts is recognised as income or expense for the year. 

  (v) Pursuant to the announcement ‘accounting for derivatives’ by the Institute of chartered accountants 
of India, the company has adopted accounting Standard 30, financial Instruments: recognition and 
measurement, prescribed by the Institute of chartered accountants of India, with effect from 1 april 2008. 
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consequently, outstanding forward contracts have been treated as highly probable forecast transactions 
based on historic trends. accordingly, gains / losses arising on ‘mark to market’ of such open forward 
contracts have been accumulated in ‘hedging reserve account’. the company uses forward contracts as 
economic hedges and not for trading or speculative purposes.

 (j) staff benefits

  (i) all short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting period 
based on services rendered by employees.

  (ii) the company’s contribution to Provident fund is remitted to a trust established for this purpose based 
on a fixed percentage of the eligible employees’ salary and charged to Statement of Profit and loss. 
the company has categorised its Provident fund as a defined contribution plan since it has no further 
obligations beyond these contributions.

  (iii) the company’s contribution under a defined Superannuation Plan to the trust established for this purpose 
based on a specified percentage of salary of eligible employees is charged to Statement of Profit and loss. 
the company has categorised Superannuation Plan as a defined contribution plan since it has no further 
obligations beyond these contributions. 

  (iv) the company’s liability towards gratuity and compensated absences, being defined benefit plans is 
accounted for on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, 
done at the year end and actuarial gains/losses are charged to the Statement of Profit and loss. Gratuity 
liability is funded by payments to the trust established for the purpose.

 (k) revenue recognition

  (i) revenue from software development with respect to time and material contracts is recognised as related 
costs are incurred and services are performed in accordance with the terms of specific contracts.

  (ii) revenue from fixed price contracts are recognised based on the milestones achieved as specified in 
the contracts and for interim stages, until the next milestone is achieved, on the basis of proportionate 
completion method. Provisions for estimated losses on incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in 
which such losses become probable based on the current estimates.

  (iii) revenue from sale of traded software licenses and traded hardware is recognised on delivery to the 
customer.

  (iv) cost and earnings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue while billings in excess of cost and 
earnings are classified as unearned revenue.

  (v) dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

  (vi) Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis.

 (l) Lease rentals

  rent expense is recognised with reference to the terms of lease agreement and other consideration in respect 
of operating leases on a straight line basis. assets given on operating lease are included under fixed assets of 
the company. lease income is recognised on straight line basis over the primary period of lease.

 (m) Taxes on Income

  the provision for current taxation is computed in accordance with the relevant tax regulations. deferred tax 
is recognised on timing differences between the accounting and taxable income for the year and quantified 
using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date. deferred tax assets 
in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses under tax laws are recognised and carried 
forward to the extent there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable 
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income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised in future. where there is no 
unabsorbed depreciation and/or carry forward losses, other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the 
extent there is a reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date to reassess realisation.

  tax credit is recognized in respect of minimum alternate tax (‘mat’) as per the provisions of Section 115 Jaa of 
the Income tax act, 1961 based on convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax within 
statutory time frame and is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

 (n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

  Provisions are recognised in the financial statements in respect of present probable obligations, for amounts 
which can be reliably estimated.

  contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose 
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the company.

2. NOTes TO THe FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTs FOr THe Year eNDeD 31 MarCH 2015

 all amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian rupees lakhs (` in lakhs) and two decimal places 
thereafter, except for per share data or as otherwise stated.

 2.1 share capital
 (` in Lakhs)

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
authorised
2,00,00,000 (31 march 2014: 2,00,00,000) equity Shares of ` 10 each

2,000.00 2,000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
1,08,00,000 (31 march 2014: 1,03,85,000) equity Shares of ` 10 each  
fully paid-up

1,080.00 1,038.50

1,080.00 1,038.50

  the company has only one class of shares referred as equity shares having a face value of ` 10/- each. each 
shareholder is entitled to one vote per share.

  the company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. all dividends proposed by the Board of directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing annual General meeting.

  during the year ended 31 march 2015, the amount of dividend recognized as distributable to equity 
shareholders was ` 4/- per share. the total dividend appropriation for the year ended 31 march 2015 
amounted to (` in lakhs) 522.40 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 486) including corporate dividend tax of (` in 
lakhs) 90.40 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 70.60).

  In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the 
remaining assets of the company. the distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders.

  the reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 31 march 2015 
and 31 march 2014 is set out below:
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as at 31 March 2015 as at 31 March 2014
Number amount  

(` In Lakhs)
Number amount  

(` In Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,03,85,000 1,038.50 1,03,85,000 1,038.50
add: Issued during the year 4,15,000 41.50 - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,08,00,000 1,080.00 1,03,85,000 1,038.50

  shareholders holding more than 5% shares
  as at 31 march 2015, Blue Star limited holds 28.69% (30,98,025 shares) of the company’s shares (29.83% 

(30,98,025 shares) as of 31 march 2014) and mr. ashok mohan advani holds 7.36% (795,165 shares) of the 
company’s shares (7.66% (7,95,165 shares) as of 31 march 2014).

  stock Option Plan
  1. the company has implemented employee Stock option Plans for the key employees of the company 

and its subsidiaries through the Blue Star Infotech limited – Key employee Stock option trust (the 
‘trust’) formed for the purpose. all the options issued by the company are equity share based options 
which have to be settled in equity shares only. the shares to be allotted to employees under the Blue Star 
Infotech limited – Key employee Stock option Scheme (the ‘eSoP scheme’) were purchased by the trust 
from the open market and acquired through fresh issue of shares by the company. 

   Post 16 february 2013, as per SeBI mandate, the company is required to issue fresh shares to the trust for 
a consideration to meet its obligations under the eSoP scheme. Pursuant to the eSoP scheme, the Board 
at its meeting held on 23 July 2014 approved issue of 4,15,000 shares to the trust for subsequent issue 
to eligible employees under the eSoP scheme.

   the position of the Key employee Stock option Plans of the company as at 31 march 2015 is as under:

sr. 
No.

Particulars esOP scheme 2003 (revised 2015)

1 details of approval compensation committee resolution dated 22 July 2011, 
31 august 2012, 29 march 2013, 29 may 2013, 18 december 
2013 and 18 december 2014

2 Implemented through trust
3 total number of shares  15,00,000
4 Price per option closing market price prevailing on the previous day prior 

to issue of options
5 Granted  15,18,000

(Including eSoP’s issued against lapsed options)
6 vested  4,74,375
7 exercised  4,15,075
8 lapsed/cancelled options  1,17,525
9 vested and unexercised  49,400

10 total number of options in force  9,85,400
11 money realised  ` 2,53,74,025
12 Vesting schedule

Designation
managerial employees 1) vesting is upto a period of 4 years from date of grant.

2) all options were granted to managerial employees, of 
which 474,375 options are vested.
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13 senior Managerial 
Personnel

Options 
Granted

Options
Vested

Options 
Cancelled / 

lapsed

Options 
exercised

balance

1,518,000 4,74,375 1,17,525 4,15,075 9,85,400
14. all options have an exercise period of 1 to 4 years after vesting period.

   Notes:

   a) the shareholders, in the annual General meeting held on 22 July 2011 had approved the grant of 
10,00,000 employee stock options in accordance with the eSoP Scheme, equivalent to 10% of the 
issued and paid up share capital of the company as at 31 march 2011. 

   b) By virtue of a postal ballot, the shareholders accorded their approval, the result of which was 
declared on 12 december 2013 for the additional grant of 5,00,000 employee stock options in 
accordance with the eSoP Scheme, equivalent to 4.81% of the issued and paid up share capital of 
the company as at 31 march 2013. 

   c) the compensation committee granted 5,15,000 options on 31 august 2012 at ̀  60 per share, 170,000 
options on 29 march 2013 at ` 57 per share, 4,67,000 options on 29 may 2013 at ` 52 per share, 
95,000 options on 18 december 2013 at ` 83 per share and 2,71,000 options on 18th december 2014 
at `188 per share to key managerial employees of the company and its subsidiaries (including an 
executive director of the company). the grant price is based on the closing market price prevailing 
on the date prior to the date of grant, on the stock exchange recording highest volume. 

   d) there is one employee (mr. Sunil Bhatia – chief executive officer and managing director) in the 
Group who has been granted options (9,82,000) which exceeds 5% of the Issued capital.

   e) there is a potential dilution by 8,10,912 options/shares in future, which is representative of shares 
required by the trust to meet the obligation towards options to be exercised in future. the options/
shares to the extent not held by the trust and to be exercised in future will be allotted by the 
company to the trust at the option grant price. 

   f ) In the event of any further rights or bonus issue of equity shares after vesting but prior to exercise 
of the options, the company/ trust shall consider the grant of an appropriate number of additional 
options, at such price as may be determined by the compensation committee.

   g) the company accounts for ‘employee Share Based Payments’ using the intrinsic value method. the 
intrinsic value of the stock options issued by the company to its employees for services rendered 
by them is measured as the amount by which the quoted market price of the company’s share 
as on the date of grant exceeds the exercise price of the stock option. considering that the stock 
options have been issued with an exercise price that equals the quoted share price on the previous 
day, there is no compensation cost recognised in the financial statements using the intrinsic value 
method.

   h) the date of grant of options, exercise price per share and the estimated fair value per outstanding 
option as at 31 march 2015 is as follows:

sr. 
No.

Number of shares Date of grant exercise price  
per share

(`)

estimated fair value 
per option

(`)
1 133,000 31 august 2012 60 144.90
2 23,100 29 march 2013 57 145.97
3 24,800 29 march 2013 57 146.81
4 26,500 29 march 2013 57 151.55
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sr. 
No.

Number of shares Date of grant exercise price  
per share

(`)

estimated fair value 
per option

(`)
5 117,000 29 may 2013 52 152.06
6 250,000 29 may 2013 52 156.27
7 100,000 29 may 2013 52 160.45
8 1,500 18 december 2013 83 121.44
9 18,700 18 december 2013 83 129.74

10 19,800 18 december 2013 83 137.62
11 70,100 18 december 2014 188 70.28
12 71,100 18 december 2014 188 87.44
13 72,800 18 december 2014 188 101.13
14 57,000 18 december 2014 188 112.52

   i) the movement of stock options during the year ended 31 march 2015 are summarized below:

Number of options
outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,52,000
Granted during the year 2,71,000
forfeited during the year nil
exercised during the year 3,50,075
expired during the year 87,525
outstanding at the end of the year 9,85,400
exercisable at the end of the year 49,400

   j) the exercise price and expected remaining contractual life (comprising the vesting period and 
exercise period) of options outstanding as at 31 march 2015 is as follows:

Number of options exercise price  
per share

(`)

expected remaining  
contractual life

1,500 83 9 months
23,100 57 10 months
24,800 57 12 months

133,000 60 14 months
117,000 52 14 months

18,700 83 21 months
70,100 188 21 months
26,500 57 24 months

250,000 52 26 months
19,800 83 33 months
71,100 188 27 months

100,000 52 38 months
72,800 188 39 months
57,000 188 51 months



annual rePort 2014-15 111

FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTsBoard rePortScorPorate overvIew

   k) for purposes of the proforma disclosures, the fair value of each option grant was estimated as at 31 
march 2015 using the Black Scholes option valuation model with the following assumptions: 

	 	 	 	 •	 dividend	yield	of	2.01%;	
	 	 	 	 •	 risk	free	interest	rate	of	7.61	to	7.65%;
	 	 	 	 •	 expected	volatility	of	54.97%	based	on	historical	volatility;	and
	 	 	 	 •	 expected	option	life	of	2.00	years.

   l) Proforma disclosures using fair value of options granted
 ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Profit after taxation as per Statement of Profit and loss 1,169.03 1038.18
less: amortised cost of fair value of options (net of tax) 137.16 171.05
Profit after taxation after amortisation of options cost 1,031.87 867.13
earnings Per Share- (ePS) in ` – Basic 9.76 8.35
earnings Per Share- (ePS) in ` – diluted 9.24 8.04

 2.2 reserves and surplus
 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
securities premium account 
Balance at the beginning of the year 355.12 355.12
add : receipts on issue of equity shares to trust 212.41 -
balance at the end of the year 567.53 355.12
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 2178.27 2074.45
add: transfer from Statement of Profit and loss 116.90 103.82
balance at the end of the year 2,295.17 2,178.27
Hedging reserve on forward contracts
Balance at the beginning of the year - (138.37)
less : movement during the year 5.25 138.37
balance at the end of the year (5.25) -
surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,207.40 5,759.04
add: transferred from Statement of Profit and loss 1,169.03 1,038.18
less : transitional adjustment on account of Schedule II to companies act, 2013* 68.06 -
less : Proposed final dividend 432.00 415.40
less : corporate dividend tax 90.40 70.60
less : amount transferred to General reserve 116.90 103.82
Net surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss 6,669.07 6,207.40
Total reserves and surplus 9,526.52 8,740.79

  * represents the written down value of fixed assets (net of residual value), which have no balance useful life 
in accordance with Schedule II to companies act, 2013 as at 1 april 2014. these balances (net of deferred 
tax benefit of ` 35.04 lakhs) have been adjusted against the opening balance of retained earnings.
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 2.3 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
deferred tax liability on :
depreciation * 161.65 178.64
deferred tax assets on :
allowance for doubtful debts 6.16 -
 155.49 178.64

  * net of deferred tax benefit of ̀  35.04 lakhs on write off of written down value of fixed assets (net of residual 
value), which have no balance useful life in accordance with Schedule II to companies act, 2013 as at  
1 april 2014.

  deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the company has legally enforceable 
rights to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities are in relation to such taxes which are levied by the same tax authority.

 2.4 Other long-term liabilities

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
deposits against leasehold premises - 331.58

- 331.58

 2.5 Long-term provisions

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Provision for employee benefits (also refer note 2.30)
compensated absences 184.42 170.23

184.42 170.23
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 2.6 Trade payables

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Sundry creditors-for services (also refer note 2.28) 355.16 445.15

355.16 445.15

 2.7 Other current liabilities

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
accrued expenses 1,344.98 1,243.79
deposits against leasehold premises 331.58 -
unearned revenue 41.43 57.07
unclaimed dividends* 20.61 20.20
hedging reserve on open forward contracts 5.25 -
advance from customer 11.16 11.16
Statutory liabilities 105.99 79.37

1,861.00 1,411.59

  *  there are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor education and Protection fund.

 2.8 short-term provisions

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
For employee benefits (also refer note 2.30)
 compensated absences 3.16 2.87
 Gratuity 28.73 -
For others
 Proposed dividend 432.00 415.40
 corporate dividend tax 90.40 70.60
 wealth tax - 0.14

554.29 489.01
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 2.9 Fixed assets
 (` in Lakhs)

Description of assets

 Gross block (at cost)  Depreciation/amortisation  Net block 
as at 1 

april 2014
additions 
/ Transfers 

during
april 

14-March 
15

Deletions 
/ Transfers 

during
april 

14-March 
15

as at 31 
March 
2015

as at 1 
april 2014

For the 
year, april 
14-March 

15

With-
drawals 
during

april 
14-March 

15

adjust-
ments* 

as at 31 
March 
2015

as at 31 
March 
2015

as at 31 
March 
2014

Tangible assets                    
Building (given on lease) 1,402.65 - - 1,402.65 214.11 23.37 -  - 237.48 1,165.17 1,188.54
leasehold building 
improvements 624.58 - - 624.58 300.26 58.93 -

 -
359.19 265.39 324.32

Plant and equipment 137.33 4.72 - 142.05 112.11 2.79 - - 114.90 27.15 25.22
computers 922.87 188.00 70.47 1,040.40 676.31 215.32 70.13 32.76 854.26 186.14 246.56
furniture and fixtures 574.55 - - 574.55 461.25 (70.70) # 70.34 460.89 113.66 113.30
office equipment 108.59 2.64 - 111.23 85.14 6.58 - - 91.72 19.51 23.45
vehicles 96.49 - 9.02 87.47 52.19 15.17 7.73 - 59.63 27.84 44.30
Total – a 3,867.06 195.36 79.49 3,982.93 1,901.37 251.46 77.86 103.10 2,178.07 1,804.86 1,965.69
Intangible assets 
computer software 580.61 33.14 - 613.75 384.23 97.20 - - 481.43 132.32 196.38
Total – b 580.61 33.14 - 613.75 384.23 97.20 - - 481.43 132.32 196.38
TOTaL – (a + b) 4,447.67 228.50 79.49 4,596.68 2,285.60 348.66 77.86 103.10 2,659.50 1,937.18 2,162.07
Previous year 4,178.97 340.19 71.49 4,447.67 2,012.19 338.98 65.57 - 2,285.60 2,162.07 - 

* represents the written down value of fixed assets (net of residual value), which have no balance useful life in 
accordance with Schedule II to companies act, 2013 as at 1 april 2014. these balances (net of deferred tax benefit of 
` 35.04 lakhs) have been adjusted against the opening balance of retained earnings.

# refer note 1b

 2.10 Operating lease obligations

  a. the company has taken office/residential premises under cancellable operating lease agreements that 
are renewable at the option of both the lessor and lessee. an amount of (` in lakhs) 426.06 (Previous year 
(` in lakhs) 429.57) is recognised as lease expenses in the Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 
31 march 2015. the future guaranteed lease payments under non-cancellable portion of cancellable 
leases are:

   i) less than one year – (` in lakhs) 12.25 (Previous year (` in lakhs) nil)

   ii) later than one year but not later than 5 years – (` in lakhs) nIl (Previous year (` in lakhs) nIl)

  b. the company has leased out office premises and furniture under non-cancellable operating lease 
agreements that are renewable at the option of both the lessor and lessee. an amount of (` in lakhs) 
488.77 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 488.76) is recognised as lease income in the Statement of profit and 
loss for the year ended 31 march 2015. the future guaranteed lease payments under non-cancellable 
leases are:

   i) less than one year - (` in lakhs) nil (Previous year (` in lakhs) 539.04)

   ii) later than one year but not later than 5 years - (` in lakhs) nil (Previous year (` in lakhs) nil).
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 2.11 Non-current investments

  Trade, unquoted (Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Investment in subsidiary companies    
2,350,000 shares (common stock) of uS$ 1 each in Blue Star Infotech america, 
Inc., fully paid-up (Previous year 1,850,000 shares of uS$ 1 each fully paid-up )

1,292.57 989.02

300,000 equity shares of GBP 1 each in Blue Star Infotech (uK) limited, fully 
paid-up (Previous year 300,000 equity shares of GBP 1 each, fully paid-up)

208.29 208.29

150,000 equity shares of SGd 10 each in Blue Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte. 
limited, fully paid-up (Previous year 150,000 equity shares of SGd 10 each, 
fully paid-up)

662.65 662.65

24,84,909 equity shares of ̀  10 each in Blue Star Infotech Business Intelligence 
and analytics Private limited (formerly known as activecubes Solutions India 
Private limited), fully paid-up (Previous year 24,84,909 equity shares of ` 10 
each, fully paid-up)

701.86 701.86

note : aggregate book value of unquoted investments (` in lakhs) 2,865.37 
(Previous year (` in lakhs) 2,561.82)

2,865.37 2,561.82

 2.12 Long-term loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good)

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
capital advances 24.75 231.74
deposit for rent, electricity and water 357.38 353.50
corpus to Provident fund trust 0.25 0.25
corpus to eSoP trust 0.05 0.05
mat credit entitlement 184.08 153.05
advance tax (net of provision) 1,893.19 1,598.19

2,459.70 2,336.78

 2.13 Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
deposits with maturity exceeding twelve months 8.34 6.37

8.34 6.37
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 2.14 Trade receivables (Unsecured)

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are 
due for payment

   

– considered good 170.58 203.35
– considered doubtful 17.81 50.49

188.39 253.84
Other debts
– considered good 4,361.85 4,288.79
– considered doubtful - -

4,550.24 4,542.63
less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts 17.81 50.49

4,532.43 4,492.14

  note: trade receivables include due from Subsidiaries and associates (` in lakhs) 2,709.64 {Previous year  
(` in lakhs) 2,796.22}

 2.15 Cash and bank balances

 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Cash and cash equivalents
cash on hand - -
Balances with banks in:
– current accounts (including eefc accounts) 1,030.40 783.68
– deposit accounts (with maturity up to 3 months) 262.97 62.61

1,293.37 846.29
Other bank balances*
unclaimed dividend accounts ** 20.61 20.20
deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 48.88 60.37
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 8.34 6.37

77.83 86.94
less: amounts disclosed as other non-current assets (also refer note 2.13) (8.34) (6.37)

1,362.86 926.86

  * Includes margin money with bank against bank guarantees (` in lakhs) 46.51 (Previous year  
(` in lakhs) 66.74).

  ** not available for use by the company.
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 2.16 short-term loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good)
 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
advance payment to Gratuity trust (also refer note 2.30) - 26.01
Prepaid expenses 90.70 62.02
other deposits 2.40 2.40
advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 27.80 23.57
loans and advances to related party* - 3.00
advance to eSoP trust 155.00 -

275.90 117.00

  * Includes amount due from a director – (` in lakhs) nil (Previous year – (` in lakhs) 3.00).

 2.17 Other current assets (Unsecured, considered good)
 ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
deferred rent - 50.27
unbilled services 31.85 26.51
Interest accrued on bank deposits 11.49 11.17

43.34 87.95

 2.18 sales and software services
 ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Income from software services 13,213.91 11,962.22
Income from sale of software licences / hardware 603.88 612.97
reimbursement income 2.81 95.96

13,820.60 12,671.15

 2.19 Other income
 ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Profit on sale of assets (net) 3.49 2.51
Interest on bank deposits 14.34 16.17
excess provision for doubtful debts written back - 6.11
dividend income from current investments 0.58 6.36
Gain on exchange translation 74.05 42.11
license fee for office property 488.77 488.76
miscellaneous income 13.43 0.45

594.66 562.47



Blue Star Infotech lImIted118

 2.20 employee benefits expenses
 ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Salaries and wages 6,320.97 5,706.16
contribution to provident and other funds 255.67 181.75
Staff welfare 342.33 296.81
overseas employee costs 345.09 349.72

7,264.06 6,534.44

 2.21 Finance costs
 ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Interest expense 10.18 5.56
other borrowing costs 40.65 41.12

50.83 46.68

 2.22 Other expenses 
` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
travelling and conveyance 538.44 371.44
rent 426.06 429.57
rates and taxes 17.82 14.50
Power 242.69 245.01
communication expenses 289.40 243.78
Insurance 47.33 43.16
repairs and maintenance
– Building / leasehold premises 86.59 88.96
– computers and air conditioners 47.41 26.50
– others 19.83 24.86
Payment to auditors
– audit services 10.25 10.35
– limited review 8.00 8.00
– tax audit 2.75 2.00
– certification work 1.20 2.40
– out of pocket expenses 0.93 0.69
directors’ fees 21.10 5.80
commission to non-executive directors* 30.00 35.10
cost of technical and other manpower 1,988.85 1,918.37
Professional charges 384.20 451.63
Bad debts written off 30.54 -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (net) 15.56 13.13
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` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
recruitment charges 37.56 89.95
Security charges 44.17 42.42
cost of software license and tools 174.08 126.60
miscellaneous expenses 222.09 148.06

4,686.85 4,342.28
  * this amount would be held in trust by the non-executive directors and is subject to the approval by the 

members at the ensuing annual General meeting.

 2.23 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
  i) contingent liability not provided in respect of:

	 	 	 •	 Demand(s)	raised	by	the	Income	Tax	authorities	for	prior	financial	year(s)	aggregating	(` in lakhs) 
441.85 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 441.85) against which the company has filed appeal(s) with the 
commissioner of Income tax (appeals).

	 	 	 •	 Appeal(s)	filed	with	the	Income	Tax	Appellate	Tribunal	towards	income-tax	demands	amounting	to	
(` in lakhs) 246.80 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 702.85).

	 	 	 •	 Application(s)	 filed	with	 the	Deputy	Commissioner	of	 Income	Tax	 towards	 income-tax	demands	
amounting to (` in lakhs) 276.83 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 276.83).

   the company is advised that it would get a favourable verdict and no demand would be eventually 
sustained in any of the above matters. accordingly, no provision is made in the books in respect of these 
contingent liabilities.

  ii) Guarantees given on behalf of the company by banks 

	 	 	 •	 Towards	contract	performance	obligations	(` in lakhs) 46.51 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 66.84).

	 	 	 •	 Towards	 Letter	 of	 Credit	 facilities	 on	 behalf	 of	 its	 subsidiary,	 Blue	 Star	 Infotech	 America,	 Inc.	 
(` in lakhs) 938.85 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 898.58).

  iii) Guarantee given by company on behalf of its subsidiary, Blue Star Infotech america, Inc. (` In lakhs) 
360.91 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 601.00).

 2.24 additional information pursuant to the provisions of schedule III to the Companies act, 2013
  the company is engaged in the development of computer software. considering the nature of business, 

certain details required under Schedule III to the companies act, 2013 are not applicable.
 ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):
travel expenses 181.80 72.23
overseas employee costs 345.09 349.72
Purchase of traded software licences 3.45 -
Purchase of software for own use 11.03 28.32
reimbursement of managing director`s remuneration 320.29 186.37
reimbursement of economic benefits to employees 101.89 282.28

963.55 918.92
earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis):
Income from services 10,956.75 9,478.96
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 2.25 Dividend remitted in foreign currency:

  there are no dividends remitted in foreign currency during the current and previous year.

 2.26 related party transactions
  i) Blue Star Infotech (uK) limited (BSIuK), the 100 % subsidiary of the company has earned profits during 

the year ended 31 march 2015 and also has a positive net worth, as at the year-end. 

  ii) Blue Star Infotech america, Inc. (BSIa), the 100 % subsidiary of the company has earned profits during 
the year ended 31 march 2015 and also has a positive net worth as at the year-end.

  iii) Blue Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte limited (BSISGPl), the 100 % subsidiary of the company has earned 
profits during the year ended 31 march 2015 and also has a positive net worth, as at the year-end.

  iv) Blue Star Infotech Business Intelligence and analytics Private limited (BSIBIa) (formerly known as 
activecubes Solutions India Private limited), in which the company exercises complete managerial 
and administrative control and of which 48.97% of the equity is held by the company, is acquired on 1 
august 2013 has earned profits during the year ended 31 march 2015 and also has a positive net worth.

  related party disclosures:
  related party transactions are transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless 

of whether a price is charged. Parties are considered to be related, if one party has the ability, directly or 
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial 
or operating decisions. Parties are considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common 
significant influence.

  Names of related parties and description of relationship

Subsidiaries and related interests (a) Blue Star Infotech america, Inc., uSa (100% subsidiary)
(b) Blue Star Infotech (uK) limited, uK (100% subsidiary)
(c) Blue Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte. limited, Singapore (100% 

subsidiary)
(d) Blue Star Infostack Solutions Pte. limited (100% subsidiary of 

Blue Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte. limited)
(e) Blue Star Infostack (malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (100% subsidiary of Blue 

Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte. limited)
(f ) Blue7 Solutions llc, uSa (100% subsidiary of Blue Star Infotech 

america, Inc., uSa) 
(g) Blue Star Infotech Business Intelligence and analytics Private 

limited (formerly known as activecubes Solutions India Private 
limited) (48.97% of shareholding) (with effect from 1 august 
2013) - with complete managerial and administrative control.

associate Blue Star limited (holding 28.69% of the equity share capital of the 
company)

Promoters mr. Suneel m. advani, chairman and managing director

mr. ashok m. advani, vice-chairman
entities in which one or more 
directors are common

(a) talwar thakore and associates
(b) modern family doctor Pvt. ltd.

Key managerial Personnel & relatives mr. Sunil Bhatia, chief executive officer and managing director
mr. vir advani, relative of Promoters
mr. aloke Ghosh, chief financial officer and company Secretary 
(effective 2 June 2014)
mr. v. Sudarshan, chief financial officer and company Secretary (till 
31 may 2014)
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  Transactions with related parties and related balances

 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars subsidiaries associate Promoters entities in 
which one 

or more 
directors 

are 
common

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel & 

relatives

Total for  
the year

rendering of services

– Blue Star Infotech america, Inc. 4,853.33 - - - - 4,853.33

– Blue Star Infotech (uK) limited 1,433.00 - - - - 1,433.00

– Blue Star Infotech (Singapore)  
Pte. limited

1,101.65 - - - - 1,101.65

– Blue Star Infostack Solutions  
Pte. limited

1.92 - - - - 1.92

– Blue Star Infotech Business 
Intelligence and analytics  
Private limited

147.94 - - - - 147.94

– Blue Star limited - 1,118.15 - - - 1,118.15

  5,805.95 952.68 - - - 6,758.63
receiving of services
– Blue Star Infotech america, Inc. 418.73 - - - - 418.73
– Blue Star Infotech (Singapore)  

Pte. limited
15.38 - - - - 15.38

– Blue Star Infostack Solutions  
Pte. limited

66.43 - - - - 66.43

– Blue Star Infostack (malaysia)  
Sdn. Bhd.

7.22 - - - - 7.22

– Blue Star Infotech Business 
Intelligence and analytics  
Private limited

476.25 - - - - 476.25

– Blue Star limited - 39.96 - - - 39.96

– vir advani - - - - 12.25 12.25

– talwar thakore and associates - - - - - -

– modern family doctor Pvt. ltd. - - - 1.74 - 1.74

  696.04 39.19 - 31.83 - 767.06

reimbursement of expenses

– Blue Star Infotech america, Inc. 40.20 - - - - 40.20
– Blue Star Infotech (uK) limited 29.93 - - - - 29.93
– Blue Star Infotech (Singapore)  

Pte. limited
15.96 - - - - 15.96

– Blue Star Infostack Solutions  
Pte. limited

3.94 - - - - 3.94

– Blue Star Infostack (malaysia)  
Sdn. Bhd.

1.75 - - - - 1.75
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 (` in Lakhs)

Particulars subsidiaries associate Promoters entities in 
which one 

or more 
directors 

are 
common

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel & 

relatives

Total for  
the year

– Blue Star Infotech Business 
Intelligence and analytics  
Private limited

33.82 - - - - 33.82

  140.28 - - - - 140.28
Purchase of capital goods
– Blue Star limited - 1.04 - - - 1.04
  - - - - - -
Director sitting Fees
– mr. ashok m. advani - - 1.70 - - 1.70
  - - 0.80 - - 0.80
Non - executive Director commission#

– mr. ashok m. advani - - 5.00 - - 5.00
  - - 5.10 - - 5.10
remuneration  
(including re-imbursements)
– mr. Suneel m. advani - - 43.55 - - 43.55
– mr. Sunil Bhatia - - - - 320.29 320.29
– mr. aloke Ghosh - - - -  36.50 36.50
– mr. v. Sudarshan - - - - 12.06* 12.06*
  - - 44.40 - 356.47 400.87
Outstanding balance
debit Balance 2,524.80 184.84 - - - 2709.64

2062.16 734.06 3.00 - - 2799.22
credit Balance 273.54 27.48 - - 141.40 442.42

384.95 27.48 - - 137.51 549.94
rent deposit - - - - 100.00 100.00

- 100.00 - - - 100.00

  * Includes leave encashment and other settlements
  # this amount would be held in trust by the non-executive directors and is subject to the approval by the 

members at the ensuing annual General meeting.
  note:  figures in italics are of the previous year

 2.27 remuneration to Managing Director included in the statement of profit and loss is as follows :

 ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
chairman and managing director’s (cmd) remuneration 26.40 26.40
house rent (net) for cmd 17.15 18.00
chief executive officer and managing director’s remuneration 320.29 323.88
Total 363.84 368.28
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 2.28 Micro, small and Medium enterprises

  there are no micro, Small and medium enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding 
for more than 45 days as at 31 march 2015. this information as required to be disclosed under the micro, 
Small and medium enterprises development act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have 
been identified on the basis of information available with the company and has been relied upon by the 
statutory auditors of the company.

 2.29 Derivative instruments:

  the company has entered into the following derivative contracts:

  (a) forward contracts and options contracts [being derivative instruments], which are not intended for 
trading or speculative purposes, but for hedging purposes, to establish the amount of reporting currency 
required or available at the settlement date of certain payables and receivables. 

   there are outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange options contracts 
entered into by the company as at 31 march 2015 of uS $ 5,150,000 (Previous year uS $ nil).

  (b) the year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or 
otherwise are given below:

   amounts receivable (net of payables) in foreign currency on account of the following: 

 Foreign Currency exposure 2014-15
(` in Lakhs)

2014-15 2013-14
(` in Lakhs)

2013-14

exports in uS $ 19.73 $ 31,524 2,454.80 $ 4,084,525
exports in uK £ 103.83 £ 112,302  150.11 £ 150,338
exports in SGd $ 298.77 $ 654,777  194.69 $ 408,934

 2.30 staff benefits cost in accordance with accounting standard 15 - employee benefits (revised 2005)

  a) defined contribution plans: the amount recognised as an expense during the year is (` in lakhs) 255.67 
(Previous year (` in lakhs) 181.75).

  b) defined benefit plans:
` in Lakhs

 Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Change in defined benefit obligation:
obligation as at the beginning of the year: 309.71 251.90
Service cost 81.14 79.24
Interest cost 24.92 17.69
actuarial (gain) / loss 32.45 22.47
Benefits paid (65.57) (61.59)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end (a) 382.65 309.71
Change in plan assets:
opening plan assets, at fair value 162.62 172.19
expected return on plan assets 12.13 13.09
actuarial gain / (loss) 13.73 (5.39)
contributions 43.43 44.32
Benefits paid (65.57) (61.59)
fair value of plan assets as at year end (B) 166.34 162.62
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` in Lakhs

 Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
Cost for the year
Service cost 81.14 79.24
Interest cost 24.92 17.69
expected return on plan assets (12.13) (13.09)
actuarial (gain) / loss 18.72 27.86
total net cost recognised as employee remuneration 112.65 111.70
Investment details of plan assets:
the plan assets are invested in trust managed funds.
assumptions:
discount rate 8.00% 9.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00%
mortality rate lIc (1994-96) lIc (1994-96)

   reconciliation of benefit obligations and plan assets for the year:

2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11
Present value of defined benefit 
obligations as at year end (a)

382.65 309.71 251.90 232.40 345.31

fair value of plan assets as at year end (B) 166.34 162.62 172.19 142.59 153.90
net (asset) / liability as at year end 
recognised in Balance Sheet (a) – (B)

216.31 147.09 79.71 89.81 191.41

experience adjustments :
on plan liabilities:- (gain) / loss 32.45 22.47 (22.97) (101.93) (72.13)
on plan assets:- gain / (loss) 13.73 (5.39) (4.29) (1.44) (12.45)

 2.31 earning per share (ePs)

  the amount considered in ascertaining the company’s earnings per share constitute the net profit after 
tax. the number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the year. the number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share 
comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also 
the weighted average number of shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential 
shares.

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
 i. net Profit after tax (` in lakhs) 1,169.03 1,038.18
 ii. Basic (weighted average) number of equity Shares 1,05,72,603 1,03,85,000
 iii. diluted (weighted average) number of equity Shares 1,11,68,067 1,07,91,287
 iv. earnings per share (ePS) in ` – Basic 11.06 10.00

 v. earnings per share (ePS) in ` – diluted 10.47 9.62
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 2.32 segment information

  the company publishes standalone financial statements along with the consolidated financial statements 
in the annual report. In accordance with accounting Standard 17, Segment reporting, the company has 
disclosed the segment information in the consolidated financial statements.

 2.33 during the year 2013-14, the company had availed an overdraft facility of ` 500 lakhs for working capital 
purposes from a scheduled bank. the drawdown amount against this limit as at 31 march 2015 is nil (Previous 
year (` in lakhs) nil).

  the working capital borrowings are secured by exclusive hypothecation of all existing and future current 
assets and movable fixed assets of the company. currently, the rate of interest is 12.25% p.a.

 2.34 the previous year’s figures have been recast / regrouped / rearranged, wherever considered necessary.

as per our report of even date attached

for WaLKer CHaNDIOK & CO LLP for bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants

per aMYN JassaNI sUNeeL aDVaNI sUNIL bHaTIa aLOKe GHOsH
Partner chairman & chief executive officer & chief financial officer & 
   managing director managing director company Secretary

Place : mumbai Place : mumbai 
date : 14 may 2015 date : 14 may 2015
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INDePeNDeNT aUDITOrs’ rePOrT
To the Members of blue star Infotech Limited 

report on the Consolidated Financial statements

1. we have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Blue Star Infotech limited, (“the holding 
company”) and its subsidiaries (the holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), 
which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 march 2015, the consolidated Statement of Profit and loss 
and the consolidated cash flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the Consolidated Financial statements

2. the holding company’s Board of directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the companies act, 2013 (“the act”) that give a true and fair view of 
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group, 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the act, read with rule 7 of the companies (accounts) rules, 2014 (as amended). 
the holding company’s Board of directors, and the respective Board of directors of the subsidiaries included in 
the Group, are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. further, in terms with the provisions of the act, the respective 
Board of directors of the holding company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records; safeguarding the assets; preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements by the directors of the holding company, as aforesaid.

auditor’s responsibility

3. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 

4. while conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the auditor’s report under the provisions of the act and 
the rules made thereunder. 

5. we conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the 
act. those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the holding 
company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
whether the holding company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the holding company’s 
Board of directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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7. we believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms 
of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 9(a) of the other matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the financial statements of the subsidiaries as noted below, 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at 31 march 2015, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

9. (a) we did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries, included in the consolidated financial statements, 
whose financial statements reflect total assets (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of rs.2,463.52 lakhs as at 
31 march 2015, total revenues (after eliminating intra-group transactions) of rs.5,927.34 lakhs and net cash flows 
amounting to rs.422.58 lakhs for the year ended on that date. these financial statements have been audited by 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, 
and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 
subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

 our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done by and the 
reports of the other auditors. 

report on Other Legal and regulatory requirements

10. as required by the companies (auditor’s report) order, 2015 (“the order”), issued by the central Government of 
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the act, and based on the comments in the auditor’s reports of the subsidiary 
companies, incorporated in India, we give in the annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the order, as applicable to such companies.

11. as required by Section 143(3) of the act, and based on the auditor’s reports of the subsidiaries, we report, to the 
extent applicable, that:

 a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports 
of the other auditors;

 c) the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the act, read with rule 7 of the companies (accounts) rules, 2014(as amended); 

 e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding company as on 31 march 
2015 taken on record by the Board of directors of the holding company and the report of the other statutory 
auditors of its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, 
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incorporated in India are disqualified as on 31 march 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the act.

 f ) with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with rule 11 of the 
companies (audit and auditor’s) rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

  (i) as detailed in note 2.23, the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations 
on the consolidated financial position of the Group; 

  (ii) the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses;

  (iii) there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor education and 
Protection fund by the holding company, and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India. 

for Walker Chandiok & Co LLP 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants
firm’s registration no.: 001076n/n500013

per amyn Jassani 
Partner 
membership no.: 46447
Place: mumbai
date: 14 may 2015
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annexure to the Independent auditors’ report of even date  
to the members of Blue Star Infotech limited, on the consolidated  
financial Statements for the year ended 31 march 2015

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the consolidated financial 

statements of the holding company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and 

the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit and based on the comments in 

the auditor’s report of the subsidiary company, incorporated in India, we report that:

(i) (a) the holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in India are maintaining proper records showing full 

particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

 (b) the fixed assets have been physically verified during the year, by the management of the holding company and 

its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the 

holding company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, and the nature of its assets.

(ii) the holding company and the subsidiary company, incorporated in India, do not have any tangible inventory. 

accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the order are not applicable.

(iii) the holding company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, have not granted any loan, secured or 

unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the act. 

accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the order are not applicable. 

(iv) In our opinion, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the holding company 

and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and 

fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. during the course of our audit, no major weakness has been 

noticed in the internal control system in respect of these areas. 

(v) the holding company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, have not accepted any deposits within 

the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the act and the companies (acceptance of deposits) rules, 2014 (as amended). 

accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are not applicable.

(vi) the central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 

act, in respect of the products/ services of holding company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India. 

accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the order are not applicable.

(vii) (a) the holding company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India, are regular in depositing undisputed 

statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service 

tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 

the appropriate authorities. further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at 

the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable. 

 (b) there are no dues of the subsidiary incorporated in India, in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, 

service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess that have not been deposited with the 

appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. the dues of the holding company outstanding in respect 
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of income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on 

account of any dispute, are as follows: 

Name of the 
statute

Nature of dues amount 
(₹ in lacs)

amount Paid
Under Protest 

(₹ in lacs)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates
(financial year)

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending

Income tax 
act, 1961

tax deducted at source 
in foreign country

53.48 53.48 2006-07 Income tax 
appellate tribunal

Penalty u/s 271(1)(c) 50.77 - 2006-07 commissioner 
of Income tax 
(appeals)

tax deducted at source 
in foreign country

193.32 193.32 2005-06 Income tax 
appellate tribunal

Income tax demand 327.47 - 2005-06 commissioner 
of Income tax 
(appeals)

Penalty u/s 271(1)(c) 63.61 - 2005-06 commissioner 
of Income tax 
(appeals)

Income tax demand 276.83 - 2004-05 deputy 
commissioner of 
Income tax

 (c) the amount required to be transferred to Investor education and Protection. fund by the holding company 

and its subsidiary incorporated in India have been transferred within the stipulated time in accordance with 

the provisions of the companies act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder.

(viii) In our opinion, the accumulated losses of the subsidiary incorporated in India, at the end of the financial year 

are less than fifty percent of its net worth. the subsidiary has incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding 

financial year; however,  in the current financial year, it has not incurred cash losses. the holding company has 

no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the current and the 

immediately preceding financial year.

(ix) the holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in India have not defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank 

or financial institution during the year. the holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in India did not have 

any outstanding debentures during the year.

(x) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in India 

have given guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions are not, prima facie, prejudicial 

to the interest of the holding company or its subsidiary.

(xi) the holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in India, did not have any term loans outstanding during the 

year. accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the order are not applicable. 
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(xii) no fraud on or by the holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in India has been noticed or reported 

during the period covered by our audit.

for Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

(formerly walker, chandiok & co)

chartered accountants

firm’s registration no.: 001076n/n500013

per amyn Jassani

Partner

membership no.: 46447

Place: mumbai

date: 14 may 2015
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CONsOLIDaTeD baLaNCe sHeeT  
as at 31 March 2015  ` in lakhs

Notes  as at 
 31 March 2015 

 as at 
 31 March 2014 

equity and liabilities
shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2.1  1,080.00  1,038.50 
reserves and surplus 2.2  10,463.19  9,024.75 

 11,543.19  10,063.25 
Minority interest  241.42  210.52 
Non-current liabilities
deferred tax liabilities 2.3 (a)  164.31  186.16 
other long-term liabilities 2.4  -  632.08 
long-term provisions 2.5  184.42  170.23 

 348.73  988.47 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 2.6  469.68  452.85 
trade payables 2.7  214.84  108.35 
other current liabilities 2.8  3,697.02  2,953.99 
Short-term provisions 2.9  828.58  721.98 

 5,210.12  4,237.17 
Total  17,343.46  15,499.41 

assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
 tangible assets 2.10  1,848.38  2,011.04 
 Intangible assets 2.10  184.51  197.33 
 Intangible assets under development  231.76  218.28 
Goodwill on consolidation  1,791.41  1,791.41 
deferred tax assets 2.3 (b)  -  86.24 
long-term loans and advances 2.12  2,613.34  2,528.71 
other non-current assets 2.13  8.34  56.63 

 6,677.74  6,889.64 
Current assets
trade receivables 2.14  6,613.20  6,102.45 
cash and bank balances 2.15  3,440.41  2,101.19 
Short-term loans and advances 2.16  363.41  245.49 
other current assets 2.17  248.70  160.64 

 10,665.72  8,609.77 
Total  17,343.46  15,499.41 
significant accounting Policies and Notes to the  
Consolidated Financial statements

1 to 
2.29

this is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

for WaLKer CHaNDIOK & CO LLP for bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants

per aMYN JassaNI sUNeeL aDVaNI sUNIL bHaTIa aLOKe GHOsH
Partner chairman & chief executive officer & chief financial officer & 
   managing director managing director company Secretary

Place : mumbai 
date : 14 may 2015
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CONsOLIDaTeD sTaTeMeNT OF PrOFIT aND LOss  
For the year ended 31 March 2015  ` in lakhs

Notes  Year ended 
 31 March 2015 

 Year ended 
 31 March 2014 

revenue

Sales and software services 2.18

 exports  23,544.77  23,195.31 

 domestic  2,943.69  3,826.58 

 26,488.46  27,021.89 

other income 2.19  575.96  635.33 

Total  27,064.42  27,657.22 

expenses

Purchase of traded software licenses  519.56  1,881.78 

Purchase of traded hardware  234.52  73.11 

employee benefits expense 2.20  14,901.81  15,533.14 

finance costs 2.21  74.79  104.71 

depreciation and amortisation expense 2.10  437.54  380.15 

other expenses 2.22  8,421.77  7,500.04 

Total expenses  24,589.99  25,472.93 

Profit before tax  2,474.43  2,184.29 

current tax 

– Indian income tax  388.86  397.90 

– foreign tax  150.80  177.49 

– mat credit entitlement  (61.95)  - 

– deferred tax expense  98.13  17.02 

– tax pertaining to earlier years  51.20  - 

Total  627.04  592.41 

Profit before minority interest  1,847.39  1,591.88 

minority interest  30.90  104.71 

Net Profit  1,816.49  1,487.17 

earning per equity share (Basic) - (`) 2.27  17.18  14.32 

earning per equity share (diluted) - (`) 2.27  16.27  13.78 

face value per Share - (`)  10.00  10.00 

Significant accounting Policies and notes to the consolidated financial 
Statements

1 to 
2.29

this is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

for WaLKer CHaNDIOK & CO LLP for bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants

per aMYN JassaNI sUNeeL aDVaNI sUNIL bHaTIa aLOKe GHOsH
Partner chairman & chief executive officer & chief financial officer & 
   managing director managing director company Secretary

Place : mumbai  
date : 14 may 2015 
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` in lakhs

Year ended  
31 March 2015

Year ended 
 31 March 2014

[a] Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax  2,474.43  2,184.29 

depreciation and amortisation expense  437.54  380.15 

unrealised foreign exchange loss (net)  88.46  33.76 

(Gain)/loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  (11.37)  (2.40)

Provision for bad and doubtful debts  34.24  56.13 

dividend income  (0.58)  (6.36)

Bad and doubtful debts written off /  
(Sundry balances written back) (net)

 99.98  (6.11)

finance costs  74.79  104.71 

Interest income  (15.38)  (18.77)

 707.68  541.11 

operating profit before working capital changes  3,182.11  2,725.40 

adjustment for:

trade and other receivables  (903.99)  (678.24)

trade payables and other liabilities 523.88  (978.85)

(380.11)  (1,657.09)

cash generated from operations  2,802.00  1,068.31 

direct taxes paid/ (refund received) (792.45) (942.56)

Net cash from operating activities 2,009.55  125.75 

[b] Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets  
(Including capital advances)

 (181.61)  (622.60)

consideration paid towards acquisition of  
stake in subsidiaries

(235.34)  (697.45)

additional consideration paid towards  
investment in subsidiary

 -  (51.90)

Sale of fixed assets  21.33  7.80 

Purchase of investments  (100.00)  (1,790.00)

Sale of investments 100.58 1909.30

dividend received  0.58  6.36 

dividend reinvested in mutual funds  (0.58)  (6.36)

Interest received  15.06  40.98 

fixed deposit encashed from bank 9.51  552.23 

Net cash (used in) investing activities  (370.47)  (651.64)

CONsOLIDaTeD CasH FLOW sTaTeMeNT  
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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` in lakhs

Year ended  
31 March 2015

Year ended 
 31 March 2014

[C] Cash flows from financing activities

receipt/(repayment) of short term borrowings 
(net)

 16.83  440.92 

finance costs  (74.79)  (104.71)

Issue of share capital  253.91 

dividend and tax thereon paid  (486.00)  (243.00)

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities  (290.05)  93.21 

net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

 1,349.03  (432.68)

cash and cash equivalents - opening balance  2,022.82  2,243.70 

cash and cash equivalents - on acquisition of 
subsidiaries

 -  211.80 

Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance  3,371.85  2,022.82 

cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

cash on hand  2.37  0.03 

Balances with banks in:

– current accounts (including eefc accounts)  3,004.94  1,957.98 

– deposit accounts  363.61  62.61 

– margin money deposits against guarantees

cash and cash equivalents as per books  3,370.92  2,020.62 

exchange difference on translation of foreign 
currency accounts

0.93 2.20

3,371.85  2,022.82 

this is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date

for WaLKer CHaNDIOK & CO LLP for bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants

per aMYN JassaNI sUNeeL aDVaNI sUNIL bHaTIa aLOKe GHOsH
Partner chairman & chief executive officer & chief financial officer & 
   managing director managing director company Secretary

Place : mumbai  
date : 14 may 2015 
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sIGNIFICaNT aCCOUNTING POLICIes aND NOTes TO THe CONsOLIDaTeD FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTs

1. sIGNIFICaNT aCCOUNTING POLICIes

 (a) basis of Consolidation

  (i) basis of preparation

   the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting Standard 21 on 
consolidated financial Statements, specified under Section 133 of the companies act, 2013 (the ‘act’), 
read with rule 7 of the companies (accounts) rules, 2014 (as amended). 

  (ii) Principles of consolidation

   the consolidated financial statements present the financial statements of Blue Star Infotech limited (the 
‘company’) and all of its subsidiaries, which are more than 50% owned, controlled and integral to the 
core business of the Group. all significant transactions and balances between the entities included in the 
consolidation have been eliminated.

   the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures 
required for the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements as laid down under 
accounting Standard 21 on consolidated financial Statements. the financial statements of the parent 
company, Blue Star Infotech limited, its subsidiaries, Blue Star Infotech america, Inc., Blue Star Infotech 
(uK) limited, Blue Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte. ltd. and Blue Star Infotech Business Intelligence and 
analytics Private limited (formerly known as activecubes Solutions India Private limited) (based on 
complete managerial and administrative control) and sub subsidiaries, Blue7 Solutions llc, uSa 
(subsidiary of Blue Star Infotech america, Inc.), Blue Star Infostack Solutions Pte. ltd (subsidiary of Blue 
Star Infotech (Singapore) Pte. ltd) and Blue Star Infostack (malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (subsidiary of Blue Star 
Infotech (Singapore) Pte. ltd) (collectively the ‘Group’) have been combined on a line-by-line basis by 
adding together book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating 
intra-group balances and transactions and resulting unrealized gain / loss. the consolidated financial 
statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.

   minority interest represents the portion of net profits and net assets of subsidiaries that do not belong 
to the Group.

  (iii) Companies included in consolidation

Name of the Company Country of incorporation Proportion of ownership interest
Blue Star Infotech america, Inc. united States of america 

(uSa)
100% owned subsidiary

Blue Star Infotech (uK) limited united Kingdom (uK) 100% owned subsidiary
Blue Star Infotech (Singapore) 
Pte. ltd.

Singapore 100% owned subsidiary

Blue Star Infostack Solutions 
Pte. ltd.

Singapore 100% owned subsidiary of Blue Star 
Infotech (Singapore) Pte. ltd.

Blue Star Infostack (malaysia) 
Sdn. Bhd. 

malaysia 100% owned subsidiary of Blue Star 
Infotech (Singapore) Pte. ltd.

Blue7 Solutions llc united States of america 
(uSa)

100% owned subsidiary of Blue Star 
Infotech america, Inc.

Blue Star Infotech Business 
Intelligence and analytics 
Private limited (formerly 
known as activecubes 
Solutions India Private limited)

India 48.97% 

NOTes aNNeXeD TO aND FOrMING ParT  
OF THe CONsOLIDaTeD FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTs  
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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 (b) basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

  the financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles in India (Indian GaaP) to comply in all material aspects with the accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the companies act, 2013 (the ‘act’), read with rule 7 of the companies 
(accounts) rules, 2014 (as amended). these financial statements have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention on accrual basis of accounting. the accounting policies have been consistently applied by 
the company and are consistent with those used in the previous year except as stated in note 1(c) below.

 (c) Change in accounting policy

  effective 1 april 2014, the company has retrospectively changed its method of providing depreciation 
on furniture & fixtures from the ‘written down value’ method to the ‘Straight line’ method, at the rates 
prescribed in Schedule II to the companies act, 2013. management believes that this change will result in 
more appropriate presentation of the financial statements of the company. accordingly, the company has 
recorded reversal of accumulated depreciation charge of ` 70.70 lakhs in current year.

 (d) Use of estimates

  the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Key estimates include estimate of useful life of fixed 
assets, unbilled revenue, income taxes, provision for bad and doubtful debts, estimated gain/loss on foreign 
exchange contracts and future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans. actual results could 
differ from those estimates. any revision to accounting estimates will be recognised prospectively in the 
current and future periods.

 (e) Fixed assets, Capital work-in-progress and Depreciation

  (i) fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. cost includes inward freight, taxes and 
expenses incidental to acquisition and installation, up to the point the asset is ready for its intended use. 

  (ii) depreciation is provided on Building, Plant and equipment, furniture & fixtures and office equipment 
under the Straight-line method and on other fixed assets, other than leasehold Building improvements, 
under the written down value method. depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis using the useful 
lives and in the manner prescribed under Schedule II of the companies act, 2013, which also represent 
the useful life of fixed assets. 

  (iii) leasehold building improvements are written off over the period of lease or their estimated useful life, 
whichever is lower, on a straight-line basis. 

  (iv) assets acquired but not ready for use or assets under construction are classified under capital work in 
progress. 

  (v) management evaluates at regular intervals, using external and internal sources, the need for impairment 
of any asset. Impairment occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present value of future cash flows 
expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its net realisable value on its eventual disposal. 
any loss on account of impairment is expensed as the excess of the carrying amount over the higher of 
the asset’s net sales price or present value as determined.

   after impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining 
useful life.

   a previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. 
however, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have 
prevailed by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment. 



Blue Star Infotech lImIted138

 (f) Intangible assets

  costs relating to acquisition of computer software are capitalised as ‘Intangible assets’ and amortised on a 
straight line basis over a period of three years, which is the management’s estimate of the useful life of such 
software.

 (g) Goodwill on acquisition

  the difference between the cost of investments in the subsidiaries over the net assets at the time of acquisition 
of shares in the subsidiaries is recognized in the financial statements as goodwill. the goodwill arising on 
acquisition of a business enterprise is not amortised but is tested for impairment, if indicators of impairment 
exist.

 (h) Intangible assets under development

  the company recognizes the cost of developing intellectual property rights as an intangible asset, which in 
its opinion would result in commercial benefits over several financial years.

  the initial investment towards development or the cost of creation of the intellectual property rights is 
treated as capital expenditure. the same would be amortised over the commercial life of intellectual property 
rights so created.

 (i) borrowing cost

  Borrowing cost attributable to the acquisition or setting-up of qualifying assets is capitalised as part of the 
cost of such assets. a qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use or sale. all other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

 (j) Investments

  Investments are classified into long-term investments and current investments. long-term investments 
are carried at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investments is not made unless it 
is considered other than temporary. current investments are valued at lower of cost and net realisable 
value.

 (k) Foreign currency transactions

  (i) Initial recognition - transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange 
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

  (ii) conversion - monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are converted at the rate of 
exchange prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet.

  (iii) exchange differences - all exchange differences arising on settlement/conversion of foreign currency 
transactions are included in the Statement of Profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

  (iv) forward cover - the company uses foreign exchange forward contracts and option contracts to 
hedge its exposure on foreign currency fluctuations. any profit or loss arising on cancellation or 
renewal of foreign exchange forward contracts/option contracts is recognised as income or expense 
for the year.

  (v) Pursuant to the announcement ‘accounting for derivatives’ by the Institute of chartered 
accountants of India, the company has adopted accounting Standard 30, financial Instruments: 
recognition and measurement, prescribed by the Institute of chartered accountants of India, with 
effect from 1 april 2008. consequently, outstanding forward contracts have been treated as highly 
probable forecast transactions based on historic trends. accordingly, gains / losses arising on ‘mark 
to market’ of such open forward contracts have been accumulated in ‘hedging reserve account’. 
the company uses forward contracts as economic hedges and not for trading or speculative 
purposes.
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 (l) staff benefits

  1. In respect of India: -

   i. all short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting 
period based on services rendered by employees.

   ii. the company's contribution to Provident fund is remitted to a trust established for this purpose 
based on a fixed percentage of the eligible employees' salary and charged to Statement of Profit 
and loss. the company has categorised its Provident fund as a defined contribution plan since it 
has no further obligations beyond these contributions.

   iii. the company’s contribution under a defined Superannuation Plan to the trust established for this 
purpose based on a specified percentage of salary of eligible employees is charged to Statement of 
Profit and loss. the company has categorised Superannuation Plan as a defined contribution plan 
since it has no further obligations beyond these contributions.

   iv. the company’s liability towards gratuity and compensated absences, being defined benefit plans 
is accounted for on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method, done at the year end and actuarial gains/losses are charged to the Statement of Profit and 
loss. Gratuity liability is funded by payments to the trust established for the purpose.

  2. In respect of the group companies in uSa, uK, malaysia and Singapore, no separate retirement benefit 
funds are created by the Group. however, all statutory contributions as required are paid regularly.

 (m)  revenue recognition

  (i) revenue from software development with respect to time and material contracts is recognised as related 
costs are incurred and services are performed in accordance with the terms of specific contracts.

  (ii) revenue from fixed price contracts are recognised based on the milestones achieved as specified in 
the contracts and for interim stages, until the next milestone is achieved, on the basis of proportionate 
completion method. Provisions for estimated losses on incomplete contracts are recorded in the period 
in which such losses become probable based on the current estimates.

  (iii) revenue from sale of traded software licenses and traded hardware is recognised on delivery to the 
customer.

  (iv) cost and earnings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue while billings in excess of cost 
and earnings are classified as unearned revenue.

  (v) dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

  (vi) Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis.

 (n) Lease rentals

  rent expense is recognised with reference to the terms of lease agreement and other consideration in respect 
of operating leases on a straight line basis. assets given on operating lease are included under fixed assets of 
the company. lease income is recognised on straight line basis over the primary period of lease.

 (o) Taxes on Income

  the provision for current taxation is computed in accordance with the relevant tax regulations. deferred tax 
is recognised on timing differences between the accounting and taxable income for the year and quantified 
using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date. deferred tax 
assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses under tax laws are recognised and 
carried forward to the extent there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised in future. where there 



Blue Star Infotech lImIted140

is no unabsorbed depreciation and/or carry forward losses, other deferred tax assets are recognised only to 
the extent there is a reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date to reassess realisation.

  tax credit is recognized in respect of minimum alternate tax (‘mat’) as per the provisions of Section 115 Jaa 
of the Income tax act, 1961 of India based on convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income 
tax within statutory time frame and is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

 (p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

  Provisions are recognised in the financial statements in respect of present probable obligations, for amounts 
which can be reliably estimated.

  contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose 
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the company.

2. NOTes TO THe FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTs FOr THe Year eNDeD 31 MarCH 2015

 all amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian rupees lakhs (` in lakhs) and two decimal places 
thereafter, except for per share data or as otherwise stated. 

 2.1 share capital

  (` in Lakhs)

Particulars as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
authorised
2,00,00,000 (31 march 2014: 2,00,00,000) equity Shares of ` 10 each

2,000.00 2,000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
1,08,00,000 (31 march 2014: 1,03,85,000) equity Shares of ̀  10 each fully paid-
up

1,080.00 1,038.50

1,080.00 1,038.50

  the company has only one class of shares referred as equity shares having a face value of ` 10/- each. each 
shareholder is entitled to one vote per share.

  the company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. all dividends proposed by the Board of directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing annual General meeting.

  during the year ended 31 march 2015, the amount of dividend recognized as distributable to equity 
shareholders was ` 4/- per share. the total dividend appropriation for the year ended 31 march 2015 
amounted to (` in lakhs) 522.40 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 486.00) including corporate dividend tax of (` in 
lakhs) 90.40 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 70.60).

  In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the 
remaining assets of the company. the distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 
by the shareholders.
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  the reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 31 march 2015 
and 31 march 2014 is set out below:

as at 31 March 2015 as at 31 March 2014
Number amount 

(` in Lakhs)
Number amount

(` in Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,03,85,000 1,038.50 1,03,85,000 1,038.50
add: Issued during the year 415,000 41.50 - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,08,00,000 1,080.00 1,03,85,000 1,038.50

  shareholders holding more than 5% shares

  as at 31 march 2015, Blue Star limited holds 28.69% (30,98,025 shares) of the company’s shares (29.83% 
(30,98,025 shares) as of 31 march 2014) and mr. ashok mohan advani holds 7.36% (795,165 shares) of the 
company’s shares (7.66% (7,95,165 shares) as of 31 march 2014).

  stock Option Plan

  1. the company has implemented employee Stock option Plans for the key employees of the company 
and its subsidiaries through the Blue Star Infotech limited – Key employee Stock option trust (the 
‘trust’) formed for the purpose. all the options issued by the company are equity share based options 
which have to be settled in equity shares only. the shares to be allotted to employees under the Blue Star 
Infotech limited – Key employee Stock option Scheme (the ‘eSoP scheme’) were purchased by the trust 
from the open market and acquired through fresh issue of shares by the company. 

   Post 16 february 2013, as per SeBI mandate, the company is required to issue fresh shares to the trust for 
a consideration to meet its obligations under the eSoP scheme. Pursuant to the eSoP scheme, the Board 
at its meeting held on 23 July 2014 approved issue of 4,15,000 shares to the trust for subsequent issue 
to eligible employees under the eSoP scheme.

   the position of the Key employee Stock option Plans of the company as at 31 march 2015 is as under:

sr. 
No.

Particulars esOP scheme 2003 (revised 2015)

1 details of approval compensation committee resolution dated 22 July 2011, 
31 august 2012, 29 march 2013, 29 may 2013, 18 december 
2013 and 18 december 2014

2 Implemented through trust
3 total number of shares 15,00,000
4 Price per option closing market price prevailing on the previous day prior 

to issue of options
5 Granted 15,18,000 (Including eSoP’s issued against lapsed options)
6 vested 4,74,375
7 exercised 4,15,075
8 lapsed/cancelled options 1,17,525
9 vested and unexercised 49,400

10 total number of options in force 9,85,400
11 money realised ` 2,53,74,025
12 Vesting schedule

Designation
managerial employees 1) vesting is upto a period of 4 years from date of grant. 

2) all options were granted to managerial employees of 
which 474,375 options are vested.
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13 senior Managerial 
Personnel

Options 
Granted

Options
Vested

Options 
Cancelled / 

lapsed

Options 
exercised

balance

1,518,000 4,74,375 1,17,525 4,15,075 9,85,400
14. all options have an exercise period of 1 to 4 years after vesting period.

   Notes:

   a) the shareholders, in the annual General meeting held on 22 July 2011 had approved the grant 
of 10,00,000 employee stock options in accordance with eSoP Scheme, equivalent to 10% of the 
issued and paid up share capital of the company as at 31 march 2011. 

   b) By virtue of a postal ballot, the shareholders accorded their approval, the result of which was 
declared on 12 december 2013 for the additional grant of 5,00,000 employee stock options in 
accordance with the eSoP Scheme, equivalent to 4.81% of the issued and paid up share capital of 
the company as at 31 march 2013. 

   c) the compensation committee granted 5,15,000 options on 31 august 2012 at ̀  60 per share, 170,000 
options on 29 march 2013 at ` 57 per share, 4,67,000 options on 29 may 2013 at ` 52 per share, 
95,000 options on 18 december 2013 at ` 83 per share and 2,71,000 options on 18th december 2014 
at ` 188 per share to key managerial employees of the company and its subsidiaries (including an 
executive director of the company). the grant price is based on the closing market price prevailing 
on the date prior to the date of grant, on the stock exchange recording highest volume. 

   d) there is one employee (mr. Sunil Bhatia – chief executive officer and managing director) in the 
Group who has been granted options (9,82,000) which exceeds 5% of the Issued capital.

   e) there is a potential dilution by 8,10,912 options/shares in future, which is representative of shares 
required by the trust to meet the obligation towards options to be exercised in future. the options/
shares to the extent not held by the trust and to be exercised in future will be allotted by the 
company to the trust at the option grant price. 

   f ) In the event of any further rights or bonus issue of equity shares after vesting but prior to exercise 
of the options, the company/ trust shall consider the grant of an appropriate number of additional 
options, at such price as may be determined by the compensation committee.

   g) the company accounts for ‘employee Share Based Payments’ using the intrinsic value method. the 
intrinsic value of the stock options issued by the company to its employees for services rendered 
by them is measured as the amount by which the quoted market price of the company’s share 
as on the date of grant exceeds the exercise price of the stock option. considering that the stock 
options have been issued with an exercise price that equals the quoted share price on the previous 
day, there is no compensation cost recognised in the financial statements using the intrinsic value 
method.
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   h) the date of grant of options, exercise price per share and the estimated fair value per outstanding 
option as at 31 march 2015 is as follows:

sr. 
No.

Number of shares Date of grant exercise price  
per share

(`)

estimated fair value 
per option

(`)
1 133,000 31 august 2012 60 144.90
2 23,100 29 march 2013 57 145.97
3 24,800 29 march 2013 57 146.81
4 26,500 29 march 2013 57 151.55
5 117,000 29 may 2013 52 152.06
6 250,000 29 may 2013 52 156.27
7 100,000 29 may 2013 52 160.45
8 1,500 18 december 2013 83 121.44
9 18,700 18 december 2013 83 129.74

10 19,800 18 december 2013 83 137.62
11 70,100 18 december 2014 188 70.28
12 71,100 18 december 2014 188 87.44
13 72,800 18 december 2014 188 101.13
14 57,000 18 december 2014 188 112.52

   i) the movement of stock options during the year ended 31 march 2015 are summarized below:

Number of options
outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,52,000
Granted during the year 2,71,000
forfeited during the year nil
exercised during the year 3,50,075
expired during the year 87,525
outstanding at the end of the year 9,85,400
exercisable at the end of the year 49,400

   j) the exercise price and expected remaining contractual life (comprising the vesting period and 
exercise period) of options outstanding as at 31 march 2015 is as follows:

Number of options exercise price expected remaining 
contractual life

1,500 83 9 months
23,100 57 10 months
24,800 57 12 months

133,000 60 14 months
117,000 52 14 months

18,700 83 21 months
70,100 188 21 months
26,500 57 24 months

250,000 52 26 months
19,800 83 33 months
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Number of options exercise price expected remaining 
contractual life

71,100 188 27 months
100,000 52 38 months

72,800 188 39 months
57,000 188 51 months

   k) for purposes of the proforma disclosures, the fair value of each option grant was estimated as at 31 
march 2015 using the Black Scholes option valuation model with the following assumptions: 

	 	 	 	 •	 dividend	yield	of	2.01%;	

	 	 	 	 •	 risk	free	interest	rate	of	7.61	to	7.65%;

	 	 	 	 •	 expected	volatility	of	54.97%	based	on	historical	volatility;	and

	 	 	 	 •	 expected	option	life	of	2.00	years.

   l) Proforma disclosures using fair value of options granted 

    ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Profit after taxation as per Statement of Profit and loss 1,816.49 1,487.17
less: amortised cost of fair value of options (net of tax) 137.16 171.05
Profit after taxation after amortisation of options cost 1,679.33 1,316.12
earnings Per Share- Basic 15.88 12.67
earnings Per Share- diluted 15.04 12.20

 2.2 reserves and surplus

` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Capital reserve 41.89 41.89
securities premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year 355.12 355.12
add : receipts on issue of equity shares to trust 212.41 -
balance at the end of the year 567.53 355.12
General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,178.27 2,074.45
add: transfer from Statement of profit and loss 116.90 103.82
balance at the end of the year 2,295.17 2,178.27
Hedging reserve on forward contracts 
Balance at the beginning of the year - (138.38)
add : movement during the year 5.25 138.38
balance at the end of the year (5.25) -
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` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,449.47 5,552.12
add: transferred from Statement of Profit and loss 1,816.49 1,487.17
less : transitional adjustment on account of Schedule II to companies act, 2013* 68.06 -
add : adjustments pertaining to earlier year 5.25 -
less : Proposed final dividend 432.00 415.40
less : corporate dividend tax 90.40 70.60
less : amount transferred to General reserve 116.90 103.82
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 7,563.85 6,449.47
Total reserves and surplus 10,463.19 9,024.75

  * represents the written down value of fixed assets (net of residual value), which have no balance useful life 
in accordance with Schedule II to companies act, 2013 as at 1 april 2014. these balances (net of deferred 
tax benefit of ` 35.04 lakhs) have been adjusted against the opening balance of retained earning.

 2.3 Deferred tax balances

  ` in Lakhs

  as at 
31 March 

2015

as at 
31 March 

2014
(a) Deferred tax liabilities      
  Blue Star Infotech limited      
   depreciation and amortization* 161.65    
   Less: deferred tax asset on allowances for doubtful debts 6.16 155.49 178.64
  other group entities      
   depreciation and amortization   8.82 7.52
      164.31 186.16
(b) Deferred tax assets      
   carry forward business loss    - 83.02
   employee benefits    - 3.22
       -  86.24 

  * net of deferred tax benefit of ` 35.04 lakhs on write off of written down value of fixed assets (net of 
residual value), which have no balance useful life in accordance with Schedule II to companies act, 2013 
as at 1 april 2014.

  deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the company has legally enforceable 
rights to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities are in relation to such taxes which are levied by the same tax authority.
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 2.4 Other long term liabilities

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
deposits against leasehold premises - 331.58
consideration payable towards acquisition of balance stake in subsidiary - 300.50

- 632.08

 2.5 Long term provisions

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Provision for employee benefits (also refer note 2.26)
compensated absences 184.42 170.23

184.42 170.23

 2.6 short-term borrowings

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
secured
working capital loan from bank 469.68 450.99
Unsecured
 term loan from bank - 1.86

469.68 452.85

  working capital loan from bank is secured by all the assets of a subsidiary company. Interest is charged on the 
above facility at wall Street Journal’s prime rate which is currently 3.25% per annum.

  repayment of term loan is scheduled in 36 monthly instalments of ` 92,533 each (SGd 1944) plus interest 
which has commenced from June 2011. the average interest rate is 8.88% per annum. the loan is guaranteed 
by directors and relatives of directors of Blue Star Infostack Solutions Pte. ltd.

  during the year 2013-14, the company has availed an overdraft facility of ` 500 lakhs for working capital 
purposes from a scheduled bank. the drawdown amount against this limit as at 31 march 2015 is nil (Previous 
year (` In lakhs) nil).

  the working capital borrowings are secured by exclusive hypothecation of all existing and future current 
assets and movable fixed assets of the company. currently, the rate of interest is 12.25% p.a.
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 2.7 Trade payables

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Sundry creditors-for services 214.84 108.35

214.84 108.35

 2.8 Other current liabilities

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
accrued expenses 2,425.98 2,046.45
deposits against leasehold premises 331.58 -
consideration payable towards acquisition of balance stake in subsidiary 449.21 384.05
unearned revenue 94.38 200.30
unclaimed dividends* 20.61 20.20
hedging reserve on open forward contracts 5.25 -
dividend payable - 5.25
advance from customer 11.16 11.16
Statutory liabilities 358.85 286.58

3,697.02 2,953.99

  * there are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor education and Protection fund.

 2.9 short-term provisions

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
For employee benefits (also refer note 2.26)
 compensated absences 87.13 64.74
 Gratuity 34.65 -
For others  
 Proposed dividend 432.00 415.40
 corporate dividend tax 90.40 70.60
 wealth tax - 0.14
 Provision for tax 184.40 171.10

828.58 721.98

  (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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 2.10 Fixed assets
  ` in Lakhs

 
Description of assets

 Gross block (at cost)  Depreciation/amortisation  Net block 
as at

1 april 2014
acquisition 

through 
business 
combi-
nation

additions/ 
Transfers 

during 
april 14-
March 15

Deletions 
/ Transfers 

during  
april 14- 
March 15

as at  
31 March 

2015

as at  
1 april 
2014

acquisition 
through 
business 
combi-
nation

For the year 
april 14- 
March 15

With-
drawals 
during

 april 14- 
March 15

adjust-
ments*

as at 
31 March 

2015

as at 
31 March 

2015

as at  
March 31 

2014

Tangible assets                    
Building  
(given on lease)

1,402.65 -  -  - 1,402.65 214.11 -  23.38  - - 237.49 1,165.16 1,188.54

leasehold 
building 
improvements 

624.58  - - - 624.58 300.26 - 58.93 - - 359.19 265.39 324.32

Plant and 
equipment 

137.33  - 4.72 - 142.05 112.13 - 2.79 - - 114.92 27.13 25.20

computers 1,027.96 - 207.08 70.47 1,164.57 763.06 - 237.21 70.13 32.76 962.90 201.67 264.90
furniture and 
fixtures 

620.91 - 21.71 28.20 614.42 498.31 - (60.78)# 27.46 70.34 480.41 134.01 122.60

office equipment 136.70 - 4.69 11.07 130.32 95.52 - 11.10 3.48 - 103.14 27.18 41.18
vehicles 96.51 - - 9.02 87.49 52.21 - 15.17 7.73 - 59.65 27.84 44.30
Total – a 4,046.64 - 238.20 118.76 4,166.08 2,035.60 - 287.80 108.80 103.10 2,317.70 1,848.38 2,011.04
Intangible assets                    
computer 
software 

589.17 - 33.14 - 622.31 391.84 - 97.74 - - 489.58 132.73 197.33

Intellectual 
property rights

- - 103.78 - 103.78 - - 52.00 - - 52.00 51.78 -

Total – b 589.17 - 136.92 - 726.09 391.84 - 149.74 - - 541.58 184.51 197.33
TOTaL – (a + b) 4,635.81 - 375.12 118.76 4,892.17 2,427.44 - 437.54 108.80 103.10 2,859.28 2,032.89 2,208.37
Previous year 4,264.74 75.38 367.72 72.03 4,635.81 2,077.21 36.70 380.15 66.62 - 2,427.44 2,208.37 - 

* represents the written down value of fixed assets (net of residual value), which have no balance useful life in 
accordance with Schedule II to companies act, 2013 as at 1 april 2014. these balances (net of deferred tax benefit of 
` 35.04 lakhs) have been adjusted against the opening balance of retained earnings.

# refer note 1b.

 2.11 Operating lease obligations

  a. the company has taken office/residential premises under cancellable operating lease agreements that 
are renewable at the option of both the lessor and lessee. an amount of (` in lakhs) 628.74 (Previous year 
(` in lakhs) 690.85) is recognised as lease expenses in the Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 
31 march 2015. the future guaranteed lease payments under non-cancellable portion of cancellable 
leases are:

   i) less than one year – (` in lakhs) 73.43 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 34.11)

   ii) later than one year but not later than 5 years – (` in lakhs) 87.59 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 3.00).

  b. the company has leased out office premises and furniture under non-cancellable operating lease 
agreements that are renewable at the option of both the lessor and lessee. an amount of (` in lakhs) 
488.77 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 488.76) is recognised as lease income in the Statement of profit and 
loss for the year ended 31 march 2015. the future guaranteed lease payments under non-cancellable 
leases are:

   i) less than one year - (` in lakhs) nil (Previous year (` in lakhs) 539.04)

   ii) later than one year but not later than 5 years - (` in lakhs) nil (Previous year (` in lakhs) nil).



annual rePort 2014-15 149

FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTsBoard rePortScorPorate overvIew

 2.12 Long-term loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good)

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
capital advances 24.75 231.74
deposit for rent, electricity and water 378.98 364.20
corpus to eSoP trust 0.05 0.05 
corpus to Provident fund trust 0.25 0.25 
mat credit entitlement 247.21 185.26
advance tax (net of provision) 1.962.10 1,747.21

2,613.34 2,528.71

 2.13 Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
deferred rent - 50.26
deposits with maturity exceeding twelve months 8.34 6.37

8.34 56.63

 2.14 Trade receivables (Unsecured)

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are 
due for payment

   

– considered good 258.03 221.75
– considered doubtful 52.22 140.08

310.25 361.83
Other debts    
– considered good 6,355.17 5,880.70
– considered doubtful 10.34 -

6,675.76 6,242.53
less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts 62.56 140.08

6,613.20 6,102.45
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 2.15 Cash and bank balances

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
Cash and cash equivalents
cash on hand 2.37 0.03
Balances with banks in:    
– current accounts (including eefc accounts) 3,004.94 1,957.98
– deposit accounts (with maturity upto 3 months) 363.61 62.61

3,370.92 2,020.62
Other bank balances*
unclaimed dividend accounts** 20.61 20.20
deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 48.88 60.37
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 8.34 6.37

77.83 86.94
less : amounts disclosed as other non-current assets (also refer note 2.13) (8.34) (6.37)
Total 3,440.41 2,101.19

  * Includes margin money with bank against bank guarantees (` in lakhs) 46.51 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 66.74).

  ** not available for use by the company.

 2.16 short-term loans and advances (Unsecured, considered good)

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
advance payment to Gratuity trust (also refer note 2.26) - 26.01
Prepaid expenses 151.14 125.41
other deposits 5.01 18.41
advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 52.26 72.66
loans and advances to related parties - 3.00
advance to eSoP trust 155.00 -

363.41 245.49

  loans and advances include amount due from directors – (` in lakhs) nil (Previous year – (` in lakhs) 3.00).

 2.17 Other current assets (Unsecured, considered good)

  ` in Lakhs

as at
31 March 

2015

as at
31 March 

2014
unbilled services 237.21 149.47
Interest accrued on bank deposits 11.49 11.17

248.70 160.64
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 2.18 sales and software services

  ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Income from software services 25,365.65 24,602.27
Income from sale of software licences / hardware 917.67 2,160.96
reimbursement income 205.14 258.66

26,488.46 27,021.89

 2.19 Other income

  ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Profit on sale of assets (net) 11.37 2.40
Interest on bank deposits 15.05 18.77
Interest on income tax refunds 0.33 -
dividend income from current investments 0.58 6.36
Gain on exchange translation - 80.04
license fee for office property 488.77 488.76
Interest on loans granted - 1.87
excess provision for doubtful debts written back - 6.11
miscellaneous income 59.86 31.02

575.96 635.33

 2.20 employee benefits expense

  ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Salaries and wages 13,551.41 14,003.16
contribution to provident and other funds 676.25 765.05
Staff welfare 674.15 764.93

14,901.81 15,533.14

 2.21 Finance costs

  ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
Interest expense 34.14 41.62
other borrowing costs 40.65 63.09

74.79 104.71
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 2.22 Other expenses

  ` in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
travelling and conveyance 934.74 765.79
rent 628.74 690.85
rates and taxes 28.44 36.48
Power 243.15 245.82
communication expenses 370.29 318.42
Insurance 54.41 51.38
repairs and maintenance
– Building / leasehold premises 92.12 121.05
– computers and air conditioners 52.66 31.02
– others 21.14 26.64
Payment to auditors
– audit services 63.77 62.24
– taxation matters 13.17 12.37
– certification work 1.20 2.40
– out of pocket expenses 0.93 0.81
directors’ fees 27.22 11.85
commission to non-executive directors* 30.00 35.10
cost of technical and other manpower 4,238.48 3,584.90
Professional charges 684.19 872.76
loss on exchange translation 87.36 -
Bad debts written off 99.98 -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 34.24 56.13
recruitment charges 74.29 95.92
Security charges 44.17 42.42
cost of software license and tools 195.59 161.98
miscellaneous expenses 401.49 273.71

8,421.77 7,500.04
  * this amount would be held in trust by the non-executive directors and is subject to the approval by the 

members at the ensuing annual General meeting.

 2.23 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

  i) contingent liability not provided in respect of:

	 	 	 •	 Demand(s)	raised	by	the	Income	Tax	authorities	for	prior	financial	year(s)	aggregating	(` in lakhs) 
441.85 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 441.85) against which the company has filed appeal(s) with the 
commissioner of Income tax (appeals).

	 	 	 •	 Appeal(s)	filed	with	the	Income	Tax	Appellate	Tribunal	towards	Income-tax	demands	amounting	to	
(` in lakhs) 246.80 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 702.85).

	 	 	 •	 Application(s)	 filed	with	 the	Deputy	Commissioner	 of	 Income-tax	 towards	 Income-tax	demands	
amounting to (` in lakhs) 276.83 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 276.83).

   the company is advised that it would get a favourable verdict and no demand would be eventually 
sustained in any of the above matters. accordingly, no provision is made in the books in respect of these 
contingent liabilities.
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  ii) Guarantees given on behalf of the holding company by banks 

	 	 	 •	 Towards	contract	performance	obligations	(` in lakhs) 46.51 (Previous year (` in lakhs) 66.84).

  iii) during the year, Blue Star Infotech america (BSIa) has received demand for unpaid wages, commission and 
interest thereon for (` In lakhs) 110.90 from department of Industrial relations towards compensation 
for termination of services of one of its employees. BSIa has preferred an appeal against the said demand 
and expects favourable verdict in its favour. 

 2.24 related party disclosures

  related party transactions are transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless 
of whether a price is charged. Parties are considered to be related, if one party has the ability, directly or 
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial 
or operating decisions. Parties are considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common 
significant influence.

  Names of related parties and description of relationship

associate Blue Star limited (holding 28.69% of the equity share 
capital of the company)

Promoters mr. Suneel m. advani, chairman and managing director
mr. ashok m. advani, vice-chairman

company in which promoters have significant 
influence

Blue Star design & engineering limited

entities in which one or more directors are 
common

(a) talwar thakore and associates
(b) modern family doctor Pvt. ltd.

Key managerial Personnel mr. Sunil Bhatia, chief executive officer and managing 
director
mr. vir advani, relative of Promoters
mr. aloke Ghosh, chief financial officer and company 
Secretary (effective 2 June 2014)
mr. v. Sudarshan, chief financial officer and company 
Secretary (till 31 may 2014)

  Transactions with related parties and related balances

` in Lakhs

Particulars associate Promoters Company 
in which 

promoters 
have 

significant 
influence

entities in 
which one 

or more 
directors are 

common

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel

Total
for the year

rendering of services
– Blue Star limited 1,210.70 - - - - 1,210.70

952.68 - - - - 952.68
receiving of services
– Blue Star limited 39.96 - - - - 39.96
– vir advani - - - - 12.25 12.25
– talwar thakore and associates - - - - - -
–  modern family doctor Pvt. ltd. - - - 1.74 - 1.74

39.19 - - 31.83 - 71.02
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` in Lakhs

Particulars associate Promoters Company 
in which 

promoters 
have 

significant 
influence

entities in 
which one 

or more 
directors are 

common

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel

Total
for the year

Purchase of capital goods
– Blue Star limited 1.04 - - - - 1.04

- - - - - -
Director sitting fees
– mr. ashok m. advani - 1.70 - - - 1.70

- 0.80 - - - 0.80
NoN - ExEcutivE DirEctor commissioN #
– mr. ashok m. advani - 5.00 - - - 5.00

- 5.10 - - - 5.10
remuneration
– mr. Suneel m. advani - 43.55 - - - 43.55
– mr. Sunil Bhatia - - - - 320.29 320.29
– mr. aloke Ghosh - - - - 36.50 36.50
– mr. v. Sudarshan - - - - 12.06* 12.06

44.40 356.47 400.87
Interest on loans granted
– mr. Sunil Bhatia - - - - - -

- - - - 1.87 1.87
Outstanding balance
debit Balance 284.31 - - - - 284.31

734.06 3.00 5.38 - - 742.44
credit Balance 27.48 - - - 141.40 168.88

27.48 - - - 152.85 180.33
rent deposit - - - - 100.00 100.00

100.00 - - - - 100.00

  * Includes leave encashment and other settlements
  # this amount would be held in trust by the non-executive directors and is subject to the approval by the 

members at the ensuing annual General meeting.
  note: figures in italics are of the previous year

 2.25 Derivative instruments:

  the company has entered into the following derivative contracts:

  (a) forward contracts and options contracts [being derivative instruments], which are not intended for 
trading or speculative purposes, but for hedging purposes, to establish the amount of reporting currency 
required or available at the settlement date of certain payables and receivables. 

   there are outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange options 
contracts entered into by the company as at 31 march 2015 of uS $ 5,150,000 (Previous year uS 
dollar $ nil)
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  (b) the year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or 
otherwise are given below:

   amounts receivable (net of payables) in foreign currency on account of the following:

Foreign Currency exposure 2014-2015
(` in Lakhs)

2014-2015 2013-2014
(` in Lakhs)

2013-2014

exports in uS $ - - 1,250.73 $ 2,081,076
exports in eur € 95.82 € 141,141 352.85 € 427,280
exports in ca$ 23.99 c$ 48,384 - -

 2.26 staff benefits cost in accordance with accounting standard 15:- employee benefits (revised 2005)

  a) defined contribution Plans: the amount recognised as an expense during the year is (` in lakhs) 676.25 
(Previous year (` in lakhs) 765.05).

  b) defined Benefit Plans (as applicable to employees of Blue Star Infotech limited) :

Particulars 2014-15
` in Lakhs

2013-14
` in Lakhs

Change in defined benefit obligation:
obligation as at the beginning of the year: 309.71 251.90
Service cost 81.14 79.24
Interest cost 24.92 17.69
actuarial (gain) / loss 32.45 22.47
Benefits paid (65.57) (61.59)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at year end (a) 382.65 309.71
Change in plan assets:
opening plan assets, at fair value 162.62 172.19
expected return on plan assets 12.13 13.09
actuarial gain / (loss) 13.73 (5.39)
contributions 43.43 44.32
Benefits paid (65.57) (61.59)
fair value of plan assets as at year end (B) 166.34 162.62
Cost for the year
Service cost 81.14 79.24
Interest cost 24.92 17.69
expected return on plan assets (12.13) (13.09)
actuarial (gain) / loss 18.72 27.86
total net cost recognised as employee remuneration 112.65 111.70
Investment details of plan assets:
the plan assets are invested in trust managed funds.
assumptions:
discount rate 8.00% 9.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00%
mortality rate lIc (1994-96) lIc (1994-96)
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   reconciliation of benefit obligations and plan assets for the year:

2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11
Present value of defined benefit 
obligations as at year end (a)

382.65 309.71 251.90 232.40 345.31

fair value of plan assets as at year end (B) 166.34 162.62 172.19 142.59 153.90
net (asset) / liability as at year end 
recognised in Balance Sheet (a) – (B)

216.31 147.09 79.71 89.81 191.41

experience adjustments :
 on plan liabilities:- (gain) / loss 32.45 22.47 (22.97) (101.93) (72.13)
 on plan assets:- gain / (loss) 13.73 (5.39) (4.29) (1.44) (12.45)

 2.27 earning per share (ePs)

  the amount considered in ascertaining the company’s earnings per share constitute the net profit after 
tax. the number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the year. the number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share 
comprise the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also 
the weighted average number of shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential 
shares.

Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
 i. net Profit after tax (` in lakhs) 1,816.49 1,487.17
 ii. Basic (weighted average) number of equity Shares 1,05,72,603 1,03,85,000
 iii. diluted (weighted average) number of equity Shares 1,11,68,067 1,07,91,287
 iv. earning per share (ePS) in ` – Basic 17.18 14.32
 v. earning per share (ePS) in ` – diluted 16.27 13.78

 2.28 segment reporting

  the company is engaged in providing technology, consultancy and outsourcing services. for the purpose of 
disclosure of segment information, the company considers these services as a single business segment. 

  the company has identified geographical segments as its primary segment and business segments as its 
secondary segment. however, no additional reportable business segments have been identified based on 
the quantitative criteria specified in accounting Standard (aS)-17 ‘Segment reporting’.

  disclosures as required by accounting Standard (aS)-17 ‘Segment reporting’

Particulars Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
segment revenue    
domestic  14,409.76  13,377.01 
overseas  19,642.81  19,703.39 
Total  34,052.57  33,080.40 
less: Inter segment revenue  7,564.11  6,058.51 
Total operating income  26,488.46  27,021.89 



annual rePort 2014-15 157

FINaNCIaL sTaTeMeNTsBoard rePortScorPorate overvIew

Particulars Year ended
31 March 

2015

Year ended
31 March 

2014
segment results    
(Profit before tax, Interest and finance costs)    
domestic  4,508.17  4,183.41 
overseas  9,573.68  8,083.77 
Total  14,081.85  12,267.18 
less: Inter segment cost  7,564.11  6,058.51 
less: un-allocable expenditure    
(i) finance costs  74.79  104.71 
(ii) other expenditure (net of other income)  3,968.52  3,919.67 
Profit before tax  2,474.43  2,184.29 
Capital employed    
(Segment assets – Segment liabilities)    
domestic  1,040.65  2,010.24 
overseas  3,240.20  2,525.04 
add: un-allocable assets (net) *  7,503.76  5,738.49 
Total  11,784.61  10,273.77 
* (Based on estimates in terms of available data)    
Capital expenditure
domestic 332.28 340.19
overseas 42.84 27.53
Total 375.12 367.72
Depreciation and amortization
domestic 403.99 340.41
overseas 33.55 39.74
Total 437.54 380.15
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortization
domestic 46.10 13.13
overseas 88.12 43.00
Total 134.22 56.13

 2.29 the previous year’s figures have been recast / regrouped / rearranged, wherever considered necessary.

as per our report of even date attached

for WaLKer CHaNDIOK & CO LLP for bLUe sTar INFOTeCH LIMITeD 
(formerly walker, chandiok & co)
chartered accountants

per aMYN JassaNI sUNeeL aDVaNI sUNIL bHaTIa aLOKe GHOsH
Partner chairman & chief executive officer & chief financial officer & 
   managing director managing director company Secretary

Place : mumbai  
date : 14 may 2015 
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STARBLUE
B L U E S T A R I N F O T E C H

www.bsil.com



NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the Company will be held on 
Tuesday, 21 July 2015, at 3.00 p.m. IST at Jai Hind College Hall, 23-24, Backbay Reclamation, ‘A’ Road, Churchgate, 
Mumbai - 400 020, Maharashtra, India, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss for 
the financial year ended as at that date and the Directors’  Report and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To declare a dividend.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Vaswani (DIN: 00369909), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
seeks re-appointment.

4. To ratify the appointment of M/s Walker, Chandiok & Co. LLP  Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration  
No. : 001076N), Statutory Auditors of the Company to continue to hold office for the residual period of 2 years i.e. 
from the conclusion of 18thAnnual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 20thAnnual General Meeting.

Special Business:

5. To approve the commission plan for Non – executive directors of the company and to consider, and if thought 
fit, pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Article 122 of the Articles of Association of the Company and Section 197, 198 and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded 
to the payment of commission to the Directors (other than the Managing / Whole-time Directors) up to 3% (three 
percent) per annum of the net profits of the Company for each financial year, calculated in accordance with Section 
198 and other applicable provisions of the said Act, such commission being divisible amongst the aforesaid 
Directors, in such proportion and in such manner as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company, 
for a period of five financial years commencing from the financial year beginning 1 April 2014 and further such 
commission payable is in addition to the sitting fee payable to such Directors for each meeting of the Board and/or 
Committee(s) of the Board attended by them.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised 
to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining necessary approvals in relation to the above and to settle all 
matters arising out of and incidental thereto and sign and execute all applications, documents and writings that 
may be required, for and on behalf of the Company and generally to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be 
necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid Resolution.”

6. i) Appointment of Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) as a Director of the company and to consider, and 
if thought fit, pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, and other applicable provisions (including 
any modification or re-enactment thereof ), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,  Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 
07150502) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the company with effect from 30 March 2015, be 
and is hereby appointed as a Director on the Board of Directors of the Company.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or Company Secretary of the Company be and is 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and file the necessary forms with the Registrar 
of Companies, as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution.”

Blue Star Infotech Limited
Registered Office:
8th Floor, The Great Oasis, 
Plot No. D-13, MIDC, 
Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093
CIN: L72200MH1997PLC110459



 ii) Appointment of Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) as an Independent Director

  A proposal has been received from a member of the company along with a deposit of ` 1 Lakh seeking 
nomination of Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) as an Independent Director. Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 
07150502) has confirmed that she meets the criteria for independence.

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, if any, and the rules made thereunder (including statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for 
the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (holding DIN : 
07150502), Director of the Company has submitted a declaration of meeting the criteria for independence as 
provided in section 149(6) of the Act and is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member along with a deposit of ` 1 Lakh proposing that her term as 
an Independent Director be for a period of five consecutive years from 21 July 2015 to 20 July 2020 be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company.

7. To ratify the approval of compensation to Mr. Sunil Bhatia (DIN: 03424622), Chief Executive Officer and 
Managing Director and to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT in terms of regulations of the Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to provisions 
of Sections197 read with Schedule V (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force), and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and such sanctions as 
may be necessary, approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to ratify the approval of 
compensation of Mr. Sunil Bhatia (DIN: 03424622), Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director, with effect from 
1 April 2014, for the remaining tenure of his present term as a Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director, on 
the remuneration and variable incentive as mentioned in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice which 
is hereby specifically approved with authority to the Board of Directors (which term shall include the Remuneration 
Committee constituted by the Board of Directors).

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is 
hereby authorised to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining necessary approvals in relation to the above 
and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto and sign and execute all applications, documents and 
writings that may be required, for and on behalf of the Company and generally to do all such acts, deeds and things 
as may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid Resolution.”

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE IN THE MEETING AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM 
SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE 
THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

2. Members/ proxies should bring the duly filled Attendance Slips sent herewith to attend the Meeting.

3. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from1 July 2015 to  
7 July2015 (both days inclusive). The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the 
Annual General Meeting, will be paid on or after 24 July 2015 only to those Members whose names appear on the 
Company’s Register of Members as on1 July 2015.

4. The shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Ltd., Mumbai and The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. The 
annual listing fee for the year 2015-2016has been paid intime to both exchanges.

5. Members are requested to note that all correspondence relating to share transfers, nomination forms and other 
related issues should be addressed directly to the Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, LBS Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai – 400 078. Members are also requested to 
quote their Registered Folio No. and/or DP and Client Identity Numbers in all their correspondence.



6. Members holding shares in the dematerialised mode are requested to intimate all changes with respect to their 
bank details, NECS mandate, nomination, power of attorney, address, name, etc., to their depository participant 
(DP). These changes will be automatically reflected in Company’s records, which will help the Company to provide 
efficient and better service to the Members. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate the 
changes to the Share Transfer Agents of the Company.

7. Members wishing to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed, are requested to correspond with the Investor 
Relations Department / Office of the Company Secretary at the Registered Office address of the Company. Members 
are requested to note that dividends not encashed or claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the 
Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will, as per section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, be transferred 
to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

 Unclaimed Dividend on equity shares for the financial year 2007-2008 will fall due for transfer to the said Fund on 4 
October 2015. It may be kindly noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to the aforesaid Fund of the 
Central Government, no claim shall lie against the Company in respect thereof.Any person claiming to be entitled 
to such dividend after the transfer may apply to the authority administering the fund for payment.

8. Details under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange in respect of the Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms integral part of the notice. The Directors have 
furnished the requisite declaration for their appointment/re-appointment.

Voting through electronic means

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment 
Rules, 2015 and Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to 
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 18th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by 
electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes 
by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the 
meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through 
ballot paper.

 Please note: The Facility for Voting shall be decided by the company i.e. “remote e-voting” or “Ballot Paper” or 
“Polling Paper”

III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not 
be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV. The remote e-voting period commences on16 July 2015 (9:00 am) and ends on 20 July 2015 (5:00 pm). During this 
period members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date of 14 July 2015, may cast their vote by remote  e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed 
to change it subsequently.

V. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

 A. In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants(s)] :

  (i) Open email and open PDF file viz;  “BSIL e-voting.pdf”  with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said 
PDF file contains your user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the password is an 
initial password.



  (ii) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

  (iii) Click on Shareholder - Login

  (iv) Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

  (v) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your choice with 
minimum 8 digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not 
to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

  (vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles.

  (vii) Select “EVEN” (Electronic Voting Event Number) of “Blue Star Infotech Limited”.

  (viii) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

  (ix) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

  (x) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

  (xi) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

  (xii) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through 
e-mail to votes@bsil.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

 B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for members whose email IDs are not registered 
with the Company/Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copy]:

  (i) Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the AGM: 

EVEN (E Voting Event Number) USER ID PASSWORD/PIN

  (ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above, to cast vote.

VI. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and remote e-voting user 
manual for Members available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-
990.

VII. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password/
PIN for casting your vote.

VIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used for 
sending future communication(s).

IX. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date of 14 July 2015.

X. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after dispatch of the 
notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 14 July 2015, may obtain the login ID and password by sending 
a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

 However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and 
password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User 
Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-
222-990.



XI. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not 
be allowed to vote again at the AGM.  

XII. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by 
the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting 
at the AGM through ballot paper.

XIII. Mrs. Jayshree S. Joshi, of Jayshree Dagli & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, Mumbai has been appointed 
for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote 
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

XIV. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow 
voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “remote e-voting” or “Ballot Paper” or “Polling Paper” for all those 
members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

XV. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the 
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of  at least two witnesses 
not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, 
a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

XVI. The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the Company’s website www.bsil.
com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman of the meeting. The 
results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(“NSE”) where the shares of the Company are listed.

 By Order of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai, Aloke Ghosh
Date: 14 May 2015 Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

A. Explanatory Statement
 (Pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

I. Item no. 3 of the notice

 Mr. Sanjay Vaswani (DIN: 00369909)

 Mr. Sanjay Vaswani (DIN: 00369909) holds an MBA from the Wharton School of Business and a BBA summa cum 
laude from the University of Texas at Austin. He has worked for Intel Corporation and as an associate in McKinsey 
& Company, Inc. in Los Angeles. In 1990, he set up his own consulting firm, which is a consultant and advisor to hi-
tech companies in the USA. He is also on the Board of Brocade Communications Systems Inc., USA.

 Mr. Vaswani (DIN: 00369909) works and resides in the heart of Silicon Valley and is highly knowledgeable about the 
IT industry. He joined the Board of Blue Star Infotech Limited in 2000.

 As on 31 March 2015 Mr. Sanjay Vaswani (DIN: 00369909) holds beneficial interest in 14,750 shares of the 
Company.



 Mr. Sanjay Vaswani (DIN: 00369909), Mr. Suneel Advani (DIN: 00001709) (relative) and Mr. Ashok Advani(DIN: 
00001372) (relative) are concerned or interested in this agenda. Save and except the above, none of the other 
Director(s), Manager(s), Key Managerial Personnel(s) and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested in 
the subject matter of the resolution.

II. Item no. 4 of the notice

 In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had re appointed the Statutory Auditors  
M/s. Walker, Chandiok & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants, (ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001076N), for the residual 
period of their second term of three years i.e. from the conclusion of the 17thAnnual General Meeting till the 
conclusion of the 20thAnnual General Meeting. The Company has received confirmation from the Auditors of their 
willingness to continue as the Statutory Auditors of the Company from the ensuing Annual General Meeting till 
the completion of the residual term. Pursuant to section 139 (1) of the Companies Act 2013, the members of the 
Company have to ratify the appointment of the Statutory Auditors at the Annual General Meeting.

III. Item no. 5 of the notice

 Article 122 of the Articles of Association of the Company inter alia provides for payment of commission to a Director 
who is neither in the whole time employment of the Company nor a Managing Director of the Company. Section 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013, provides, inter alia, that a Director who is neither in the whole-time employment 
of the Company nor a Managing Director of the Company (the “Non-Executive Director”) may be paid remuneration 
by way of commission at a rate not exceeding 3% (three percent) of the net profits of the Company, provided such 
payment is authorised by a Special Resolution passed in that behalf by the Members of the Company at a General 
Meeting.

 Having regard to the time and attention devoted by the Non-Executive Directors to the affairs of the Company, 
and the contribution they make to the business and operations of the Company such a proposal is recommended. 
It is proposed to seek the approval of the Members for a period of five years commencing from the financial year 
beginning 1 April 2014, as set out in the Special Resolution under Item no. 4 of this Notice.

i. Item no. 6 (i) and (ii) of the notice

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 161, and other applicable provisions (including any modification or re-
enactment thereof ), if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Ms. 
Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 30 March 2015 who shall hold 
office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

  The Company has received a proposal from a member along with a deposit of ` 1 Lakh recommending the 
appointment of Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) as an Independent Director from 21 July 2015 for five 
consecutive years ending 20 July 2020. Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502), has given a declaration to the Board 
that she meets the criteria of Independence as provided under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the 
opinion of the Board, Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and Rules framed 

thereunder for appointment as an Independent Director and is independent of the management.

 In compliance with the provisions of section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Ms. Kalpana 
Trivedi(DIN: 07150502) as an Independent Director is now being placed before the Members for their approval. 
The terms and conditions of appointment of the above Director shall be open for inspection by the Members at 
the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day, excluding Saturday and 
Sunday.

 About Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502):

 Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) holds an MBA from Sydenham Institute of Management Studies and Research, 
and a Master degree in Economics from University of Mumbai. She has more than 23 years of experience in several 



segments including sales, marketing, advertising and research. She started her career in 1992 with global advertising 
firms such as Lintas and Chaitra Leo Burnett, and managed prominent accounts like Balsara, TCL, Hindustan Lever 
etc. She has been engaged with production houses and hosted a popular women’s issue-based talk show on Star 
Plus TV Channel. Ms. Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) has a strong penchant for entrepreneurship and social activities and 
has also launched several new lines of business.

 Currently she is a Director in a NGO “Social Services Enterprise” since November 2012. Her role involves consulting, 
facilitating and promoting the services of the NGO in different areas

ii. Item no. 7 of the notice

 An application was made to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India for their approval for the 
compensation for Mr. Sunil Bhatia (DIN: 03424622). Pursuant to the approval of members at the Annual General 
Meeting held on 18 July 2013. 

 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India vide its letter SRN No. C36025401/2014 – CL-VII dated 28 
April 2015 and as per the General Circular No. 32/2014 dated 23 July 2014 has informed the Company that with 
the promulgation of Companies Act, 2013 a fresh  approval from the shareholders is required prior to making any 
application to the Central Government under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

 The payment by way of remuneration to Mr. Sunil Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2015 
are permitted pursuant to the circular no. 07/2015 dated 10 April 2015.The present approval from shareholders is 
intended to cover the period beginning from1 April 2014 till the conclusion of the current tenure. The compensation 
terms as approved by the shareholders at the 16th Annual General Meeting vide item no. 6 is reproduced below for 
information in compliance with Companies Act, 2013.

 Item no. 6 of the notice of the 16th Annual General Meeting:

 Mr. Sunil Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director (“CEO 
and MD”) for a period of three years on and from 15 April 2011 on such remuneration as recommended by the 
Remuneration Committee, with the approval of the members and the Central Government.

 The Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) at its meeting held on 9 May 2013 had, subject to the approval of 
the Members and the Central Government, decided to extend the term of office of Mr. Sunil Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) 
and revise his compensation with effect from 1 April 2013. The Board, in congruence with the Remuneration 
Committee has agreed to revise his compensation and seek the shareholders’ approval for the same. 

 As required under section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956 and now covered under section 190 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the abstract of the main terms and conditions of the appointment of Mr. Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) as the 
CEO and MD together with the memorandum of concern or interest is as set out below:

 1. Tenure of re-appointment:15 April 2011 to 31 March 2014 extended to 31 March 2016 (“Term”)

 2. Revision in the terms of remuneration (for the period):1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016

 3. Nature of Duties: The CEO and MD shall be responsible for the substantial management and administration of 
the company comprising primarily of contributing in high levels business development, networking, business 
guidance, business visibility, administration, finance, policy and decision making, in accordance with the 
directions of the Board. The CEO and MD shall also accept and discharge those duties which may be assigned 
to him by the Board from time to time and which can be reasonably expected of him in consideration of his 
position as the CEO and MD. The discharge of duties by Mr. Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) shall be subject to the 
superintendence, control and direction of the Board.



 4. Remuneration:

  (a) Fixed Compensation:

   i) 1 April 2013 – 31 March 2014 – US $ 4,00,000

   ii) 1 April 2014 – 31 March 2015 - US $ 4,00,000

   iii) 1 April 2015 – 31 March 2016 – US $ 4,50,000

  (b) Variable incentives, which would be a % of the fixed compensation, based upon achievement of targets in 
relation to each of Revenue and Profit after tax on the criteria to be laid down by the Board.

  (c) Reimbursement of expenses: All authorised expenses incurred on the Company’s business shall be 
reimbursed as per the Company’s policy.

  (d) Health insurance: As per the Scheme in force in the Company/ subsidiary where he is located.

  (e) Transportation expenses. Company will bear all the official expenses on travel and transportation.

  (f ) Employee Stock Options (ESOP): Hitherto, Mr. Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) was entitled to 515,000 equity 
shares in the company by way of ESOP’s. The company proposes to issue an additional 467,000 equity 
shares in the company by way of ESOP’s during the extended tenure of service. This issue is subject to the 
approval of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and other statutory authorities. Mr. Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) will 
be entitled to these additional Stock options under the Company’s ESOP Scheme which will vest based on 
the achievement of Revenue and Profit after Tax (PAT) targets for the financial years 2014 through 2016. 
In the absence of RBI or statutory approvals for the additional 4,67,000 stock options, an alternative mode 
will be determined and shareholder’s approval sought at the appropriate juncture. 

  (g) Minimum Remuneration: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained where in any 
financial year the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate during the currency of the tenure 
of the CEO and MD, the Company will continue to pay the CEO and MD, remuneration by way of the fixed 
compensation and variable incentives, subject to the satisfaction of the Key performance indicators and 
as may be decided by the Board/Committee thereof from time to time.

  (h) Mode of Payment - The Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director will be paid compensation, either 
directly by the company or by one of the company’s overseas subsidiaries or partly by a combination of 
both. The cost to be accounted by each entity shall be based on the time or efforts relating to a particular 
geography by the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. At a notional exchange rate of Rs.60/- 
per US $, the cash compensation cost is expected to be in the vicinity of a minimum sum of Rs.2.40 Crores 
and up to a maximum sum of Rs.5.40 Crores per annum.

 5. Other terms of appointment:

	 	 •	 During the Term, the CEO and MD:

   – is required to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs and business of the Company and 
will have no other engagement or employment in any enterprise or business in any capacity for 
remuneration or otherwise which would cause him to divert substantial time and attention from 
this Company to such other enterprise, without the prior written consent of the Board or except to 
the extent with any subsidiary/affiliate of the Company or involvement in any non-profit activities or 
speaking engagements; 

	 	 •	 The terms of appointment also include appropriate clauses for:

   – Adherence with the Code of conduct and maintenance of confidentiality.

	 	 •	 During the Term, either Party may terminate the appointment at any time by giving 30 days’ notice or 
compensation of salary for the notice period in lieu thereof. on the following terms:



   – In the event of any board meeting in which the agenda is to decide upon the termination of the 
Agreement, Mr. Sunil Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) shall not have the right to vote in such resolution in the 
capacity of a Director of the Company.

   – Notwithstanding anything mentioned above, the Company will have the right, after due inquiry and 
opportunity to the CEO and MD of being heard, to terminate the employment with immediate effect 
in the event it is proved that the CEO and MD is guilty of (a) misappropriation of funds,(b) serious 
violation of applicable laws, the Company’s Articles of Association which result in significant loss 
to the Company;(c) serious violation of any of his duties which result in significant loss or damage 
to the Company; (d) repeated or continuing breach or non-observance by the CEO and MD of the 
Boards directives which result in significant loss or damage to the Company; (e) abuse of confidential 
information for his own purposes; and (f ) undisclosed serious violation of the non-compete covenant. 
In such event, the Company would not be required to pay the CEO and MD any remuneration from 
the date of termination.

	 	 •	 The Agreement dated 3 September 2013 shall supersede the original Agreement dated 25 April 2011 
entered prior to this; and all rights, obligations and liabilities of the parties under the previous agreement 
are terminated and will cease with effect from the date of the new Agreement.

	 	 •	 Mr. Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) is appointed as a Director by virtue of his employment in the Company and his 
appointment shall be subject to the provisions of section 283(1) (l) and other applicable provisions of the 
Act. The terms of his termination are elucidated in the CEO and MD Agreement.

	 	 •	 Mr. Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) is a citizen of Singapore and a person of Indian origin. He holds 7,24,549 equity 
shares in the Company in his personal and beneficial capacity as on 31 March 2015. 

	 	 •	 As on 31 March 2015, Mr. Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) is a Director of Blue Star Infotech Ltd and Blue Star 
Infotech Business Intelligence And Analytics Private Limited.

	 	 •	 No other Director except Mr. Bhatia (DIN: 03424622) is concerned or interested in this item

FOR THE ATTENTION OF SHAREHOLDERS

1. Shareholders are requested to forward their queries on Accounts for the financial year ended31 March 2015 to the 
office of the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company in advance so as to reach the Company at 
least 7 days prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting, to enable the company to keep the information ready 
at the Meeting. 

2. The Annual Reports and Attendance Slips will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders 
attending the Meeting are requested to bring the same along with them.

3. A copy of the Annual Report along with the notice to the Annual General Meeting is available in soft copy format 
on the Company’s website www.bsil.com

4. Shareholders having shareholding in physical form are requested to dematerialise their holdings and also provide 
their e-mail IDs to the depository participant to avail speedier investor services.

5. The registered office of the company is open on all working days (Monday – Friday) between 9 a.m. and 5:45 p.m.

6. Shareholder Inquiries - Questions concerning folio, share certificates, dividend, address changes, consolidation of 
certificates and related matters should be addressed to Blue Star Infotech Limited, at its Registered office or to its 
share transfer agents at the below mentioned addresses:



Blue Star Infotech Limited

Attn: The Investor Relations Department / The Company Secretary
8th Floor, The Great Oasis, 
Plot No.D-13, MIDC, Andheri (East)
Mumbai, Maharashtra, Pin – 400 093 India
Tel: +91-22-66956969
Fax: +91-22-66973866
www.bsil.com

E-mail:

Investor Relations  : Investor.Relations@bsil.com or IR@bsil.com
Company Secretary : cosec@bsil.com or CS@bsil.com

Registrar and Transfer Agents 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
Unit: Blue Star Infotech Limited
C-13 Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,  
LBS Marg,  
Bhandup West,  
Mumbai 400078 
Tel.:91-22-25946970 
Fax: 91- 22-25946969
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in



BLUE STAR INFOTECH LIMITED
Registered Office:

8th Floor, The Great Oasis, Plot No D-13, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093 
CIN: L72200MH1997PLC110459

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s) :  ....................................................................................................................................................................................................

Registered Address :  .............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 

E-mail ID :  ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Folio No. / Client ID : ............................................................................................... DP ID :  ..............................................................................................

I/We, being the member(s) holding ............................... equity shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name : .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
 
 Address :  ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
 
 E-mail Id :  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
 
 Signature :  .....................................................................................................................................................................................or failing him / her

2. Name :  ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

 Address :  ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
 
 E-mail Id :  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
 
 Signature :  .....................................................................................................................................................................................or failing him / her

3. Name :  ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

 Address :  ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................

 E-mailId :  ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................

 Signature :  .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 1 8 t hAnnual G eneral Meeting of 
the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 21 July 2015, at 3:00 p.m. IST at Jai Hind College Hall, 23-24, Backbay Reclamation,  
‘A’ Road, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:



Resolution  
No.

Resolution Vote (Optional see Note 2)  
(Please mention no. of shares)

For Against Abstain

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, 

the Statement of Profit and Loss for the financial year ended as at that date and 
the Directors' Report and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To declare a dividend.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Vaswani (DIN 00369909), who retires 

by rotation and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.
4. To ratify the appointment of M/s Walker, Chandiok & Co. LLP Chartered 

Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.: 001076N), Statutory Auditors of the 
Company to continue to hold office for the residual period of 2 years i.e. from 
the conclusion of 18th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 20th 
Annual General Meeting.

Special Business:
5. To approve the commission plan for Non – executive directors of the company.
6. i) Appointment of Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) as a Director of the 

company.
ii) Appointment of Ms. Kalpana Trivedi (DIN: 07150502) as an Independent 

Director.
7. To ratify the approval of compensation to Mr. Sunil Bhatia (DIN: 03424622),  

Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director.

Signed this .................................... day of .................................... 2015

Signature of Shareholder(s)        Signature of Proxyholder(s)

Notes:

1.  This Form, in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

2.  It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for, against or abstain column blank against any or all resolutions, your 
proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate.

3. A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent 
(10%) of the total share capital of the Company. A member holding more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy, however, such person shall not act as proxy for any other 
person or Shareholder.
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